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CORPORATE PROFILE
NG M)y

Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited (“Wai Chi Holdings” or the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries collectively referred to as
the “Group”) was established in Hong Kong over 30 years ago. The
Group is one of China’s manufacturers for high-quality Light-Emitting
Diode (“LED”) backlight and LED lighting products, with its operations
covering research and development (“R&D”), design, manufacturing,
sales, etc. Recently, the Group is actively developing its business in
lighting energy management solutions and is becoming an integrated
one-stop LED energy management services provider specializing in
offering comprehensive lighting energy management solutions for
sizeable business corporations and public utilities. The Group recently
expanded its business into the semiconductor memory chips with a
view to capturing the growing demand under the rapid development
of 5G connections and breakthroughs in modern consumer products.

Since its listing on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 18 November 2014 (stock
code: 1305), the Group has been dedicated to upgrading its brand
value and becoming one of the leading producers in China’s high-end
LED backlights and lighting products.

Throughout the years, the Group has been monitoring the industry
trends closely and innovating technologies actively, achieving
significant R&D results. The Group has successfully developed over
1,000 new LED backlight products and over 100 new LED lighting
products in Hong Kong, China, Taiwan and Japan, among which 185
patents were registered in the PRC.

The Group has comprehensive production facilities in Shenzhen
and Huizhou in the Guangdong province and Yichang in the Hubei
province. The Group’s products can be categorized into 2 main
groups under LED backlight products and LED lighting business.
LED backlight products are classified into 3 types, including: 1)
automobile on-board displays; 2) television displays; and 3) other
industrial equipment displays. LED lighting business is divided into 2
types, including commercial lighting and public lighting. The Group
will proactively develop its business of the packaging and testing of
small-storage semiconductor memory chips in the future.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
LTFEH
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREE

e uphold pragmatic and prudent

business management, emphasize the
flexible use of resources, and will always be
at our optimal condition to respond to market
changes and explore opportunities
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited, its subsidiaries and
the board of directors of the Company (“Director” or the “Board”),
| am pleased to present to our shareholders our Group’s audited
annual results for the year ended 31 December 2020.

INDUSTRY REVIEW

2020 started on a somewhat bright note as China and the U.S.
signed their phase one trade deal in January, signalling a much-
needed pause on the trade tariff war that had raged for over a
year. But soon after that, the year took a turn to turbulence as the
Novel Coronavirus (the “COVID-19”) hits most of the world hard
and brought wide-ranging and far-reaching impacts that are still
intensifying. The COVID-19 pandemic, in addition to its enormous
death toll, has brought the world to its gravest economic recession
since 1990. Most European countries are entering their fourth
consecutive quarter of GDP losses amid lockdowns, while the U.S.,
which reopened its economy despite an ongoing outbreak, saw Q4
GDP growth of only 2.5%.
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In contrast, China is the first and only economy that bounced back
from COVID-19 losses, recording year-on-year GDP growth of 6.5%
in the fourth quarter and a 2.3% expansion for the whole year. Unlike
most of the world, China only experienced negative growth during
the first quarter. By the fourth quarter, China’s domestic business
activities have already returned to their average level, and a feared
comeback of COVID-19 outbreak seemed to have been kept well
under control. However, enterprises relying on exporting products
and services are still lingering in uncertainties, as day-to-day activities
in the rest of the world are still at a halt, and foreign exchange rate
fluctuations pose more significant challenges in their profitability.

As for the LED industry, the competition in the lighting market
continues to intensify, while the arrival of an inevitable recession
for the backlight segment is coming closer as mini LED and
OLED technologies further mature, bringing their prices to a
more approachable point and leaving less room for the backlight
manufacturers. Only in the automobile on-board display market, the
demand still holds well but tends towards larger display sizes and
preferences in features like curved screens.

2020 marks an incredible milestone for China’s communication
industry as the cutting-edge 5G network’s speedy development
reaches more and more regions in the country. According to data
provided by the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology,
China completed the year’s target of building 500,000 5G base
stations by October, way ahead of schedule. Industries involving
around the 5G network is expected to be the next hot topic, among
which the Single-Level Cell (“SLC”) and Multi-Level Cell (“MLC”)
NAND flash products that are mainly used in 5G and internet of things
(the “loT”) modules are becoming a very profitable section for those
who have the resources and capacities to enter the market.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERRE

BUSINESS REVIEW

Considering the significant disruption to the Group’s production
facilities in Hubei during the first half of the year and the halt of
overseas projects during the second, the Group’s business and
financial performances were indeed satisfactory. The overall revenue
reached approximately HK$1,395,888,000, down from approximately
HK$2,214,974,000 from a year ago, mainly due to the aforesaid
difficulties in operations and a shift of focus within the high-tech
electronic components trading segment, which will be further
discussed below and in the Management Discussion and Analysis
of this report. Despite a sharp drop in revenue, the Group’s gross
profit maintained at approximately HK$198,417,000, as compared to
approximately HK$228,967,000 in 2019, since the gross profit margin
saw noticeable growth, especially that of the newly added income
stream of trading memory chips related products, which recorded a
gross profit margin of 6.98%, helping the overall gross profit margin
land at 14.2% for 2020 (2019: 10.3%).

By segments, backlights for automobile on-board displays were
still the biggest revenue contributor, increasing from approximately
HK$639,290,000 for 2019 to approximately HK$706,600,000 in
total amount this year. But gross profit margin of this segment
dropped from 23.6% to 19.5% as rival technologies continue to
push backlights’ profit margin thin. The segment of equipment
displays recorded a revenue growth from HK$204,038,000 for 2019
to HK$220,580,000 for 2020, owing to the increased demand for
medical and surgical equipment amid the COVID-19 outbreak. The
downward trends for the TV display backlights intensified, with a
revenue decrease from HK$106,778,000 for 2019 to HK$60,911,000
for 2020, as expected, nonetheless. Both public and commercial
lighting segments recorded significant revenue drop, respectively,
from HK$15,770,000 to HK$2,559,000, and from HK$79,007,000 to
HK$71,801,000, as a result of decreased demand and project halt
amid COVID-19 pandemic.

In addition to shifting the focus of trading business from various high-
tech electronic components to memory chips related products, the
Group makes its way into the niche market of SLC and MLC NAND
flash products by acquiring semiconductor memory chips testing and
packing facilities and machinery during the second half of 2020. The
transaction is expected to complete during the first quarter of 2021.
This new line is under preparation to start operation in the second
quarter of this year, and it is expected to bring abundant business
opportunities to the Group in the future.
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PROSPECTS

The COVID-19 pandemic poses one of the most severe health
and economic crises to the world in modern history. Even though
the recent vaccine approval and administration across the globe
have brought hopes of recovery for later 2021, new waves of the
outbreak and latest variants of the virus still raise significant concerns.
According to World Economic Outlook published by International
Monetary Fund in January 2021, the global economy is projected to
grow 5.5% in 2021 and 4.2% in 2022, but the recovery’s strength
will vary significantly across countries, depending on access to
medical supplies, outcome of vaccine administration, effectiveness
of economic policies, and structural characteristics of systemic
responses to the crisis.

For China, if the COVID-19 outbreak stays under control, the country’s
economy is likely to thrive in 2021. With the 5G network bringing day-
to-day life to a new technological level, products and components
to supplement this communication breakthrough will see incredible
growth in the coming years. The three major applications of 5G
network, including enhanced mobile broadband, ultra reliable and low
latency communications, and massive machine type communications,
will spur loT, Internet of Vehicles, Augmented Reality/Virtual Reality,
and ultra-HD video. SLC and MLC NAND flash, needed for the
necessary data storage applications for electronic devices under
these scenarios, will enjoy a significant jump in demand soon. On
the other hand, under the current COVID-19 related lockdowns,
the increasing popularity of home entertainment gadgets brings an
immediate shortage of eMMCs under 64GB storage capacity, which
also pushes up the demand and prices of NAND flash products. In
fact, starting from the fourth quarter of 2020, many manufacturers in
the PRC and Taiwan have reported major price jumps in NAND flash,
and that trend is expected to continue in 2021.

Having secured deals for memory chips packaging and testing
equipment and facilities and access to the reliable supply of high-
quality wafers, which is the most significant entrance barrier to
produce the SLC and MLC memory chips, the Group has high hopes
for its memory chips business to commence. Directors also noticed
the increasing application of the SLC and MLC memory chips to
the devices manufactured by the Group’s existing LED products
customers, including smartphones, automobile displays, equipment
displays, and television manufacturers. The Directors believe that
there is a potential opportunity to cross-sell the SLC and MLC
memory chips to the existing LED products customers, creating a
dynamic product mix and sales approach. As a result, the Group
is confident in this new segment’s commencement and its financial
benefits.

2020 Annual Report | £
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

INDUSTRY REVIEW

In the midst of a series of global and regional socioeconomical
events, the outbreak of COVID-19 across nations has further
pushed economies and businesses to the brink. Given the scale
and pervasiveness of the COVID-19 pandemic, lockdowns, testing,
quarantines, and other subsequent measures, it had inevitably put
many economic activities to an unprecedented standstill. In the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), restricted mobility and
factory closure at different levels brought manufacturing to a halt and
resulted in supply-chain disruption during the first two quarters of this
year. The impacts are shown in China’s 6.8% GDP contraction in the
first quarter of 2020, which is the first economic contraction since the
1970s as revealed by the National Bureau of Statistics.

Notwithstanding that China’s first-quarter GDP shrank, it ended up
being the only major economy that reported economic growth for
2020 and began recovery from its losses in the pandemic. After the
domestic outbreak was brought under control and subsided, the PRC
government eased the mandatory anti-epidemic measures, many
production activities have accelerated under controllable situation,
and most domestic business activities have then returned to normal
by the fourth quarter. China’s GDP expanded 6.5% in the fourth
quarter as recovery has gained momentum on the economic front.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
THRZWLE S Hh

However, adding to the year-long global public health crisis, great
fluctuations in RMB and US Dollar currencies have also posed an
emerging challenge to China’s exporters in 2020. After five years of
significant RMB depreciation, RMB appreciated 6.3% in 2020, with
an 8.5% rise over the second half of the year alone, pushing it to its
strongest level against the US Dollar since 2018. This has left the
issue of lower gross profit margins with Chinese manufacturers and
exporters, as they have suffered from higher costs under stronger
RMB currency but lower returns in US Dollars.

In terms of the LED industry, the lighting sector continued to be
competitive due to decreasing demand for LED lighting projects
which can be profoundly affected by public policy interventions and
municipality support. Meanwhile, the backlighting sector has been
facing signs of recession as substitute technologies including OLED,
Mini LED and Micro LED mature. With lower costs, these improved
technologies are likely to replace LCD displays in the future, which
continue to bring down the demand for LED backlights especially for
television displays sector, restraining growth in such sector.

The demand for LED backlights prevails in the automotive display
market in 2020, as digitalised panels continue to be widely adopted.
In fact, not only on automotive vehicles, it is noteworthy that there
was a growing demand for equipment displays backlight products
as LCD displays are being adopted in many devices that used not to
have a screen. That trend is supplemented by a growing sales volume
in medical devices, possibly related to COVID-19 pandemic.

Along with smart home technology, LCD displays will not be the
only last-generation technology to have new application scenarios.
Small-storage memory chips that provide high-density non-volatile
memory storage solution to support the embedded systems for
smart electronic devices is on the rise too. As China added 600,000
5G base stations in the country in the year 2020, it will undoubtedly
create opportunities across many industries, among which the SLC
and MLC NAND flash products that are embedded in 5G modems
and loT-enabled devices are expected to come to be in great
demand.

12
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BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year 2020, the Group’s resilience has been strongly tested
in times of the COVID-19 pandemic and many other heightened
uncertainties. Although the Group’s production was forced to halt
at the beginning of the year due to the imposition of lockdown
restrictions in the PRC, the Group’s operation soon resumed with the
implementation of health and safety precautionary measures, and its
core business sectors have gradually recovered from the impacts of
COVID-19 pandemic by the end of 2020.

The enterprise resource planning (“ERP”) system implemented by
the Group was especially effective in cost control through timely
monitoring of its operation process to promote information exchange
between functions, storing and managing operational data. It has
enhanced financial and work efficiency with a higher level of process
automation during the manufacturing process.
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The total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
approximately HK$1,395,888,000, representing a decrease of 37.0%
as compared to approximately HK$2,214,974,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2019. Disregarding the high-tech electronic
components and product sourcing business, which was intended
to fund the Group’s transitional period temporarily, revenue from
the core business sectors was approximately HK$1,062,451,000,
representing an increase of 1.7% as compared to approximately
HK$1,044,883,000 of the year ended 31 December 2019. Revenue
from the sales of LED backlight products was approximately
HK$988,091,000 (2019: approximately HK$950,106,000),
representing an increase of 4.0%. Such increase was mainly
contributed by the steady increase in sales of the automobile onboard
displays and the other industrial equipment displays, which grew
10.5% and 8.1% respectively. Revenue from the sales of LED lighting
products was approximately HK$74,360,000 (2019: approximately
HK$94,777,000), representing a decrease of 21.5%, which was on
account of an 83.8% decrease in revenue from the public lighting
segment.

LED Backlight Business

The three types of the Group’s LED backlight products are: 1)
automobile onboard displays; 2) television displays; and 3) other
industrial equipment displays. For the year ended 31 December
2020, revenue derived from LED backlight products in automobile
onboard displays, television displays and industrial equipment
displays were approximately HK$706,600,000, HK$60,911,000 and
HK$220,580,000, respectively.

Automobile onboard displays recorded a 10.5% increase in sales for
the year ended 31 December 2020. It continued to be the largest
contribution to the Group’s LED backlight business during the year
ended 31 December 2020, representing approximately 71.5% of total
LED backlight products sales (2019: approximately 67.3%).

Considering the declining price of OLED displays in the domestic
television market, fewer consumers opt for the lower-end LCD TVs.
The Group, therefore, was not surprised by a drastic revenue drop of
43.0% in LED backlight products for television displays for the year
ended 31 December 2020.
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HE2020F12A31BILFE  RFEBE =
BHRELHWRAERS 1% HEENREZRR
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Equipment displays backlight products recorded an increase of
8.1% in revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020, which was
attributable to the increased production for medical devices and other
industrial equipment.

for the year ended 31 December

HZE12H31BLEE

2020 2019
2020 £fF 20194
LED Backlight LEDE HK$’000 HK$’000 %
Revenue Breakdown Y A BA 4R FiEx FAT %
Automobile Displays HHE RS 706,600 71.5 639,290 67.3
Televisions BR 60,911 6.2 106,778 11.2
Equipment Displays BRI 220,580 22.3 204,038 21.5
988,091 100.0 950,106 100.0
LED Lighting Service Business LED % BA PR 75 2 7%

The Group’s LED lighting business is classified into two categories,
namely public lighting and commercial lighting. The Group provides
various services including products, lighting solutions design,
installation, and maintenance etc. During the year ended 31
December 2020, revenues from public lighting and commercial
lighting were approximately HK$2,559,000 and HK$71,801,000
respectively, observing decreases in the former of 83.8% and in
the latter of 9.1% (2019: approximately HK$15,770,000 and HK$
79,007,000).

The decrease in the Group’s public lighting business was mainly
due to the halt in production at the production plant in Yichang in
the Hubei province since the COVID-19 outbreak in the PRC and
decreasing public lighting projects available in the PRC market.
For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group continued its
enterprising efforts on commercial lighting business through searching
for more project opportunities in Europe, Australia, and New Zealand.
The Group has attained stable revenue from the commercial lighting
segment as projects were resumed in the fourth quarter of 2020
when the COVID-19 pandemic was under control.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEBZWMLR 2R
for the year ended 31 December
HZE12A31HLEE
2020 2019

2020 £ 20194
LED Lighting LED FREH HK$’000 HK$’000 %
Revenue Breakdown Y A BA 4R FExT FHET %
Public Lighting ~ FAFREA 2,559 3.4 15,770 16.6
Commercial Lighting 7% F FE AR 71,801 96.6 79,007 83.4
74,360 100.0 94,777 100.0

Sourcing Business

As a temporary source of income to fund the transitional period, the
Group has been engaged in sourcing high-tech electronic components
and products. Starting from the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Group added a new collection of products to this segment, namely,
memory chips related products, aiming for higher profit margin and
more value added product mix. During the year ended 31 December
2020, there was a shift of focus, and this segment currently mainly
involves the trading of memory chips related products, which is in line
with the Group’s future business expansion into the semiconductor
memory field. For the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue
from the sourcing segment was approximately HK$333,437,000
(2019: approximately HK$1,170,091,000), representing a
significant decrease of approximately 71.5%, being a result of
resource allocation to focus on the Group’s future expansion into
the small-storage memory chips business sector. During the year
ended 31 December 2020, revenue from sourcing memory chips
related products reached approximately HK$244,450,000 (2019:
approximately HK$19,224,000), attaining a growth of approximately
1,171.6%. Segment gross profit was approximately HK$17,582,000
(2019: approximately HK$19,033,000), which was more or less
similar to last year, due to the significant increase in segment gross
profit margin from 1.6% to 5.3%, on account of the strategic shifting
of focus onto the higher-margin products.
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for the year ended 31 December

HZE12H31BLEE

2020 2019
2020 £fF 20194
Sourcing Business REBEK HK$°000 HK$’000 %
Revenue Breakdown Y A BA 4R FExT FHET %
High-tech electronic components @ FRHEE FZ &
and products sourcing EEmiRiE 88,987 26.7 1,150,867 98.4
Memory chips related products FRESAEEERRE
sourcing 244,450 73.3 19,224 1.6
333,437 100 1,170,091 100
QUALITY CONTROL BEEEH

At the Company, a high level of quality control has proven to garner
customer loyalty. The Group has established stringent quality
control procedures to ensure the quality of its products. From the
very beginning of designing a product to each stage throughout the
manufacturing process, until the product is completed and stored,
the Group’s quality control staff ensure excellence in every aspect.
There is a set of established procedures in selecting and approving
new suppliers and raw materials, and thorough testing of product
samples is carried out before mass production of the products.

The Group owns a series of advanced production and testing
equipment for improving quality control. The Group has been awarded
various certifications, including 1ISO 9001:2008 and ISO 14001:2004
for quality and environmental management systems, which serve as
an important assurance of product quality and reliability.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group recognises the immense value of Research and
Development (“R&D”) capabilities and has become an agile and sharp
industry player for its R&D efforts. As today’s consumers consider
not only quality but also diversity in many tech-related products,
market research is vital to understand the needs and preferences of
consumers. Moreover, amid the fast-changing consumer market, the
R&D department is resourceful in supporting the Group’s production
and operation with well-informed research, which enables the Group
to identify niche markets that offer profitable opportunities. By flexibly
targeting market trends and technological advances, the Group
endeavours to be always prepared for emerging possibilities so as to
capture optimal business deals.
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The Group’s R&D centre is located in our production plant in Huizhou.
The Group engages in various R&D activities, including (i) concurrent
development of new product designs with our customers; (ii)
improvement of product quality, efficiency and functionality of existing
products; (iii) in-project calibration and optimization of the production
processes and capability of the equipment; (iv) introduction and
promotion of the use of new production technologies and new
production materials; and (v) assessment of the future prospect and
development trend of the LED industry. The Group has achieved a
number of technological advancement and breakthroughs over the
years and, as of 31 December 2020, the Group held 185 patents
registered in the PRC. Looking forward, the Group will continue to
enhance its R&D capabilities and prepare itself for the up-and-coming
opportunities.

AWARDS FOR CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Wai Chi Opto Technology
Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, has received the Green Office
Label awarded under the Green Office Awards Labelling Scheme
(“GOALS”) organised by the World Green Organization (“WGO”) for
the fifth year, in recognition of the Group’s continued efforts in aiding
environmental protection.

WGO launched GOALS in 2013 with the objectives of raising
awareness of global environmental issues and encouraging
corporations to implement the best green practices in their offices
in 9 stipulated aspects of operations, including energy savings,
water savings, waste reduction, paper and printing reduction,
green procurement, IT use and disposal, transportation, education
and awareness, and finally green innovation. Companies have to
undergo a process of stringent green audit, during which the Group
has demonstrated its commitment in corporate social responsibility
by incorporating its green mission into daily practice and corporate
culture.
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PROSPECTS

Following the devastating global public health and economic crisis
unleashed by COVID-19, 2021 begins with a subdued economic
recovery from the gravest recession in 2020. If the COVID-19 situation
in the PRC remains under control, China’s economy is likely to thrive
in 2021, but it still takes time to get back to the level prior to the
COQOVID-19 outbreak. Despite the COVID-19 pandemic is still unsettled
in many countries, markets are adjusted to a ‘new normal’ after
the year-long co-existence with the pandemic. The IMF forecaster
expects that the global economic performance will be stronger in the
second half of 2021. The Group is moving towards such dynamism
and resilience, and continues to maintain close relationships with
overseas clients for possible opportunities. In times of the digital
revolution, it is believed that LCD displays will be installed in many
more daily applications, even in devices that used not to have screen
displays. The Group believes its backlight products will possibly
remain stable in the coming year, especially for the automotive
onboard displays and equipment displays.

According to the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology
of the PRC, the PRC government plans to accelerate 5G roll-
out to over 1,200,000 base stations nationwide for the 5G
telecommunication network in 2021, further promoting 5G network
infrastructure construction and application across the country.
With government support, China is leading the way in its scale and
coverage of 5G network. The adoption of 5G is expected to power
the semi-conductor industry as all new chips, wafers, memory chips
components are necessary in national 5G deployment.

Owing to the emerging IoT trend and the 5G deployment ahead, the
Group is also aware that the Single-Level Cell (SLC) and Multi-Level
Cell (MLC) NAND Flash industry, among the semi-conductor industry,
might enjoy a surge in demand in the future. NAND Flash memory
chip is adopted to support the embedded systems in controlling
the operation of machines or fulfilling designated tasks. Since many
loT products will require small-storage memory units, the rising
consumption for IoT products could bring a higher demand for SLC
and MLC NAND flash memory chips in the long term. Due to limited
supply in the market, the rise in the price of NAND Flash is expected
to continue in 2021. Considering the potentials of this niche market,
the Group, therefore, has assured the access to the reliable supply
of high-quality wafers and secured deals for acquiring memory chips
packaging and testing equipment and facilities. The Group believes
that its memory chips business will commence after the transaction is
completed in the first quarter of 2021.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the sources of revenue for
the Group were the sales of LED backlight, the sales of LED lighting
products and the business of high-tech electronic components and
products sourcing. The sales of the Group’s LED backlight products
were approximately HK$988,091,000, representing an increase of
approximately 4.0% from 2019, which was mainly attributable to the
increase of sales of automotive displays LED backlight products.
The sales of the Group’s LED lighting products were approximately
HK$74,360,000, representing a decrease of approximately 21.5%
from 2019. The decrease was mainly attributable to the 83.8%
decrease in revenue from the public lighting segment. The revenue
from the segment of high-tech electronic components and products
sourcing recorded sales of approximately HK$333,437,000 (2019:
HK$1,170,091,000), which was due to resource allocation to focus
on the Group’s future expansion into the small-storage memory chips
business sector.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

For the year ended 31 December 2020, gross profit from the sales
of LED backlight and LED lighting products was approximately
HK$180,835,000, representing a decrease of 13.9% from
approximately HK$209,934,000 in 2019. Gross profit margin for
these two segments decreased by 3.1 percentage points from
20.1% in 2019 to 17.0% in 2020. Gross profit and gross profit
margin from high-tech electronic components and products sourcing
were HK$17,582,000 and 5.3% (2019: HK$19,033,000 and 1.6%)
respectively. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s
overall gross profit was approximately HK$198,417,000, representing
a decrease of 13.3% from approximately HK$228,967,000 in 2019.
Overall gross profit margin was 14.2% in 2020, representing an
increase of 3.9 percentage points from 10.3% in 2019.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Labour costs, sales commissions and transportation costs were the
Group’s major selling and distribution expenses. For the year ended
31 December 2020, the Group’s selling and distribution expenses
was approximately HK$25,356,000, representing a decrease of 0.8%.
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Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses refer to the general expenses incurred in
offices and factories. The Group focuses on effective management
by means of resource consolidation in the Shenzhen and Huizhou
factories. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s
administrative expenses was approximately HK$84,934,000,
which has decreased by 16.4% compared to approximately
HK$101,597,000 for the year 2019. The decrease was mainly
attributable to effective cost control and limited operations of
operating center the during the epidemic period.

Other Income

During the year ended 31 December 2020, other income was
approximately HK$20,707,000, representing a decrease of 2.1% in
comparison with approximately HK$21,148,000 for the year 2019.

Taxation

Taxation comprised current tax and movements in deferred tax
assets and liabilities. Two of the Group’s subsidiaries, Wai Chi Opto
Technology (Shenzhen) Limited (“Shenzhen Wai Chi”) and Huizhou
Wai Chi Electronics Company Limited, are qualified as “High-Tech
Enterprises” in the PRC and granted certain tax benefits, including a
preferential enterprise income tax rate of 15% instead of the statutory
rate of 25%. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s
tax credit was approximately HK$329,000 (2019: Tax expenses of
HK$3,021,000).

Inventories

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s inventories was approximately
HK$220,710,000, representing an increase of 4.3% as compared
to approximately HK$211,584,000 as at 31 December 2019. The
increase in inventory was attributable to inventory of memory chips
maintained for the sourcing business.

Trade Receivables

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s net trade receivables
amounted to approximately HK$566,740,000, which increased by
24.8% as compared to approximately HK$454,279,000 as at 31
December 2019. This was attributable to the increase in sales of LED
backlight and LED lighting products.
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Trade Payables

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s trade payables amounted
to approximately HK$295,154,000, which increased by 22.0% as
compared to approximately HK$241,923,000 as at 31 December
2019. This was attributable to the increase in purchase of raw
materials for LED backlight and LED lighting products.

Proposed Acquisitions

On 11 November 2020, Huizhou Wai Chi Electronics Company
Limited (“Wai Chi Huizhou”), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of
the company, entered into an agreement with Victoria Ultra Business
Co., Ltd., whereby Wai Chi Huizhou has conditionally agreed to
acquire and Victoria Ultra Business Co., Ltd. has conditionally agreed
to sell the equipment at a cash consideration of approximately
USD5.9 million (equivalent to approximately HK$45.9 million). The
proposed acquisition, if materialized, would enable the Group to
commence the semiconductor memory chips testing and packing
business. Please refer to the Group’s announcement published on the
Stock Exchange on 11 November 2020 for details.

On 13 November 2020, Wai Chi Huizhou entered into an agreement
with Shenzhen Zi Yun Xin Electronics Technology Company
Limited, for the acquisition of equipment at the total consideration of
RMB12.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$13.2 million). The
proposed acquisition, if materialized, would support and facilitate the
development of the Group’s semiconductor memory chips testing
and packing business. Please refer to the Group’s announcement
published on the Stock Exchange on 13 November 2020 for details.

Placing of New Shares and Offer to Acquire the
Company’s Shares

On 6 May 2016, the Company completed a placing of new shares
(the “Placing”), allotted and issued 16,825,000 new shares of
the Company to not less than six individuals who are independent
third parties at the price of HK$2.00 per share. Net proceeds from
the Placing amounted to approximately HK$31,134,000, which
are intended to be used for financing any potential investment
opportunities such as mergers and acquisition that may arise from
time to time. As at 31 December 2020, the net proceeds from the
Placing have not yet been utilised and have been deposited with
licensed banks in Hong Kong.

The Company expects to use the proceeds from the Placing for the
aforementioned acquisitions.

22

FE 43 BR AR

R2020F 12 A31H  REBWNEMNERY
/295,154,000 7T + #82019F 12 A31H K
#7241,923,0007% 7018 iN122.0% - 1kt JY AN 15
DNEREE LED & 3¢ K LED BRRAZE S BV R M RHETER -

BEaliEsn

R2020F 11 A11B  AARHEEZEWRB
ARIBMELEBETFERAR ([BEEIM]) &
Victoria Ultra Business Co., Ltd. 5] 37 13 3% -
Bt EEEMN B GG R E W Victoria
Ultra Business Co., Ltd. B &R = H & &R
% WL KRB A% 5900,000% 7T (HHERL
45,900,000 7T) © BE W EIENLEE
AEERHBFERTH O ABMEERE
%o BEAFBEBEL2HEAEBRN2020F 11 A
11 BREBER TR A o

R2020%F 11 A13H » EMEEERIIHE
ERETREER ARG WERE
AR #12,000,000 7T (#8 & 7 49 13,200,000 7%
) RERE - ERRBEENLEERS
TRUSHESAEELERFHLAIHA K
HEXBNBRE BFHRFBEE2HAEER
20204 11 A 13 HRN B R AT HIZERM A4 -

BEEMROREESENREBARAQITR
%

R2016F5H6H » ARQRTAKE S K
B (REEIE])  UTR2.008 THE®
WARDRNBBILE = AT RET
16,825,000 R &N R Bl ¥ & 10 - BL & S IBATS
FRIEFEA#) 531,134,000/ 7T - ¥ R AT
BET I MR M EREEIRE B (W4 0 R
B)IRMHES - N2020F12A31H - BRESE
BB REFEANARDAYETFTAEEEE
$R1T -

ARREHGREETENMSRBERR Lt
WHEEIA -

Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited | &R ER Q7



DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES

EE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yiu Chi To, age 58, is the founder of our Group, the executive
Director and Chairman of our Company. He was appointed as
an executive Director of our company on 16 August 2013. He is
responsible for formulating corporate strategies and overseeing the
Group’s business development and operation as well as monitoring
the Group’s administration. He also plays a role in developing
new technology and innovations with our Group’s research and
development team and maintaining good relationships with our major
customers. Mr. Yiu has more than 30 years of working experience
in the LED industry. Mr. Yiu had successfully registered patents in
the PRC for the new technologies that he had developed, including
“Double sided light emitting backlight” in 2003, “Bottom-side dual-
efficient LED white light” in 2004, and “LED with heat dissipation” in
2005. From 2009 to present, Mr. Yiu also served as a deputy director
for the Shenzhen Light Emitting Diode Industry Association. In 2018,
Mr. Yiu was appointed as deputy director of Bao’an District Five
Industrial Top 100 Enterprise Federation.

Mr. Yiu graduated from Fujian Jinjiang Neikeng High School in 1978.
Prior to the establishment of the Group, from 1979 to 1981 he worked
in an electronic watch manufacturing company initially as an assembly
line worker, and was later promoted to a manager where he was
involved in sales and marketing of the electronic watches and in 1982
he started a business in the electronic watch industry and ceased
the business in 1984 before establishing the Group. In 1984, Mr. Yiu
founded Wai Chi Electronics Co. Mr. Yiu is the father of Ms. Yiu Kwan
Yu and father-in-law of Mr. Chen Chung Po.

Mr. Chen Chung Po, age 43, was appointed as executive Director
and the Chief Executive Officer of our Company on 16 August 2013.
He is responsible for the day-to-day management of our Group
including administration, procurement, production as well as financial
management. Mr. Chen received his Bachelor of Arts in Business
Studies degree from Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November
2000. He has more than 10 years of working experience in banking and
finance fields. After graduation, he joined Bank of China (Hong Kong)
as a credit analyst and was gradually promoted to Branch Manager
from 2000 to 2006. From 2006 to 2010, he worked with the Sun Hung
Kai Group of companies serving as the Vice President of Sales Division
in Wealth Management when he resigned in 2011. From 2011 to 2012,
he was a person licensed to carry on Type 2 regulated activity. Prior
1o joining our Group, he was the sales director in GF Securities (Hong
Kong) Brokerage Limited from 2011 to 2013. Mr. Chen is the husband
of Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu, son-in-law of Mr. Yiu Chi To.
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DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES
EF SREEREARRRER

Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu, age 36, was appointed as executive Director
of our Company on 16 August 2013. She is also the Sales and
Marketing Manager of Wai Chi Opto Technology Limited since
2009. Ms. Yiu joined us in 2008 and served as Sales and Marketing
Executive initially. She is responsible for the sales and marketing of
our LED lighting division and she is also in charge of the research and
development department of our LED lighting division. Ms. Yiu received
her Bachelor’'s degree of Applied Science in Electrical Engineering
from The University of British Columbia in May 2008 and her Master
of Lighting degree from the Queensland University of Technology in
May 2012. Ms. Yiu was admitted as Engineer by the Corporation of
Seven Wardens Inc. in 2008. She also held the Directorship of Hong
Kong Critical Component Manufacturing Association from 2009 to
2012 and the Directorship of Hong Kong Opto Mechatronics Industry
Association from 2012 to 2018. Ms. Yiu is the elder daughter of Mr.
Yiu Chi To and wife of Mr. Chen Chung Po.

Mr. Chen Wei Wu, age 57, was appointed as executive Director
of our Company on 11 March 2014. He is the Financial Controller
of Shenzhen Wai Chi since 2010. He is responsible for the financial
management and day-to-day financial operation in the PRC region.
He has 30 years of experience in commercial and finance fields.
From 1984 to 1992, Mr. Chen served as Accounting Officer in Jinan
Chemicals Factory at Hengyang City of Hunan. From 1992 to 1997,
he served as Financial Controller in Shenzhen Zhonggiao Group at
Shenzhen. From 1997 to 2001, he served as Vice General Manager
and Chief Financial Controller in Shenzhen Shennan Merchants
Group. From 2001 to 2006, he served as the Assistant to the
General Manager and head of the Capital Department in Shenzhen
Saigedasheng Joint-stock Company Limited. From 2006 to 2008,
he served as the General Manager of the Audit Planning Department
in GD Hengfeng Investment Group Co., Ltd. From 2008 to 2010,
he served as the General Manager of Group Finance Division in
Shenzhen Shangtianran Investment Company Limited.

Mr. Chen studied and graduated from the correspondence course
in industrial accountancy and received the professional certificate
in industrial accountancy from the Hunan College of Finance and
Economics in July 1987. In October 1994, Mr. Chen was conferred by
the Ministry of Finance in the PRC the qualification of an accountant
specializing in corporate accounting. In April 2011, Mr. Chen was
admitted as Senior International Finance Manager by the International
Financial Management Association. In December 2017, Mr. Chen
was admitted as Senior Accountant by the Human Resources and
Social Security Department of Guangdong Province and Mr. Chen
was admitted as International Certified Public Accountant by the
International Association of Accounting Professionals in August
2020. In June 2012, Mr. Chen obtained his Master of Business
Administration degree from the Zhongnan University of Economics
and Law. In November 2014, Mr. Chen obtained his Doctor of
Business Administration degree from the Victoria University of
Switzerland.

24

WEBWLZ L 365 N2013F8A16HEZE
TARRRNITES - 1§ 8 2009 F £ JF A&
ENEERAFMNIEE LTS EELRE - ik
TEFR2008FMAREE @ BYIETHER
MHEHETRAE BELEDRBRBEINHEE
MG HE  MALEDRA I AN A
E AP EMR2008F5 ARISHE ST ML
DAENEFIRERNSSELEN TR
2012F5 AMSELHR R KENRBE L
B o ik £ 2008 F &+ K T2 2B 4Y
B ITIZEM o IR 2000F B 2012 EREHEES
BERETSHHREEHRENESELE  ©
2012 F E2018F I BB N EEITEREN
EERE BT ARTBERAEZRK
TPREBFE L EZ AR °

BRRETSCE 575 M2014F3 11 HESZ
ERBARRRNITES - B 2010 F RBIEEIR
IEENTHRE BEFRBENTHEE
BLHEEVREE - FRABLeRAES
SOFEKE - N1984FE 1902 F f » fR4E 4
RNAEEET SR IMETErTE - B
1992 F 1997 F A - MAOFINENREIIF B L
BIE T S AAES - 1997 F 2 2001 F1E » 1
RABHEEEETIAKERVIERE -
2001 FE 2006 F i - BRI ERER
D AR A RETASENE N ERILEE o
R2006 F 22008 F fE - R ERELERE
EEAR QA ETRZTEBHALEE - R
2008 F = 2010 F A » AR M RKAKRE
ARDARETEEGIEIPELTE o

PRACAE R MR B E TS8R
R ST F7TAERETRSIESH
OB o 1994 F 10 A BR 4 A h B
HERSFMER  BEE S - 1B 2011
FA4R BRELEEBRMBEERTRT A
BRBEREEIRA W 2017 F12 B EE
REANNERMEESREERES R EHAED
BIE R 2020F8 AR EX S HMAS
ERFEEBEESTMAEGERIE - K 2012
F6A MAEENPEMLEEERNERNET
EEEETEN - R2014F 11 8 BREAR
WMt Z A RAEBRETIREEB L8 -

Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited | &R ER Q7



DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES

Ms. Yong Jian Hui, age 44, was appointed as executive Director
of our Company on 11 March 2014. She joined our Company
since 2003. She is currently the Deputy General Manager and the
Head of Sales Department of Wai Chi Opto Technology (Shenzhen)
Company Limited. She is responsible for the sales and marketing of
our LED backlight products. She has more than 10 years of working
experience in sales and marketing of backlight products. Prior to
her joining our Company, Ms. Yong served as the head of Sales
Department at Wah Mei Electronics (Shenzhen) Company Limited
from 2000 to 2002. Ms. Yong was graduated from the Hunan Radio
& TV University of Financial Accounting Profession in 1999 and
her Master of Business Administration degree from the Southwest
Jiaotong University in June 2012.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, age 57, was appointed as independent
non-executive Director (“INED”) of our Company on 11 March 2014.

Mr. Au Yeung obtained a Professional Diploma in Accountancy in The
Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University) in 1987. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Society of Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Au Yeung had worked for a number of years for
Price Waterhouse (now known as PricewaterhouseCoopers), had
acted as a financial manager of a listed company and a major private
company respectively in Hong Kong. He has been a certified public
accountant since 1994 and has over thirty years’ experience in
auditing, finance and administration. He is now the director of Lau &
Au Yeung C.P.A. Limited.

Mr. Au Yeung was appointed in May 2006 and is currently acting as
an independent non-executive director of Amvig Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 2300, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, formerly known as Vision Grande Group Holdings Limited),
Mr. Au Yeung was also appointed on 12 August 2016 and is currently
acting as an independent non-executive director of Man Shing Global
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8309, a company listed on GEM of
the Stock Exchange).
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Mr. Chen Kwok Wang, age 58, was appointed as INED of our
Company on 11 March 2014.

Mr. Chen is currently a Partner at Messrs. Fairbairn, Catley, Low &
Kong. He has been admitted as a Solicitor of the High Court since
2005. He obtained his Bachelor of Laws from the University of
Wolverhampton in February 2002 and his Postgraduate Certificate
in Laws from the University of Hong Kong in June 2003. Mr. Chen
obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in Engineering in November
1986 and also a Master of Business Administration degree in
December 1997 from the University of Hong Kong. Mr. Chen was a
Member of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants (now known as
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants) in 1990.

Prior to establishing his career in the legal field, Mr. Chen worked
in an international accounting firm from 1986 to 1991 as a Staff
Accountant and was eventually promoted to the position of Audit
Supervisor. In 1992 to 1993, Mr. Chen became an Internal Auditor at
the Hong Kong branch of a bank. In 1993 to 2000, Mr. Chen worked
at The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in the capacity as
a Manager and was eventually promoted to the position of Senior
Manager. In 2001 to 2002, Mr. Chen worked at the Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong as a Manager where he was
responsible for day-to-day supervision of financial intermediaries.
Mr. Chen was appointed as an independent non-executive director
of Fujian Start Group Co., Ltd, a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (stock code: 600734), on 20 May 2014 and PPS
International (Holdings) Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code 8201, a company listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange), during the period from 19 November 2014 to 30
December 2015.
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DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES

Mr. Ho Chi Wai, age 46, was appointed as INED of our Company on
11 March 2014.

Mr. Ho is currently a partner of SRF Partners & Co., CPAs. He
obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration from
Lingnan University in November 1997 and a Master’s degree in
Finance from Jinan University in December 2012. He is currently a
practicing certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, a certified tax adviser and fellow member of
the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and an associate of the Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong, a fellow member of the Association of
International Accountants.

Mr. Ho has over 23 years of experience in audit assurance and
business consulting. Prior to his own practice in 2012, Mr. Ho worked
as an Audit Senior in a local accounting firm from 1997 to 2000. From
2000 to 2010, Mr. Ho was the audit manager in a sizable accounting
firm and from 2010 to 2011 he became the Principal of the group to
which the said accountancy firm belonged.

Mr. Ho acted as an independent non-executive director of Capital
Finance Holdings Limited (Stock Code 8239, a company listed on
GEM of the Stock Exchange, formerly known as Ming Kei Holdings
Limited) from June 2012 to October 2013.

Mr. Ho was appointed as an independent non-executive director of
Affluent Foundation Holdings Limited (Stock Code 1757, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) on 13 May 2018
and Mr. Ho was appointed as an independent non-executive director
of Hyfusin Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code 8512, a company
listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange) on 23 June 2018.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Luo Zeng Chang, age 39, joined our Company since 2003 and
is currently the General Manager of our Project Design Department
of Shenzhen Wai Chi. Mr. Luo is responsible for supervising the
designs of our products. Prior to joining our Company, Mr. Luo was
a research development engineer with a small to medium size LED
backlight module manufacturing company from 2002 to 2003. Mr.
Luo was then employed as a senior technician at Shenzhen Wai Chi
in 2003 and was the leader of our Design Project Department from
2004 to 2007. He was then appointed as the Vice General Manager
of our Design Project Department at Shenzhen Wai Chi in 2008. Mr.
Luo obtained a graduation certificate specializing in Mechatronics
from Jiaying University in July 2001.

COMPANY SECRETARY AND CHIEF
FINANCIAL OFFICER

Mr. Cheung Wai Hung, age 39, was appointed as the Chief
Financial Officer of our Company on 11 March 2014 and appointed
as the Company Secretary of our Company on 12 November 2015.

Mr. Cheung is responsible for our financial management other
than the PRC. Mr. Cheung has over 9 years of experience in audit
assurance. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Cheung worked as audit
trainee in Eric Ng & Co. from June 20083 to July 2004 and as audit
manager in Jonten Hopkins CPA Limited from July 2004 to March
2014. Mr. Cheung graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with an honors degree in Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy
in November 2003. He is currently a certified public accountant of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a certified tax
adviser at the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.

Mr. Cheung was appointed as an independent non-executive director
of Grand T G Gold Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8299, a company
listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange) on 27 August 2018. Mr.
Cheung was appointed as an independent non-executive director
of Ye Xing Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1941, a company
listed on Main Board of the Stock Exchange) on 17 February 2020.
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The Board of Directors is pleased to present this report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Consolidated Financial
Statements”).

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and is
domiciled in Hong Kong and has its principal place of business at
6th Floor, Liven House, Nos. 61-63 King Yip Street, Kowloon, Hong
Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities and particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are
set out in Note 37 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. There
were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the year ended 31 December 2020.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
(the “Reporting Period”) are set out in the Consolidated Financial
Statements on pages 79 to 182 of this annual report. The Directors
do not recommend the payment of a dividend and resolve not to
declare any final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2020.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the annual
general meeting of the Company (“AGM”) to be held on 26 May 2021
(Wednesday), the register of members of the Company will be closed
from 21 May 2021 (Friday) to 26 May 2021 (Wednesday), both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be effected.
In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers of
shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates and transfer
forms must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on 20 May 2021 (Thursday). The record date for the
entitlement to attend the AGM will be on 20 May 2021 (Thursday).
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in Note 30 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 83 to 84 of the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders is approximately HK$331,977,000
(2019: approximately HK$331,977,000), representing the balance of
share premium account which can be authorised for this purpose in
accordance with the Company Law of Cayman Islands.

BORROWINGS

Details of bank and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2020 are set out in Note 26 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2020, the gearing ratio of the Group, based on
total borrowings (including bank and other borrowing, corporate
bonds and lease liabilities) to the equity (including all capital and
reserves) of the Company, was 49.7% (2019: 45.1%).
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EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 2,319 employees. The
Group recognized the importance of maintaining good relationship
with its employees and retaining competent staff to ensure operational
efficiency and effectiveness. In the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Group had not encountered any significant problems with its
employees, and there had not been any dispute between the Group
and its employees that might have caused any disruption to the
Group’s business or operation. The Group has had no difficulty
in recruiting and retaining experienced staff. The remuneration of
each employee of the Group is determined on the basis of his or
her performance and responsibility. The Group provides training to
employees.

The total staff costs incurred by the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020 was approximately HK$201,109,000.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
report, the Company has maintained the percentage of public float
as prescribed in the Rules governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) for the
Reporting Period and at any time before and up to the date of this
annual report.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2020 and up to and including the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yiu Chi To (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Chung Po (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu

Mr. Chen Wei Wu

Ms. Yong Jian Hui

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah
Mr. Chen Kwok Wang
Mr. Ho Chi Wai

In accordance with article 84(1) and 84(2) of the Company’s articles
of association, each of Mr. Chen Wei Wu and Ms. Yong Jian Hui, all
of whom were appointed as executive directors on 11 March 2014
will retire as Directors at the forthcoming annual general meeting, and
they, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election thereat.

In accordance with article 84(1) and 84(2) of the Company’s articles
of association, each of Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, Mr. Chen Kwok Wang
and Mr. Ho Chi Wai, all of whom were appointed as independent
non-executive directors on 11 March 2014 will retire as Directors at
the forthcoming annual general meeting, and they, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election thereat.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group as at the date of this annual report are set
out on pages 23 to 28 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. Yiu Chi To, Mr. Chen Chung Po and Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu
has entered into a service agreement with the Company for three
years from 16 August 2019, and each of the service agreements may
be terminated by either party by giving not less than three months’
written notice.

Each of Mr. Chen Wei Wu and Ms. Yong Jian Hui has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for three years from 11 March
2020, and each of the service agreements may be terminated by
either party by giving not less than three months’ written notice.

Each of Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, Mr. Chen Kwok Wang and Mr. Ho
Chi Wai has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
for a term of two years commencing from 11 March 2020 and each
of the letters of appointment may be terminated by either party by
giving not less than two months’ written notice.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has a contract of
service with the Company or any of its subsidiaries not determinable
by the employing company within one year without payment of
compensation (except for statutory compensation).

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the
Group are determined by the Remuneration Committee with reference
to their relevant qualifications, experience, competence and the
prevailing market conditions. None of the Directors waived or agreed
to waive any emoluments during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration of the Group as at the date of
this annual report are set out in Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2020 were rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their
respective spouse or minor children (under 18 years of age), or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to
any arrangement whose objectives are to enable a Director of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart from
the Group’s business, that competes or competed or is or was likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business at
any time during the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to and
including the date of this annual report.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS AND
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the sub-section headed “Connected
Transaction” below and “Related Party Transactions and Balances”
in Note 33 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, no contract of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or a
controlling shareholder had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year ended 31 December 2020
or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY OF
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive personnel of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)), as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(“Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were
as follows:
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Approximate

Number and percentage of
Name of Director Capacity/nature of interest class of securities shareholding
EEnR 270 331 BHEHARER IREMAT DL
(Note 2)
(Mt3E2)
Mr. Yiu Chi To (Note 1) Beneficial owner 128,120,000 (L) 59.09%
kS E A (FYEE) BEnMAA
Notes: Mzt -

1. Mr. Yiu Chi To holds 100% of the issued share capital of Rexell Technology
Company Limited, which is the controlling shareholder holding approximately
59.09% of the issued share capital of the Company.

2. The letter “L” denotes the Directors’ long position in the shares of the
Company or the relevant associated corporation.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors and chief executive personnel of the Company had or
was deemed to have any interests or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interest
or short positions which they had taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PARTIES IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2020, so far as the directors and chief executive
officer of the Company were aware, the following persons and
corporations (excluding the directors and chief executive officer of
the Company) had interests or short positions in any of the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, or
who was, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the shares
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BB ELASN) R A B D sk BB (D P A
BEFSHRBEKMNEXVIE2XIH B
&SR BB AN S 2NN &) N B 22 BT B 4 2 0%
B REZBHFRIBEKRAEI(HEAERETR
AGFEMECMASENEEAR  E
B EERA RGN PR 5%k A R

Nz
= o

iy
of the Company.
Approximate
percentage of
Number of issued share
Name of Shareholder Capacity/nature of interest shares held capital
BRITREAZ
REREE 51 #xstE FrishRia 88 BHEHGE
Rexell Technology Company Limited (Note 1) Beneficial owner 128,120,000 59.09%
HEREARA R (FEE1) En#BA
Mr. Yiu Chi To (Note 2) Interest of a controlled corporation 128,120,000 59.09%
wkAE B 5t A (FsE2) R LB B RS
Ms. Luk Fong (Note 3) Interest of spouse 128,120,000 59.09%
B 75 22+ (B EE3) Ao B o
Notes: M

1. Rexell Technology Company Limited directly holds 128,120,000 shares
representing approximately 59.09% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

2. Mr. Yiu Chi To is the legal and beneficial owner of all the issued shares of
Rexell Technology Company Limited and is therefore deemed to be interested
in all the shares of the Company held by Rexell Technology Company Limited
under the SFO.

3. Ms. Luk Fong, as the spouse of Mr. Yiu Chi To, is deemed to be interested in
the shares held by Rexell Technology Company Limited by virtue of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES AND INSURANCE

As permitted by the articles of association of the Company, a director
of the Company may be indemnified out of the assets and profits of
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which the director shall or may incur or
sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or
about the execution of his or her duty as a director of the Company,
to the extent permitted by law. Such permitted indemnity provision
has been in force since the adoption of the articles of association of
the Company on 27 October 2014 and is currently in force at the time
of approval of this report.

The Company has also taken out and maintained directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance throughout the year, which provides
appropriate cover for certain legal actions brought against its directors
and officers.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of the controlling shareholders has confirmed to the Company
of its/his compliance with the terms and undertakings of the deed
of non-competition provided to the Company under the Deed of
Non-competition (as defined in the Company’s prospectus dated
4 November 2014). The INEDs of the Company have reviewed
the status of compliance and confirmed that all the terms and
undertakings under the Deed of Non-competition have been complied
with by the controlling shareholders.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 184 of this
annual report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has had
continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules, which are exempt from the connected transaction
requirements under Rule 14A.76 of the Listing Rules. Details of the
significant transactions with related parties are set out in Note 33 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the largest supplier
accounted for 10% of the Group’s purchases and the five largest
suppliers accounted for 29% of the Group’s total purchases. The
largest customer accounted for 34% of the Group’s revenue and
the five largest customers accounted for 63% of the Group’s total
revenue.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, none of the Directors,
their associates or any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has an
interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers and customers.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to approximately HK$27,000 (2019: approximately HK$135,000).

CORPORATE BOND

Details of movement in corporate bond issued by the Company
during the year are set out in Note 28 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and considers all the INEDs to be independent.

REPURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S SHARES

During the year ended 31 December 2020, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries had purchased or redeemed any of the listed
shares of the Company.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board considers sustainable returns to shareholders to be one of
the main objectives. Stable dividend payment to shareholders is the
primary objective of the Company. The basic policy is to pay interim
and final dividends in each financial year.

Under the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands and the Articles
of Association of the Company, all of the shareholders have equal
rights to dividends and distributions. The Board determines the
interim dividend and recommends the final dividend which requires
the approval of shareholders. In addition to cash, dividends may
be distributed in the form of shares. Any distribution of shares also
requires the approval of shareholders.

Retained surplus is used to achieve further gains in corporate value.
For this purpose, the Board makes effective use of retained surplus
to strengthen the operating base and fund growth of established
businesses and the development of new businesses. The Board takes
into account the following factors when considering the declaration
and payment of dividends:

° liquidity position of the Company;

e financial results;

e  shareholders’ interests;

e general business conditions and strategies;

e  capital requirements;

e  contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends by the
Company to the shareholders or by the subsidiaries to the
Company, if any;

e  taxation considerations;

e possible effects on the creditworthiness;

e  statutory and regulatory restrictions; and

e any other factors the Board may deem relevant.

The Company will not declare any dividend(s) where:

e there are reasonable grounds for believing that the Company is
or would be, after a dividend payment, unable to pay its liabilities
or discharge its obligations as and when they become due;

° pursuant to dividend decision date, the Company is insolvent or
bankrupt or where, as a result of paying dividends, the Company
would be rendered insolvent or bankrupt; or

e thereis any other case set forth by any law.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company and its management are committed to maintain
good corporate governance with an emphasis on the principles of
transparency, accountability and independence to all shareholders.
The Company believes that good corporate governance is essential
for continual growth and enhancement of shareholder’s value. For the
year ended 31 December 2020, due to the effect of COVID-19, the
chairman of the Company is not able to attend meeting with INED
and the Annual General Meeting by person as he stayed in the PRC,
and thus the Company is not able to comply with the requirement
under A.2.7 and E.1.2 of the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix 14 (the “CG
Code”) to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). Besides the above, the Company
has complied with all the other applicable code provisions of the CG
Code. The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance
practices with reference to the latest development in corporate
governance. The Group’s principal corporate governance practices
and compliance with code provisions are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 42 to 61 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITIES

During the Reporting Period, the Group is committed to promoting
the long-term, steady and sustainable development of employees,
environmental protection and social responsibilities on a continuous
basis.

The Group’s environmental policies and performance are set out in
the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 62 to 71
of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee had reviewed with the management the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020, the accounting principles and practices adopted and discussed
auditing, internal controls and financial reporting matters.
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AUDITOR

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been audited by
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited (“SHINEWING”"). A resolution
to re-appoint SHINEWING as our auditor will be submitted for
shareholders’ approval at our forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Mr. YIU Chi To
Executive Director and Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREIRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance (“CG”). The Board believes that adherence
to CG practices will definitely be beneficial to the Company’s
shareholders in the long term. For the year ended 31 December 2020
(“FY2020”), the Company has applied the principles due to the effect
of COVID-19, the chairman of the Company is not able to attend
meeting with INED and the Annual General Meeting by person as he
stayed in the PRC, and thus the Company is not able to comply with
the requirement under A.2.7 and E.1.2 of the CG Code. Besides the
above, the Company has complied with all the other applicable code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules in force at that time.

The Board considers that good CG is central to safeguarding the
interests of the shareholders and enhancing the performance of
the Group. The Board will continuously review and improve the CG
practices and standards of the Company to ensure that business
activities and decision making processes are regulated in a proper
and prudent manner.

With a view to further improving the Company’s CG practices, the
following actions were taken in 2020:

e Appointment of INEDs with appropriate professional accounting
qualifications and financial management experience with
regulatory entities to further broaden the collective knowledge,
perspectives and skills of the Board.

e All members of the Audit Committee are INEDs and all of them
have appropriate professional accounting qualifications and
financial management experience.

e Provision of internal training to the Board through implementing
a continuous professional development programme.

e To adopt Board diversity policy in order to diversify the
composition of the Board so as to recognize and embrace the
benefits of having a diverse Board and to enhance the quality
of its performance. In designing the Board’s composition with
regard to Board diversity, the Board has taken into account
a number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
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CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by Directors. Pursuant to specific
enquiry by the Company, all the Directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standards regarding directors’
securities transactions as set out in the Model Code and its code of
conduct during the FY2020.

THE BOARD

The Board is mainly responsible for the overall strategic development
of and is also responsible for monitoring the financial performance,
risk management and the internal controls of the Group. With a
wide range of expertise and a balance of skills, the INEDs bring
independent judgment on issues of strategic direction, development,
performance and risk management through their contribution at
Board meetings and committee work.

Distinctive Roles of the Board and the Management

The Board has the collective responsibility for leadership and
control of, and for promoting the success of, the Group by directing
and supervising the Group’s affairs. The Board is responsible for
determining the overall strategy and corporate development and
ensuring the business operations are properly monitored. The Board
reserves the right to decide all policy matters of the Group and
material transactions.

While at all times the Board retains full responsibility for guiding and
monitoring the operations of the Group, in discharging its duties,
certain responsibilities are delegated to:

i) the standing Board committees of the Company namely: the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Risk Management Committee. Each
committee’s constitution, powers and duties are clearly defined
by its terms of reference, and the committees are accountable
to the Board;

i) the Chief Executive Officer, being delegated with the day-to-day
management of the businesses of the Group, is accountable to
the Board; and

i) the senior management team of the Group, being delegated
with the responsibilities to deal with daily operational functions,
is answerable to the Board.

The Board regularly reviews its arrangement for delegation of
authority to ensure that such delegation is appropriate in view of the
Company'’s prevailing circumstances and that appropriate reporting
systems are in place.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Appointment and re-election of Directors

All of the Directors have entered into service agreements or letters of
appointment and the details of their terms are set out in the Report
of the Directors on pages 29 to 41 of this annual report. At each
annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest
to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an
annual general meeting at least once every three years. A retiring
Director shall be eligible for re-election and shall continue to act as a
Director throughout the meeting at which he retires. Retiring Directors
are eligible for re-election and re-election of retiring Directors at
the annual general meeting is dealt with by separate resolutions
for each individual Director. Where vacancies arise at the Board,
candidates will be proposed and put forward to the Board by the
Nomination Committee as more fully explained below in the section
on Nomination Committee. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill
a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting after
his appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting.

Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board is composed of five executive
Directors and three INEDs, as shown on page 3 of this annual report.
Biographies of the Company’s Directors are shown on pages 23 to
28 of this annual report.

INEDs ensure the Board accounts for the interests of all shareholders
and considers major issues objectively. The Board has received from
each INED an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board considers all of the INEDs
to be independent. INEDs represent 37.5% of the full Board.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, there is no financial, business
and family relationship among members of the Board except that Mr.
Yiu Chi To is the father of Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu and father-in-law of Mr.
Chen Chung Po and that Mr. Chen Chung Po and Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu
are a married couple.

Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer

The Chairman of the Board (“Chairman”) and the Chief Executive
Officer (“CEQ”) are Mr. Yiu Chi To and Mr. Chen Chung Po,
respectively.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Induction, Information and ongoing Development

All Directors have been kept informed on a timely basis of major
changes that may have affected the Group’s businesses, including
relevant rules and regulations. In addition, the Group has implemented
a continuing development programme to update the Directors (in
particular INEDs) on the macro-economic conditions and business
environment relevant to the Group’s major operations.

In addition to the above, each newly-appointed Director has received
a tailored induction programme, which covered briefing on the
Company’s overview by the CEO, meeting with the management
and the Company’s external legal adviser on directors’ legal role and
responsibilities. To further maximize the contribution from INEDs,
the Company arrange at least one separate meeting between the
Chairman and INEDs each year to address business and related
issues. Due to the effect of COVID-19, the Chairman was not able to
visit Hong Kong to attend such meeting with INEDs. The Company
may arrange such meeting according to the progress of recovery
from effect of COVID-19 or consider to arrange such meeting in video
conference format. Written procedures are also in place for Directors
to seek independent professional advice in performing their duties at
the Company’s expense. No request was made by any Director for
such independent professional advice during the FY2020.

During the FY2020, all Directors have participated in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills in accordance with code provision A.6.5 contained in the CG
Code. Each of the Directors has received a series of training locally or
overseas. Relevant trainings and briefings included, among others:

e development of national and global economy;

° national policy outlook;

e  corporate governance;

° regulatory updates; and

e LED backlight and lighting industry development trend, etc.

2020 Annual Report | £

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELWE

EEE (8

Bl - BERMSEER
FMEERHRETRALYEAEEEEN
BEARIL - RERBRARAR B K
SEERTT —EAREERRE MESE G
PIRBMIENE) B EAAEEEBEISAM
MZEEEBERNAERANRILL -

B buish BUHMETEFRIIESTEH D
BEIRE EFEEaRETRASRNTAER
AR REFZATAR KBRS
BEEMIIMNDEREMEm - B TE—FRT
BUYFMENER  ARBRHEERTIRER
BIYFNELRABSFRIET - REH N
A ES L AAREE mRN B RRITE
2 SETFER2020F REHFBEE B
FAREETHESR  ARFERTRIEZ
R BRTZHABEH  AEBEUNEMLE
ASTERTHEESE EFRETHERSE
NARERREFSRBYEXER  EAH
ARBZN - 2020 F MR EFEIR B EME
ERREABIERER -

R R EA T RIEACS I 20208 K
FENCRAEEHESMEEEERE
MERNE MO MR - SRES
18T — F IR ST - AR
AR

¢« EXNRKEAOUE

.« ERBRONE

. DEEA:

s RIWMEERTE XK

o LEDEXRBATENEREY FF-

45



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELWE

THE BOARD (continued)

Induction, Information and ongoing Development
(continued)

All Directors have also provided to the Company their records of
training attended or fulfilment of ongoing development requirements
for the FY2020, the information of which has been entered in the
register of directors’ training records maintained and updated by
the Company from time to time. The following table summarises the
compliance status of all Directors of the Company in respect of code
provision A.6.5 during the FY2020:

EEE ()
Bl - BB EERE (R

PIBESEHARNRFHEMH T 2020 F MR FE
e HERNEIHTAFEERERO
B HPNESRELTHERARABERET
FEHMMNEFRHIICHELMA - TEERR
#8457 R R ST B A6.5 1R P 2020 FF B I
BEARRZRBEZNETER:

In compliance
with Code A.6.5

Name of Directors EEng BFFHIEA65MKF
Executive Directors HMITESE

Mr. Yiu Chi To (Chairman) hEE L E (FE) v/
Mr. Chen Chung Po (Chief Executive Officer) PREE L ST A (7T AR #,) v
Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu hEmZ L 4
Mr. Chen Wei Wu PRAZE L& v
Ms. Yong Jian Hui HERIEL T+ v
Independent non-executive Directors BAEHTES

Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah BRiS REE L A4 v
Mr. Chen Kwok Wang PREAZ 5 A4 4
Mr. Ho Chi Wai A& B 5 4 v

Role and Responsibilities of the Board EEgZACKEEE

The Board delegates appropriate aspects of its management and
administrative functions to the management. It also gives clear
directions as to the powers of the management, in particular, with
respect to the matters that the management must report back and
obtain prior approval from the Board before making decisions or
entering into any commitments on behalf of the Company. The Board
determines on a regular basis which functions are reserved to the
Board and which are delegated to the management.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Role and Responsibilities of the Board (continued)

The Board exercises a number of duties and powers which include:
e formulating the Group’s long-term strategy;

e approving major acquisitions, disposals and capital investment;
° reviewing operational and financial performance;

e approving financial results and public announcements;

e reviewing the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control;

e authorizing material borrowings;
e setting dividend policy;

e approving appointment of members to the Board and senior
management; and

e  setting the Group’s remuneration policy and human resources
deployment.

To assist in fulfilling its duties and responsibilities, the Board has
established four committees, namely the audit committee, the
remuneration committee, the nomination committee, and the risk
management committee.

Board Processes

All Directors have been regularly updated on governance and
regulatory matters. There is an established procedure for Directors
to obtain independent professional advice at the expense of the
Company in the furtherance of their duties. The Company has also
taken out appropriate director and officer liability insurance against
liabilities that may be incurred as a result of potential legal actions that
might be taken against the Directors.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Board Processes (continued)

The Board meets regularly throughout the year to review the overall
strategies and monitor the operations as well as the financial
performance of the Group. The Chairman mainly focuses on Group
strategies and is responsible for chairing and managing the efficient
operation of the Board and ensuring that all key issues are considered
by the Board in a timely manner. Notice of at least 14 days has been
given to all Directors for all regular Board meetings and the Directors
can include matters for discussion in the agenda whenever they
consider appropriate and necessary. Agenda and accompanying
Board papers in respect of regular Board meetings are despatched
in full to all Directors within a reasonable time before the meeting. and
in any case, at least 3 days before the intended date of the meeting
or such other period as agreed before the meeting. Directors have
to declare their direct or indirect interests, if any, in any proposals
or transactions to be considered by the Board at Board meetings
and abstain from voting as appropriate. Draft minutes of all Board
meetings are circulated to Directors for comment within a reasonable
time prior to finalisation of the same. Final versions of the minutes are
also circulated to Directors for record within a reasonable time after
the Board meeting is held.

Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of Board committees are
kept by the Company Secretary. All Directors have free access to
Board papers and related materials, and are provided with adequate
information in a timely manner, enabling the Board to make informed
decision on matters placed before it. In FY2020, four Board meetings
were held and the attendance details are shown as follows:

EEE (&)

EEEER (@)
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Board Meetings
attended in FY2020

2o EEUBEE
Name of Directors EEHA HEESEETRRE
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Yiu Chi To (Chairman) B A (ERE) 4/4
Mr. Chen Chung Po (Chief Executive Officer) FREE L ST A& (7T A E) 4/4
Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu hEBMEZ T 4/4
Mr. Chen Wei Wu PR 5 A4 4/4
Ms. Yong Jian Hui EEIEL T 4/4
Independent non-executive Directors BAFEBITES
Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah B RE R & 4/4
Mr. Chen Kwok Wang FR B 7= o A 4/4
Mr. Ho Chi Wai RSB E 4/4
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely audit committee,
remuneration committee, nomination committee and risk management
committee. Each of them has specific terms of reference and is
responsible for reviewing matters relating to specific areas and which
are published on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company for advising the Board on such matters. INEDs play a
significant role in these committees to ensure that independent and
objective views are taken. The list of the chairman and members of
each Board committee is set out on page 3 of this annual report. The
Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties.

(a) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company was established in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the purposes
of reviewing and providing supervision over the Group’s financial
reporting process and internal controls.

The Audit Committee comprises all three Independent Non-
executive Directors. Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, was appointed as
Chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the senior management
and external auditors the Group’s significant internal controls
and financial matters (as set out in the Audit Committee’s terms
of reference), including:

° the Group’s interim and annual financial statements with
recommendation to the Board for approval;

e the Group’s compliance with regulatory and statutory
requirements;

e the Group’s financial reporting, internal controls and risk
management;

e formulating the working plan of the internal control audit
department, discussing the review result of internal control
system on a regular basis and reporting to the Board;

e  discussing with the external auditors the nature and scope
of the audit, significant accounting policies and other audit-
related issues;

° connected transactions; and

¢ managing and overseeing the external auditors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

(a)

(b)

a0

Audit Committee (continued)

The Audit Committee is entitled to conduct investigations into
any matter within its terms of reference and is authorised to
obtain independent professional advice if it deems necessary in
discharging its responsibilities.

The Audit Committee is satisfied with the audit scope, process
and effectiveness and independence of the audit conducted
by SHINEWING and has thus recommended the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020 to the Board for its approval.

In FY2020, two meetings were held by the Audit Committee with
100% attendance rate of all members of the Audit Committee.
Draft and final versions of minutes of the meetings were sent
to all members of the Audit Committee for their comment and
records, within a reasonable time after the meeting.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Company comprises all
three INEDs. Mr. Ho Chi Wai, was appointed as Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee makes recommendations to
the Board on the Group’s overall policy and structure for the
remuneration of Directors and senior management, and ensures
that no Director or any of his associates is involved in deciding
his/her own remuneration. The Remuneration Committee also
reviews and approves (i) compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that such compensation
is consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair and
not excessive; and (i) compensation arrangement(s) relating to
dismissal or removal of Director(s) for misconduct to ensure that
such compensation arrangements is consistent with contractual
terms and is otherwise reasonable and appropriate.

The Company has delegated the determination of the
remuneration packages of individual executive Director and
senior management to the Remuneration Committee.

EEEETZREE

(a)

(b)
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

(b) Remuneration Committee (continued)

(c)

In determining the remuneration of Directors, the Remuneration
Committee takes into consideration factors such as salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
of the Directors and the suitability of performance-based
remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee meets to determine the policy
for the remuneration of Directors, assess the performance
of executive Directors and approve the terms of executive
Directors’ service contracts. In FY2020, two meetings were held
by the Remuneration Committee with 100% attendance rate of
all members of the Remuneration Committee.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Company comprises all three
Independent Non-executive Directors. Mr. Chen Kwok Wang,
was appointed as Chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the candidates’ qualification and competence, and making
recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors, so
as to ensure that all nominations are fair and reasonable.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

(c)

92

Nomination Committee (continued)

The responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are:

e to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually;

e  to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

° to establish a formal and transparent procedure for the
appointment or reappointment of Directors;

e to make recommendations to the Board for new
appointments or reappointments of executive and non-
executive Directors;

e to evaluate the performance of Directors and determine if
they should be reappointed; and

e to be responsible for significant issues concerning the
nomination of Directors during the year.

The Nomination Committee meets to discuss the procedures
and criteria which should be adopted by them in nominating
candidates for directorship and has agreed that such criteria
should include the candidates’ professional background,
their experience and their past track record with other listed
companies (if any). In FY2020, two meetings were held by
the Nomination Committee with 100% attendance rate of all
members of the Nomination Committee.

Board Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted a Board Nomination Policy and the
Nomination Committee considers and makes recommendations
to shareholders for the election of appropriate candidates as
Directors at general meetings or appointment of such Directors
to fill casual vacancies.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
(c) Nomination Committee (continued)

Board Nomination Policy (continued)

Selection Criteria

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the
Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate:

1. reputation for integrity;

2. accomplishment and experience in the business in which
the Group is engaged in;

3.  commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest in the business;

4. diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to race,
gender, age (18 years or above), educational background,
professional experience, skills and length of service;

5. qualifications which include professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and experience that are relevant to the
Company’s business and corporate strategy;

6. the number of existing directors and other commitments
that may demand the attention of the candidate;

7. requirement for the Board to have Independent
Non-executive Directors in accordance with the Listing
Rules and whether the candidates would be considered as
independent with reference to the Independence guidelines
set out in Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules;

8. Board Diversity Policy of the Company and any policies
adopted by the Nomination Committee for achieving

diversity on the Board; and

9. such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business.
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tEERRE

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

(d) Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee comprises three members
which include the Chief Executive Officer (“CEOQ”), Chief Financial
Officer (“CFO”) and one INED of the Company. The Board has
appointed Mr. Chen Chung Po (CEO), Mr. Cheung Wai Hung
(CFO) and Mr. Chen Kwok Wang (INED) as members of the Risk
Management Committee. Mr. Chen Chung Po has also been
appointed as the Chairman of the Risk Management Committee.

The primary responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee
include reviewing the Company’s corporate risk management
framework, and the guidelines, policies and procedures for
risk assessment and risk management and reviewing the
effectiveness of the risk management function.

In FY2020, two meetings with attendance of all Risk
Management Committee members were held.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the remuneration paid or payable to the external
auditor, SHINEWING, and its affiliated firms, respect of their audit and
non-audit services for FY2020 are set out below:
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HK$

BT

Audit service BT R 1,045,000
Non-audit services* IEERT ARG 366,000
1,411,000

*

Included in non-audit services were HK$126,000 in relation to services
performed by SHINEWING's affiliated firms.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

During the year, the Group has complied with Principle C.2 of the
CG Code by establishing appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems. The management is responsible for the
design, implementation and monitoring of such systems, while the
Board oversees management in performing its duties on an ongoing
basis. The main features of the risk management and internal control
systems are described in the sections below:

Risk Management System

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages
the risk associated with its business and operations. The system
comprises the following aspects:

° Identification: Identify occurrence and changes in the nature and
extent of risks; identify business objectives and risks that could
affect the achievement of those objectives.

e  Evaluation: Analyze the likelihood and impact of risks and
evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly; assess the Group’s ability
to manage risks.

° Management: Consider the risk response plan, ensure effective
communication with the Board and monitor risks on an ongoing

basis.

Based on the risk assessments conducted in 2020, no significant risk
was identified.
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LEELIRE
RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL [ b B2 K A AR EE 2 (48)
CONTROLS (continued)
Internal Control System MEBEEIE R &
The Company has in place an internal control system which is NAINRE —EAMBEZERS  BHEEEE
compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the ZEgHRAMBZES ([COSOJ)20131EZE
Treadway Commission (“COSO”) 2013 framework. The framework FR  RERFEAEBENETEEN AR
enables the Group to achieve effective and efficient operations, MERMBE - RS S RETER
reliable financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws and FERMERMNER - ZIERBENUTITE

regulations. The components of the framework are shown as follows:

e Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and e RBEE: BASEBEEHEAINEITRME
structures that provide the basis for the Group’s implementation KB —EZR%E - RIETAERE -

of internal control.

e Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for identifying . fpaff : —EAXBHMNFENBRIRE -
and analyzing risks to achieve the Group’s objectives, forming a ’EAu‘Eﬂz RIS ATE R A ER S E 8 B TT
basis for determining how risks should be managed. T TE N {A) B 1R [ fr BE TE B o

e Control Activities: Development of policies and procedures to o EMEE:RBHREMEFRMNEN B
facilitate risk reduction and effective management. R ERRGEREREENEE -

e Information and Communication: Internal and external e EEE®: AHEIFIER AEE
communication to provide the Group with the information RHETRAEEEMTNGER -

needed to carry out day-to-day management.

e Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain o EE:FERERNFE UBERNIE
whether each component of internal control exists and functions. TR EEBEKIT D S FEMET -
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS (continued)

Internal Control System (continued)

In order to enhance the Group’s inside information processing
system and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness
and timeliness of its public disclosures, the Group also adopts and
implements an inside information policy and procedures. A series of
appropriate measures have been taken from time to time to prevent
any breach of the Group’s disclosure requirements, which include:

e  The access of information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who are in
possession of inside information are fully conversant with their
obligations to preserve confidentiality.

° Non-disclosure agreements are in place when the Group
conducts significant negotiations.

e  The Executive Directors are designated persons who speak
on behalf of the Company when communicating with external
parties such as the media, analysts or investors.

Based on the internal control reviews conducted in FY2020, no
significant control deficiency was identified.

Internal Auditors

The Group has an Internal Audit (“IA”) function, which is performed
by professional staff with relevant expertise (such as Certified Public
Accountant). The IA function is independent of the Group’s daily
operation and carries out appraisal of the risk management and
internal control systems by conducting interviews, walkthroughs and
tests of operational effectiveness.

An |IA plan has been approved by the Board. According to the
established plan, review of the risk management and internal control
systems is conducted semi-annually and the results are reported to
the Board via the Audit Committee afterwards.
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tEERRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS (continued)

Effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and ensuring that a review of the effectiveness
of these systems which covers a period of 6 months since the last
review has been conducted semi-annually. Several areas have been
considered during the Board’s reviews, which include but are not
limited to (i) the changes in the nature and extent of significant risks
since the last review, and the Group’s ability to respond to changes
in its business and the external environment; (ii) the scope and
quality of the management’s ongoing monitoring of risks and of the
internal control systems and the work of IA function; (i) the extent
and frequency of communication with the Board in relation to the
result of risk and internal control review; (iv) significant failures or
weaknesses identified and their related implications; (v) and the status
of compliance with the Listing Rules.

The Board, through its reviews and the reviews conducted by
IA function and the Audit Committee, concluded that the risk
management and internal control systems were effective and
adequate. Such systems, however, are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. It is also considered that the resources,
the qualifications and experience of relevant staff were adequate, and
the training programs and budget provided were sufficient to carry
out such work.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF
DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company and comply with the requirement of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (‘Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance”) and the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Listing Rules. The auditors are responsible for forming an
independent opinion, based on the audit, on the financial statements
prepared by the Directors and reporting the opinion solely to the
Company’s shareholders. The Independent Auditor’s Report is set out
on pages 72 to 78 of this annual report.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheung Wai Hung is the Company Secretary of the Company. Al
members of the Board have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary. The appointment and removal of the Company
Secretary are subject to the Board’s approval. In FY2020, Mr. Cheung
has taken the required number of hours of relevant professional
training.

INVESTOR AND SHAREHOLDER RELATION

The Company endeavors to continue maintaining a high level of
transparency in communicating with shareholders and the investment
community at large. Briefings and meetings with institutional investors
and analysts are conducted regularly. The Company is committed to
maintaining an open and effective investor communication policy and
to update investors on relevant information on its business on a timely
manner, subject to relevant regulatory requirements.

In order to ensure effective, clear and accurate communications
with the investors and analysts, all corporate communications are
arranged and handled by the CFO of the Company in accordance
with the established practice and procedures.

Financial information and all shareholder corporate communications
of the Company are made available on the Company’s website at
http://www.waichiholdings.com and updated regularly on a timely
basis.

The Board and the management shall ensure shareholders’ right
and all shareholders are treated equitably and fairly. The Company
has announced and published its interim and annual results and
despatched them to the shareholders in a timely manner, which
is well before the time limits set out in the Listing Rules. Separate
resolutions will be proposed at the general meetings on each major
issue, including the re-election of individual Directors, if any.

The annual general meeting will provide an opportunity for direct
communication between the Board and the Company’s shareholders.
The Company regards the annual general meeting as an important
event in which the Chairman and all Directors will make an effort to
attend. External auditors shall also be invited to attend the Company’s
annual general meeting and are also available to assist the Directors
in addressing queries from shareholders relating to the conduct of
the audit and the preparation and content of the auditors’ report. All
shareholders will be given prior notice on a timely basis together with
a detailed agenda. The Board, according to the Listing Rules, will
conduct voting at the forthcoming AGM by poll. The results of the
Company will be declared at the meeting, and announced timely on
the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for convening an extraordinary
general meeting and putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meeting

Any shareholder(s) individually or collectively holding 10% or more
of the Company’s total issued share capital shall be entitled to
request the Board in writing to convene an extraordinary general
meeting. Upon receiving such request, the Board shall issue a
notice of extraordinary general meeting within 21 days and hold an
extraordinary general meeting within two months from the receipt
of such request. If within 21 days of the receipt of such request the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the shareholder(s)
proposing to convene an extraordinary general meeting in writing may
himself/herself (themselves) convene an extraordinary general meeting
in the same manner.

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to make proposals or
move resolutions at the general meetings under the memorandum
and articles of association of the Company or the laws of the Cayman
Islands. Shareholders who wish to make proposals or move a
resolution may, however, convene a general meeting in accordance
with the preceding paragraph.

Procedures for shareholders to put enquires to the
Board

Shareholders must prove to the Board that they really own the equity
interests of the Company (e.g. by providing shareholding documents
etc.). The Company suggests shareholders should submit their
enquiries in writing (including by email, facsimile and mail) and provide
sufficient contact details so that the Company can process their
enquiries in a proper and timely manner.

Shareholders may contact the Company via the following means:

Address: 6/F, Liven House, 63 King Yip Street, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Email: barry.cheung@waichi.com

Tel No.: (852) 3760 2805

Fax No.: (852) 2341 8144

60

B SRAEF

AABRIRRAERMIRRAZTRH
REZBE

ERLAAMBEARA2ME HITARA
10% A LM ERN —RHZEZRER B
BUEEHABREZEEERIIRRAS
EEenRERMERR  BEDIRAED
BEFHIRREAGNRS YTRNEEEHE
KEM2EARNBITRHINRRERAE  WES
ERENEEABEZRRARNETEER
FERAE EEREAEFIERAEHN
BRAZRA- A BTERFAIRRAS

REAQFEBERRAIANLHERS
AP BEEXUFFBRRRERAE LR
EERIMELBHE AN BEERZEZZRIE
HBHEA PR A IRRATRATE AR -

RROESERHIEANERF

BRENEZTSEAEEEREARR RN
B (MEEFRXHE) - AR EHEBIRE
BEESN (BEREDR FEMBT)REE
AN WIRHEHMBEENNEEEE
AKREESABINENRIE -

BRAABEATHESARARARED
B

Ak BENEB BN ET 3R N4
REGE

BE MU barry.cheung@waichi.com

B (852) 3760 2805

EERE © (852) 2341 8144

Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited | &R ER Q7



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the duties on corporate
governance function as set out below:

e  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

e to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

e to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors; and

e to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

Constitutional documents

Rights of the shareholders are also provided under the articles
of association of the Company. The articles of association of the
Company which was adopted on 27 October 2014 was drafted in line
with provisions of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance which came
into effect on 3 March 2014, the Listing Rules and current corporate
practices. There was no change in the articles of association of the
Company in FY 2020. An up-to-date consolidated version of the
articles of association of the Company is available on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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OVERVIEW

Over the years, Wai Chi Holdings has committed to adhering
to the philosophy of environment-friendly management and
concern for the needs of the staff, enhancing the product quality
and performing social responsibilities. This environmental,
social and governance report will give an overview of each
of the Group members in Hong Kong, Shenzhen, Huizhou
and Yichang for the year ended 31 December 2020 through
various aspects including environmental management, working
environment, supply chain management, product responsibility
and community engagement.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND
RESPONSIBILITIES

a. Qualifications for environmental management

Our Group formulated effective Environmental Management
System and Internal Compliance Manual in order to
identify and comply with the laws and regulations on
environmental protection in countries and regions where
the Group operates its business. The production materials
and products also satisfy the environmental protection
requirements and standards in all the regions where the
suppliers and customers are located. The use of the
Group’s vehicles consumption on water and electricity
is under our strict control. We also reduce the usage
of hazardous chemicals and other materials that are
harmful to the environment. Owing to our manufacturing
green products for customers, we are rewarded the title
of Excellent Supplier in Environmental Protection by our
customers.

We engage independent external evaluation institutions
regularly to conduct professional assessment, such as
sewage inspection, and have obtained internationally-
recognised environmental certifications such as ISO
14001:2004 Environmental Management System
certification and IECQ QC 08000:2005 Hazardous
Substance Process Management certification.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

2. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND
RESPONSIBILITIES (continued)

b.

Energy-saving and emission reduction

The Group strictly monitors each step in production, and
by designing and improving the production process, we
endeavor to minimize and control the amount of gummed
paper, tapes and other packaging materials we use. We
have been enhancing the energy and resources efficiency
of the office, including posting slogans of energy-saving
and emission reduction in each plant. Staffs are required
to switch off all the electrical appliances, before they leave,
with regular reminders and spot checks so that our staff are
highly aware of the environmental protection. We regularly
analyze the consumption of gummed paper and copy
paper, promote double-sided printing, strive for paperless
offices. For green commuting, our staff are encouraged to
take public transports in their daily commute.

There were no non-compliance cases noted in relation to
environmental laws and regulations for the year.

Since the Company did not have either town fuel and
town gas consumption, or motor vehicle during the year,
therefore no emissions data applied.

Development and application of
environmental-friendly products

Environmental protection is the mission of the Group.
We are bold in broadening our scope and innovating
energy-saving products, for instance, energy-saving
lighting product projects in relation to street lights and
sizable public facilities of the government. We proactively
advocate to replace traditional light bulbs with LED lights
in order to increase the lifetime of lamp and save energy
significantly. In the long term, the aforementioned project is
beneficial in cost saving, energy efficiency and reduction in
carbon emission. The Group shipped more than 500,000
energy-saving lighting products in 2020 (2019: more than
400,000).
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3. WORKING ENVIRONMENT AND EMPLOYEE
DEVELOPMENT

64

a.

Human capital and quality training

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has a total of 2,319
employees, the majority of which are between 20 and
40 years old. The Group strictly complies with relevant
laws and regulations to prevent child labour and forced
labour. The Group encourages its employees to improve
their motivation, concentration and innovation. Due to the
epidemic situation, we mainly provided online trainings and
had provided our employees with more than 600 hours of
online training , with a total of more than 7,000 participants
and successfully improved our employees’ professionalism
and proficiency in every aspect. Pursuant to the requirement
of the Listing Rules, all Directors have participated in
continuous professional development by attending training
courses or reading relevant material relating to corporate
governance and regulations to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Group endeavors to attract and
cultivate highly skilled technical personnel with various
benefits and packages. Both Shenzhen Wai Chi and
Huizhou Wai Chi Electronics Company Limited have been
accredited by local governments as high-tech enterprises
and enjoyed corresponding tax concessions.

The Group adopts a monthly performance appraisal system
to evaluate employees’ performance with scientific and
comprehensive indicators, the results of which are used
as important references for employees’ salary adjustment,
promotion and annual bonus rating. We encourage
employees to explore their own strengths. Without being
subject to their positions and profession, we respect
employees’ personal career planning, and support them
in trying and taking up challenges in different areas. The
Group opens up horizontal and vertical career paths, and
always puts the talented and competent people as the first
priority.

The Group’s remuneration policies are formulated on
the performance of employees with reference to the
market condition. For the purpose of ensuring there are
formal and transparent procedures for setting policies
on the remuneration for the Directors, the Remuneration
Committee was established.
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3. WORKING ENVIRONMENT AND EMPLOYEE 3. IRIREBEREIERE(E)
DEVELOPMENT (continued)

a. Human capital and quality training a ADBEARAREZEHIEE ()
(continued)

Staff Composition BTHAR

Employees’ Age and Gender Distribution EFRRIEFIZ M
2019
—T-NEF
Age Group FHE R (g g
0-15 0-15 0% 0%
16-20 16-20 10% 11%
21-30 21-30 37% 37%
31-40 31-40 28% 32%
41-50 41-50 20% 16%
51-60 51-60 5% 4%
=61/>61 =61/>61 0% 0%
Total wEt 100% 100%

2020 2019
kS 222 —E-hF

Male Female Male Female
By gender BRI 5 B¢ e St Z
Under employment ZHEM 49% 51% 45% 55%
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3. WORKING ENVIRONMENT AND EMPLOYEE
DEVELOPMENT (continued)

66

b.

Workplace safety

The Group is committed to providing employees a safe
and healthy working environment, abiding by the Labor
Law of the People’s Republic of China, Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Protection of Rights and Interests
of Workers, and other applicable laws and regulations.
The Group conducts strict and effective management with
respect to personnel, machinery, objects and operating
methods in the production sites, carries out Safety Month
activities on a regular basis and announces the inspection
and evaluation results to all employees.

All new employees will be given a Staff Manual to ensure
that they are informed in a timely manner of the Company’s
general information, regulations and corporate culture
etc. We regularly review and update the contents of the
Staff Manual to keep up with the Company’s strategy and
development plan, and announce such contents timely
on the Group’s internal websites immediately after any
changes are made. In addition to making timely payments
for the pension and insurance on a pro-rata basis as
required by law, the Group also regularly purchases
commercial accident insurance for its employees.
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Care for our employees

Each subsidiary of the Group sets up a labor union. Funds
are appropriated to such unions on a regular basis for
labor union activities, collection and resolution of staff’s
suggestions and requests in order to protect interests
of individual employees. Collective birthday celebration
activities are organised regularly for the employees,
featuring delicious meals, entertainment programs and
birthday presents. A special fund for caring donations is
set up by the Group and accrued monthly to help staff in
need, making them feel cared for and developing a sense
of belonging.
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3. WORKING ENVIRONMENT AND EMPLOYEE
DEVELOPMENT (continued)

d.

Employee health and safety

The outbreak of the novel coronavirus disease (Covid-19)
has become the

latest challenge for the health authorities in Hong Kong and
Mainland China in the past year, the Group has devised
several policies to protect its staff:

The Group issued a series of internal rules covering
every aspect of anti-epidemic measures, including the
managing of workshops and dorms, departmental
responsibilities, and procedures to handle health-
related crisis;

All public areas and the factory would be disinfected
on a weekly basis;

Providing masks, hand sanitiser, 75% alcohol
disinfectant, and protective gloves to all staffs on a
daily basis;

Requesting all staffs returning to work from other
regions to present mandatory Health Code and
monitoring their health conditions;

Requesting each staff to report their health status
everyday; and

Requesting each Department Head to monitor the
health status of their staff on a timely basis.

There were no non-compliance cases noted in relation to
health and safety laws and regulations during the year.
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4. SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

a.

Supplier relationships

We maintain good communication and stable cooperation
with the suppliers so as to ensure a highly-efficient supply
chain operation. The quality, timeliness and reliability of the
products are guaranteed by an independent raw material
quality inspection department, along with our agreement
with suppliers regarding schedule delivery and warranty.

ERP system

All the information of the suppliers are maintained in the
ERP system. A supplier assessment mechanism is in
place to perform a strict selection of suppliers in respect
of qualification, material quality, intellectual property
qualification and price in order to ensure the suppliers meet
the production standards in terms of raw material quality,
price and production capacity.

Price management mechanism

A reasonable and effective price management mechanism
with a quotation team to review material prices is set up,
in which price comparison and monitoring for each kind
of materials is conducted for a timely reminder and a
periodic summary, so as to make the procurement fair and
transparent and to maintain healthy competition.

5. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

68

a.

Qualification certificates

We have been granted several qualification certificates,
including 1ISO 9001:2008, ISO 14001:2004 of Quality and
Environment Management System Certificates, and 1ISO/
TS 16949:2009 of Quality Control System Certificates. By
stringent and careful implementation of the management
and control systems, the Group maintains an excellent
standard in the industry for the quality and reliability of its
product.
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5. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY (continued)
b. Product R&D

In response to the rapid technological advancement in the
LED backlight and LED lighting industries, the Group has
been maintaining strong R&D capabilities, upgrading the
skills required in the production processes and actively
improving the production technologies. The Group’s R&D
centre has core competitiveness in the industry, and its
professional and dedicated R&D team has developed on its
own more than 1,000 LED backlight and lighting products,
which have obtained 185 (2019: 151) patents in China
and Hong Kong. Some products have been recognised by
the Science, Industry, Trade and Information Technology
Commission of Shenzhen Municipality as “Independent and
Creative Products of Shenzhen”.

Quality control

The Group has fully adopted quality management system,
and every employee involved is responsible for the
product quality. We strive to achieve flawless and smooth
procedures from understanding customers’ needs to
providing after-sales services. The Group has purchased
a series of advanced production and testing equipment
with professional technical engineers, committing to
improving production technology and enhancing output
efficiency and product passing rate. There are strict quality
control processes from procurement, design, production
to storage. Such processes include incoming materials
management, sample reliability testing, quality inspection
during the process, ultimate quality control and quality
assessment experiment for the final products.

Through the quality assessment experiment, the yield rate
was improved and the product return rate was maintained
at a low level of 1.39% in 2020 (2019: 1.38%).
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5. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

d.

After-sales service and information
maintenance

We undertake the responsibility for each product and
provide customers with warranty and replacement services.
After the expiry of warranty period, we can continue
to provide maintenance services and only charge for
necessary costs. We have been well-received for providing
excellent products and services to our customers. There
are no substantial complaints, returns or reworks arising
from product quality problems during the year.

We strive to protect customer information. All customer
information is maintained in ERP system. Different
management and operation permissions are assigned
to each process and position. The system information is
updated in a timely manner, with layered audit and offsite
backup to ensure the information of every customer can be
properly kept and maintained.

6. ANTI-CORRUPTION

70

a.

Inspection mechanism

The Group pursues business ethics and is committed
to operating with integrity. Any form of bribery, fraud,
extortion, corruption and money laundering is strictly
prohibited. The Group has established an inspection
mechanism to regularly scrutinise the implementation of
regulations in each department, and is devoted to reducing
adverse effects on the day-to-day business activities
caused by improper operation and supervision.

Additionally, the Group has implemented an effective
Internal Manual on inside information or price sensitive
information and provided separate channels for the
reporting of any suspected business irregularities, frauds
and corruptions. During the year, no incident of corruption
was reported within the Group. There was no non-
compliance in relation to corruption or money laundering
related laws and regulations during the year.
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6. ANTI-CORRUPTION (continued)

b. Internal audit

The Group has established an internal audit department
which is directly accountable to the Independent Audit
Committee and monitors and improves all procedures of
each member company in the Group, to keep the operation
system and procedures of the Company consistent with
its operational development and changes. The Group has
established a reporting and complaint mechanism and
opened internal and external channels for whistle-blowing
in order to maintain fairness, equity and high standards of
the operational mechanism.

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

We are committed to social responsibility and the contributions
to environmental protection through the development of new
LED energy-saving products. We actively participated in the
government’s street lamps replacement project and popularized
the positive effects on saving resources by replacing the
traditional lamps with LED lamps.

In March 2020, when the COVID-19 outbreak started to shatter
Hong Kong’s less fortunate communities, we cooperated with
Pei Ho Counterparts to donate face masks to the ones in
need. As a technology-oriented corporation, we care about
advancement in modemn science and technologies as much as
traditional cultural heritage.

SUMMARY

The Group adheres to the corporate culture of “bring light into
life”, and has been persistent in making contribution to the
development of global lighting industry with superb technology,
reasonable prices and quality services. We strive for excellence
and continuous innovation, aim to create more environmentally
friendly products, commit to the practice of environmental
protection, promote energy conservation and bring about
benefits to customers, shareholders, employees and the whole
society.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIUKBERE

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F., Lee Garden One

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

feikPha

Shineﬂ)mg}

TO THE MEMBERS OF WAI CHI HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wai Chi
Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
79 to 182, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”)
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Valuation of inventories

Refer to Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements and the

accounting policies on page 102.

The key audit matter
FARERSE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMREBELRNARERRER

As at 31 December 2020, the Group maintained
inventories of HK$220,710,000.

We have identified the valuation of inventories as a
key audit matter because of their significance to the
consolidated financial statements and the involvement
of significant management judgement and estimation in
identifying inventories with net realisable values that are
lower than their carrying values, and obsolescence, with
reference to the selling prices and condition of inventories.
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Our audit procedures were designed to assess management
estimations and judgements on the assessment of net
realisable value of inventories and identification of obsolete
items based on their subsequent usage and selling prices
subsequent to the end of the reporting period and current
market conditions.

We have assessed the net realisable value and utilisation of
inventories subsequent to the end of the reporting period
and discussed with the management in respect of the
adequacy of the allowance made by the management based
on subsequent usage and sales, ageing analysis and current
market conditions. We have challenged the assumptions and
critical judgements used by the management by assessing the
reliability of the management’s past estimates.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Valuation of trade receivables

Refer to Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements and the

accounting policies on pages 103 to 112.

The key audit matter
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMRBLRNARERREE

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had trade receivables
of HK$566,740,000, representing 38% of the Group’s total
current assets.

Allowance for impairment of trade receivables is based on
lifetime expected credit losses model, which is estimated
by taking into account the credit loss experience and
forward-looking information including both current and
forecast general economic conditions.

We have identified valuation of trade receivables as a key
audit matter because the impairment assessment of trade
receivables involved a significant degree of management
estimation and may be subject to management bias.

M2020F12 4318
B 18

& &£ B 1 FE Uk BE 34 566,740,000
EEERSEERERN38%-

FEUSRFURERBNENFERRREEHERAEL
MBI EEERIET MEEBERERRAEEER (2
EHEEMMBRBEEENRR) REESH -

BRERERFREFE S RERERE GG REERER

BEHRIRRR - BAIC SRR ARG ERR A —HERE
%EIA -

74

Qur audit procedures were designed to assess the
assumptions and judgements of the Group’s expected credit
losses model on impairment assessment of trade receivables.

We have assessed the reasonableness of management’s
estimates for impairment allowance by examining the
information used by management to form such judgements,
including testing the accuracy of the historical default data and
evaluating whether the historical loss rates are appropriately
adjusted based on current economic conditions and forward-
looking information.

We have also inspected cash received from debtors
subsequent to the end of the reporting period relating to trade
receivables balance as at 31 December 2020 on a sample
basis.
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS OF THE
COMPANY AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors of the Company determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B MRS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion, solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B MRS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Chui Yiu Cheong.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chui Yiu Cheong

Practising Certificate Number: PO7219

Hong Kong
26 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
HERaER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020512 A31 B IFFE

2020 2019
2020 £ 20194
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Ff 5% FExT FHET
Revenue ¢ -C ] 7 1,395,888 2,214,974
Cost of sales $HE A (1,197,471) (1,986,007)
Gross profit EX 198,417 228,967
Other income HadA 7 20,707 21,148
Selling and distribution expenses HE RO HMAX (25,356) (25,553)
Administrative expenses THR X (84,934) (101,597)
Other gains and losses H bz K E5 18 9 4,939 (2,303)
Research and development expenses a2 (54,978) (50,812)
Finance costs BB AR 10 (28,094) (29,681)
Profit before tax R i A0 A 30,701 40,169
Income tax credit (expense) FrisfiE e () 11 329 (3,021)
Profit for the year FEFR 12 31,030 37,148
Profit for the year attributable to: AT AR -
— Owners of the Company A VNEIEZEPN 30,958 37,148
- Non-controlling interest — IR R 72 -
31,030 37,148
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Earnings per share sRETR
Basic and diluted EARRE#E 15 0.14 0.17
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FeiRaRAMZEEaE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020%F12 A31 B IFFE

2020 2019

2020 20194

HK$’000 HK$'000

Ti&xT FH T

Profit for the year FEFHE 31,030 37,148

Other comprehensive income that willnotbe HEETFSTEH/ETES

reclassified subsequently to profit or loss: R HE 2 EEs -
Fair value gain on equity instruments designated at 8§ FE#Z A /o BT A E At 2 HE U
fair value through other comprehensive income HENEETAMNALERS 448 -

Other comprehensive income (expense) that HETREEHIERIESH
may be reclassified subsequently to profitor Ht ZHE XS (FAx%) :

loss:
Exchange differences arising on translation of MEGINETSEERIE N E58

foreign operations 42,688 (20,980)
Other comprehensive income (expense) for the year & H b 2 m W% (F %) 43,136 (20,980)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEEEBALRE 74,166 16,168
Total comprehensive income for the year LATATEEFEZEREA

attributable to: HFE -

— Owners of the Company . WAEIE 2PN 73,996 16,168

— Non-controlling interest —JEVERR A 170 -

74,166 16,168
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MBIk

As at 31 December 2020 7202012 831H

2020 2019
2020 £ 20194
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Ff 5% Ti&xT FET
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BREk&E 16 248,072 245,520
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17 62,304 50,776
Deposit paid for acquisition of property, EBEWE  BERRE
plant and equipment BfZEe 52,898 5,582
Deferred taxation IEERIIR 27 8,312 8,455
Deposits with bank RITIFER 23 178,223 -
Financial assets at fair value through profit 2 QAR EFFABRZ
or loss TRLEE 18 3,510 -
Financial assets at fair value through other 2R R EFFAEMEE
comprehensive income WENEeaEE 19 3,683 -
557,002 310,333
Current assets MENEE
Inventories 5E 20 220,710 211,584
Trade receivables JE L BR 3R 21 566,740 454,279
Bills receivables R EE 21 157,675 92,069
Prepayments, deposits and other A HIE - ke RE
receivables fth & LR IR 22 151,101 262,668
Pledged bank deposits BEEARITHER 23 277,267 176,963
Bank balances and cash RITAEBR KRR ® 23 101,520 101,816
1,475,013 1,299,379
Current liabilities REAE
Trade payables FERTER R 24 295,154 241,923
Bills payables R RE 24 545,268 206,147
Other payables and accruals HEmEAFERERER 24 35,967 55,812
Contract liabilities BRERE 25 6,210 8,518
Bank and other borrowings RITREAMERK 26 346,569 288,171
Lease liabilities HEBE 17 8,974 4,539
Income tax payables RS 5,912 9,294
1,244,054 904,404
Net current assets mEBEEFRE 230,959 394,975
Total assets less current liabilities REERRBAE 787,961 705,308
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FEeMEKAR

As at 31 December 2020 72020512 A31H

2020 2019
2020 £ 2019
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
Bff 5% FET FHET
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Lease liabilities HERE 17 15,419 10,343
Corporate bond NEESH 28 1,896 1,856
Government grants BT B 29 18,398 17,420
Deferred taxation JRAERTIE 27 381 -
36,094 29,619
Net assets BEERE 751,867 675,689
Capital and reserves BARK#E
Share capital &N 30 2,168 2,168
Reserves fFE 747,687 673,521
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AR Rl # G A FEE RS 749,855 675,689
Non-controlling interests SEIE IR T 2,012 -
Total equity MRS 751,867 675,689
The consolidated financial statements on pages 79 to 182 were FTIIOE1B2 B WA & M B MK B R2021 43
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 RopR&EESHERKETE  WHTI
March 2021 and are signed on its behalf by: REEE -
Mr. Yiu Chi To Mr. Chen Chung Po
kR & PREEZE &
Director Director
EE EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GeEQEDE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020%12 531 H IFF[E

Attributable to owners of the Company

AYNGIE 2N A
Share Share Statutory ~ Translation Merger Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
BE RGEE  AERE  EXRE  ANEE  REME CE

HK§000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK§000  HK$'000
T T T T TR T T

(Note a) (Note b)
(Mta) (M3tD)
At 1 January 2019 R2019F1 A1H 2,168 331,977 56,771 (31,369) 34,561 265,413 659,521
Profit for the year FEFE - - - - - 37,148 37,148
Other comprehensive expense  FE £ 2 E %
for the year
- exchange differences arising  — R BN EBEE
on translation of foreign MEHZE
operations - - - (20,980) - - (20,980)
Total comprehensive (expense) F& 2 (F%) A
income for the year Bg - - - (20,980) - 37,148 16,168
Transfer g - - 4818 - - (4,818) -
At 31 December 2019 R2019F 12 A31 B 2,168 331,977 61,589 (52,349) 34,561 297,743 675,689
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
ReHREEER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F12 831 H I FfE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AATREAEL
Non-
Share Share  Statutory  Translation  Revaluation Merger  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interest equity
ke RGEE  EERE  EXRE  EdRG  AfiG  REAR At FERES Bigs
HK$ 000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
Tin Tin Tin Tin Tirn Tin Tix Tin Tirn Tin
(Note a) (Note )
(hita (Ko
A1 January 2020 R0E1A1A 2,168 331917 61,589 (52,349) - 34,561 297,743 675,689 - 675,689
Proft for the year FEAE - - - - - - 30,958 30,058 7 31,030
Other comprehensive EREMRERY
expense for the year
- fairvlue gain on —KEBEAL
equty investment EEPNR
designated at 2ENEL
fair vale through RiEkEL
other comprehensive DMfEhs
income - - - - 8 - - “8 - “8
-echangediferences  ~REENER
arising on franglation EEMES
offoreign operations EE - - - 42,590 - - - 42,590 9 42,688
Total comprehensive income EF2EHA
for the year a% - - - 42,590 448 - 30,958 73,99 170 74,166
Capital nfecton by FAERTE
non-controling interests - - - - - - - - 1,336 1,336
Transaction vith non- R REREN
controling nterests k] - 170 - - - - - 170 506 676
Transfer e - - 49 - - - (349) - - -
At31 Decomber200 20205
128318 2,168 332,147 61,938 (9,759) 448 34,561 328,352 749,855 2012 751,867

Notes: FfsE -

(@) As stipulated by regulations in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), (@) EARAME (TRE)) ZRRTEAD AR
the Company’s subsidiaries established and operated in the PRC are required ﬁX N REENME Q al %Eﬂ s 5@ ﬁﬁ AR
to appropriate 10% of their after-tax profit (after offsetting prior year losses) &% MEE %\ ﬁ H %\fﬂ EAE (R & FE
as determined in accordance with the applicable laws and regulations in BiRE) 10%5%%15%1% B EREERER Eﬁ
the PRC, to statutory reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the WEQETEHEQ$§P% ° W E I RBARD IR
registered capital of the relevant subsidiaries. The transfer to this reserve BB T AR MR o
must be made before distribution of a dividend to equity owners.

(o)  Merger reserve represented the difference between the nominal value of the b)) EUEHEREEESHRENRBARNE

84

issued capital of subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a group reorganisation
over the consideration paid for acquiring these subsidiaries.

In 2013, as part of the pre-listing reorganisation, the Company issued 135
ordinary shares of HK$1,000,000 each which, through its subsidiaries, were
used to subscribe for new shares issued and allotted by Wai Chi Group
(HK) Limited and became the holding company of the Group. The difference
between the proceeds from the issuance of shares and the then share capital
and capital reserve subscribed was recognised in the merger reserve.

BHTRAEERRKRBEZSHEARESNAE
HZHE -

R2013F kA EMAIEAN —B5H - AAF
3% 1B H B B R 7] % 17 135 A% 4 A% M {& 1,000,000
BITHLRERK  BIERBHETSEERRARE
TREENFTRD WK ARNEBOIERAR -
BIIRMDABSREAERENERBRARER
HERNZENEHHEEER -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HERaRER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020%12 531 H IFF[E

2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$’000 HK$’'000
Ti&xT FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REFTH
Profit before tax B 25 BT AR 30,701 40,169
Adjustments for: FHEDATEIA
Finance costs BF TR 7N 28,094 29,681
Bank interest income HRITHRE YA (3,605) (8,241)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y- BELEBITE 45,261 43,207
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 7,710 2,593
Government grants T 76 B (11,707) (8,102)
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - WE REE R
plant and equipment, net JRER - (23)
Loss on write-off of property, plant and equipment ~ #fi$5¥% - = LR EEE 123 286
(Reversal of) impairment loss recognised in respect (1 [B]) 5t & U BF 70 & H fth &
of trade and other receivables W IBRER BB E S (5,814) 3,123
Reversal of provision of inventories BEFERE (1,920) (8695)
Provision of inventories FERE 1,625 45
Loss from changes in fair value of financial assets I AREFAEBZZ L /E
at fair value through profit or loss EZAnEZEEE 1,170 -
Operating cash flows before movements in EEESEEAN
working capital REFRERE 91,638 101,873
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERA (Em) 738 (26,466)
Increase in trade receivables JiE U BR SR 2 A0 (80,363) (60,767)
(Increase) decrease in bills receivables e R (BEh0) R (56,484) 7,869
Decrease (increase) in prepayments, deposits and ~ FE A ~ e R H A UL
other receivables FRIER A (g an) 118,959 (76,752)
Increase in trade payables JE 1~ BR ZRIE 0 39,322 62,195
Increase in bills payables FET R IE AN 218,102 49,510
Decrease in contract liabilities EHEERD (2,571) (71,947)
(Decrease) increase in other payables Hib B RIERTERER (B )
and accruals 8 0 (19,964) 11,638
Cash generated from (used in)operations REFREL (FTA)R: 309,377 (2,847)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BRI EMSH (2,377) (4,090)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATING RETHAEE(FA)RE
ACTIVITIES b} 307,000 (6,937)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HeEReiER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £ Z20205F12 A31H IFFE

2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETE
(Increase) decrease in deposits with bank RITAF R (3E) R/ (168,668) 79,481
Placements of pledged bank deposits GFABEBIRITFER (132,096) (571,144)
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment BEWME  BENME&E (37,709) (54,898)
Deposit paid for acquisition of property, plantand WM - BE RRED R
equipment Be (44,500) (6,677)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value through BEERAABEFABRZ
profit or loss TREE (4,680) -
Purchase of financial assets at fair value through BERAALBEFAEMEER
other comprehensive income mZEREE (3,235) -
Proceeds from disposal of financial asset at fair HEZRARER AELE
value through profit or loss LB BB EMSHIE - 152,182
Interest received B U F B 1,912 8,241
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEME - BER&E
equipment FriS 308 5,267 3,190
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits RIS ERRITER 47,624 520,458
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM INVESTING RETE (FTA)FEL
ACTIVITIES RE T8 (336,085) 131,833
FINANCING ACTIVITIES A& EE
New bank and other borrowings raised FTIBIRTT R E M SR 635,878 631,445
Government grants received 2 WU 7 B 11,571 7,965
Capital injection received from non-controlling IR EREE
interests 1,336 -
Transaction with non-controlling interests ERIEE IR A TR ) 506 -
Repayment of bank and other borrowings EERITREMER (591,965) (652,069)
Interest paid BAFE (27,359) (29,641)
Repayment of lease liabilities EHEHEARE (5,829) (3,437)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING BETEMELE (FA)R2
ACTIVITIES B 24,138 (45,737)

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND ReRFLZEWCEL)

CASH EQUIVALENTS EhnHEEE (4,947) 79,159
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS MA1ENEREREALEEY

AT 1 JANUARY 101,816 24,213
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EREFFHNTE 4,651 (1,556)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATTHEEND RM12H31H&REMNESER
OF 31 DECEMBER, represented by bank HE&EEY - BiERITHER
balances and cash REL 101,520 101,816
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8 MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020%12 531 H IFF[E

GENERAL

Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) is a
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law of the
Cayman lIslands on 16 August 2013 and its shares are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) on 18 November 2014. Its ultimate
controlling party is Mr. Yiu Chi To. The address of the registered
office of the Company is Offshore Incorporations (Cayman)
Limited, Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and the principal place of
business of the Company is 6th Floor, Liven House, 63 King Yip
Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 37.

The functional currency of the Company and the subsidiaries
incorporated in Hong Kong are Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”) while
that of the subsidiaries established in the PRC are Renminbi
(“RMB”). For the purpose of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the Company and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) adopted HK$
as its presentation currency.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) and the
following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) which
are effective for the Group’s financial year beginning 1 January
2020:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business
Amendments to HKAS 1

and HKAS 8

Definition of Material

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The application of the Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRSs and the amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material effect on the
Group’s financial performance and positions for the current
and prior periods and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and related
Amendments®
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to Conceptual Framework®

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but
not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 (note)  Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current and the related
amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5(2020) Presentation
of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause®

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use®

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract®
Amendments to HKFRS Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, Phase 2!

HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendment to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions*
Amendment to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2018-2020 cycle®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the results and the financial position of the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments,
which are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period.

Historical cost is generally based on fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants in the principal (or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date under current market
conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. Details of fair value measurement are explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved where the Group has: (i) the power over
the investee; (i) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and (jii) the ability to use its power
over the investee to affect the amount of the Group’s returns.

The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of these elements of control stated above.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control of the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss of subsidiaries are attributed to the owners
of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to owners
of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised goods
to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods. Specifically, the Group uses a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

e  Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
e  Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
e  Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e  Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

e  Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies
a performance obligation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

The Group recognised revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods underlying
the particular performance obligation is transferred to customers.

A performance obligation represents a good (or a bundle of
goods) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods that are
substantially same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

e The customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

e The Group’s performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the asset is created and
enhanced; or

e The Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct goods.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a
contract with a customer, excludes discounts and sales related
taxes.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for goods that the Group has transferred to
a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a
receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration from the customer.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented.

The Group recognised revenue from the sales of goods
including (i) Light-Emitting Diode (“LED”) backlight; (ii) LED
lighting; (iii) high-tech electronic components and products; and
(iv) semiconductor memory chips.

Sales of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are
delivered to location specified by the customers and accepted
by the customers, which is the point of time the customer
has the ability to direct the use of the products and obtain
substantially all of the remaining benefits of the products.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services
to a customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its
promise is a performance obligation to provide the specified
goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to
arrange for those goods or services to be provided by the other
party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or
service before that good or service is transferred to a customer.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Principal versus agent (continued)

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to arrange
for the provision of the specified good or service by another
party. In this case, the Group does not control the specified
good or service provided by another party before that good or
service is transferred to the customer. When the Group acts
as an agent, it recognises revenue in the amount of any fee or
commission to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for
arranging for the specified goods or services to be provided by
the other party.

Leasing

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys a right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

The Group as lessee

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease,
at inception of the contract. The Group recognises a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease
arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term
leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option) and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the
Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasing (continued)

The Group as lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date, the Group measures lease liability
at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at that date. The lease payments are discounted by using the
interest rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprise fixed lease payments (including in-substance
fixed payments).

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using the
effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount
to reflect the lease payments made.

Lease liability is remeasured (and with a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever:

e the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using revised discount rate.

e alease contract is modified and the lease modification is
not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the
lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments and using a revised discount rate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasing (continued)

The Group as lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the
corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or before
the commencement date and any initial direct costs.

Right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. They are
depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful
life of the underlying asset. If a lease transfers ownership of the
underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that
the Group expects to exercise a purchase option, the related
right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the
underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement
date of the lease.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group applies HKAS 36 to determine whether a right-of-
use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified impairment
loss as described in the “impairment losses on tangible assets”

policy.

When the Group obtains ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term upon exercising purchase
options, the carrying amount of the relevant right-of-use asset is
transferred to property, plant and equipment.

Sales and leaseback transactions

The Group acts as a seller-lessee

The Group applies the requirement of HKFRS 15 to assess
whether sale and leaseback transaction constitute a sale by
the Group as a seller-lessee. For a transfer that does not satisfy
the requirements as a sale, the Group accounts for the transfer
proceeds as other borrowings within the scope of HKFRS 9.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises
as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate. Specifically, government grants whose primary
condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or
otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred
income in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis
over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to stage-managed retirement benefit schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
services entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in
respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in
the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that
service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits
are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020%12 531 H IFF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £ Z20205F12 A31H IFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on the tax rate (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first determines
whether the tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use
assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to application of the
initial recognition exemption.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020%12 531 H IFF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes other than construction in progress
as described below are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Ownership interests in leasehold land and buildings
When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the
allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use assets”
in the consolidated statement of financial position. When
the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between non-
lease building element and undivided interest in the underlying
leasehold land, the entire properties are classified as property,
plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with
the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties are classified
to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £ Z20205F12 A31H IFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Ownership interests in leasehold land and buildings
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with a maturity of three months or less.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of bank balances and cash
as defined above.

Investment in a subsidiary

Investment in a subsidiary is stated in the statement of financial
position of the Company at cost less accumulated impairment
loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020%12 531 H IFF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value, except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”)) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in
their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending
on the classification of the financial assets. Financial assets are
classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at
amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI”) and FVTPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and
the Group’s business model for managing them.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £ Z20205F12 A31H IFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets subsequently at amortised
cost if both of the following conditions are met:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment.

Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period.

For financial assets, the effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) excluding expected credit losses (“ECL”), through
the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt
instrument on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020%12 531 H IFF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Amortised cost and effective interest method (continued)

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which
the financial asset is measured at initial recognition minus the
principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using
the effective interest method of any difference between that
initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss
allowance. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the
amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss
allowance.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for debt instruments measured subsequently at amortised
cost. For financial assets other than purchased or originated
credit- impaired financial assets, interest income is calculated
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in
the “Other income” line item (Note 7).

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOC/

On initial recognition, the Group may make an irrevocable
election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to designate
investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI. Designation
at FVTOCI is not permitted if the equity investment is held for
trading or if it is contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they
are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the revaluation reserve. The cumulative gain
or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the
equity investments, instead, they will be transferred to retained
profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £ Z20205F12 A31H IFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI (continued)

Dividends from investments in equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established, unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of
part of the cost of the investment. Dividends are included in the
investment and other income in profit or loss.

Financial assets at FV/TPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured
at amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss to the extent that they are not part
of a designated hedging relationship. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in the “other gains
and losses” line item. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in Note 6.

This category contains investment in a life insurance policy. The
Group accounts for the investment at FVTPL.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on investments
in debt instruments that are measured at amortised costs. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective
financial instrument.

106

FEE R E)

Bt T A ()
TMEE (8

EERBIE LT B AEM T H W s
ZHEm T A ()

B A E RS RN - s
TERENBRERBDTER  BRIFKR
EREAREE B RERA BB
AEZAREREMEAL -

AREGA RGBT HEE
Tﬁ WA BRI A ARER A
Hp2ERAFEREN SR EERN
NREFABSAE -

BERKR HAREFABRGELZE
E,JZE’A/‘ME.#E AR A2 ER
sk B RN 1B 5 P RE AR L VB 45 TE # 0
BE -EEETHEINDUEXERFE
a%%‘tirﬂé?qﬂﬁ ) (] P B A
B Wt ATEM RS REBERIER -2
MET;zFﬁEGﬁfr LE 5 ETE

30

| %
unxﬂkr

LERBRERASREBE ZIRE - A&
@H—JE%&QT /ufﬁqu)\TEﬁﬁ)\HE °

AREBERZHEEXAFTEZESFTAR
EHABHREEBRZBERE - ALY
FEEBESENSHEAYEN UK
REERBREVNIEEREHETRERN
KzEE -

Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited | {E&ZERER AT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020%12 531 H IFF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.
The ECL on these financial assets are estimated using a
provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the
reporting date, including time value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12-months ECL, unless when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increase in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or effort.

2020 Annual Report | £

FEE R E)

B T A (48)
cRMEE (8)

T EERE (E)

AEE B ERERRERFENEY
FEBE -ZEeREEZHEBEED
BOERAKBEZBEEEBRERE
R EREART  YREBAFERE
EREBERIARARES B HRRZ
BRI MIERT R (BRESERREE - &
) RS H R -

SAREMERMTAMNS  ARENE
BERT —_EAEHEEBENEEE
B BIFEERRBVIAERARBEE
B AASEERFENEREERS
B-AAELAEATERRMEERE
THi8F B VA HE R A SR EE A 3Z L) B AT A
SRR EDEEREM -

1= BJR 2 E 2 18 0
FEERTANGEERRES B MKHHE
RURBERNE  AEBRLRREE
AR TAZELZANERER LS
HREHEMTAEZRLEEONER - 1F
HZAHEE > NEEEES B ERK
BREEREUEHN BREAMNET
BERAXBZNEANESHBERR R
HIBE B R o

107



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £ Z20205F12 A31H IFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

e  existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

e significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

e an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020%12 531 H IFF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if () the financial instrument
has a low risk of default, (i) the borrower has a strong capacity
to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term,
and (jii) adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability
of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
The Group considers a debt instrument to have low credit risk
when the asset has external credit rating of ‘investment grade’
in accordance with the globally understood definition or if an
external rating is not available, the asset has an internal rating
of ‘performing’. Performing means that the counterparty has a
strong financial position and there are no past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk
before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of
default for internal credit risk management purposes as historical
experience indicates that receivables that meet either of the
following criteria are generally not recoverable:

e when there is a breach of financial covenants by the debtor;
or

° information developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £ Z20205F12 A31H IFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Definition of default (continued)

The Group considers that default has occurred when a financial
asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows
of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

e  significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
e abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

° it is becoming probable that the debtor will undergo
bankruptcy or other financial restructuring; or

e the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there
is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off may still
be subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate.
Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020%12 531 H IFF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of
the probability of default and loss given default is based on
historical data adjusted by forward-looking information. As for
the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented
by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the previous
reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date
that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Group
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL at the current reporting date, except for assets for which
simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset
and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing
for the proceeds received.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £ Z20205F12 A31H IFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised
in profit or loss. In addition, on derecognition of an investment
in equity instrument which the Group has elected on initial
recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve
is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to retained
profits.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised
cost

Financial liabilities that are not (i) contingent consideration of
an acquirer in a business combination, (i) held-for-trading, or
(iii) designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020%12 531 H IFF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised
cost (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the
amortised cost of a financial liability.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed,
is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generation units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £ Z20205F12 A31H IFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets
(continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable
and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-generating
units, including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of cash-
generating units, with the recoverable amount of the group of
cash-generating units. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on
a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit or the group of cash-generating units. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of cash-
generating units. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or the cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020%12 531 H IFF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the year in which it is incurred.

Fair value measurement

When measuring fair value except for the Group’s leasing
transactions, net realisable value of inventories and value in
use of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
for the purpose of impairment assessment, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when
pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
Specifically, the Group categorised the fair value measurements
into three levels, based on the characteristics of inputs, as
follows:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2

Valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable.

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £ Z20205F12 A31H IFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group determines
whether transfer occurs between levels of the fair value
hierarchy for assets and liabilities which are measured at fair
value on recurring basis by reviewing their respective fair value
measurement.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgement, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities, revenue and
expenses reported and disclosures made in the consolidated
financial statements. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgement in applying accounting
policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those involving
estimations, that the directors of the Company have made in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised and
disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements.

116

FEE R E)

N

2 SL{EE E (1R)

RBERR  RUARAREEHFTENE
ERRE AEERGESENARE
AHECUBEEANEBREALEE -

s Est IR G5 T EER
ENEERIR

F& PR P FE 3 AT AL AN SR Bl e B AT IR B
ARBEEARGAVBRRPAZR
MEBEENAE  Wa KX REEREK
BRI HIE - R R RAR - At AR
BROINBELRIAZSEENEME
ERERN -BRGERMEARINZEMAE

Bt REABRREFETURT - HE
AHERHERT B EERI AR RE
AREEZMAER - HIHIETREE
L3R MORRERE - Bl e Rl R &
R HER

FE A& 5t BUER B O BA 52 ) IR

AT RERZ RAEET 2 SN0 R 5 2 i - BD
ARAEFHEAAEESERBRE
REHRBEZEREA VB RRAC T
ReBNAERBEAAR AT EN AT -

Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited | &R ER Q7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020%12 531 H IFF[E

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgement in applying accounting
policies (continued)

Principal versus agent consideration

The Group engages in trading of high-tech electronic
components and products. The Group assessed whether the
Group should recognise revenue on gross basis based on the
requirements in HKFRS 15. The Group concluded that the
Group acts as the principal for such transactions as it controls
the specified good before it is transferred to the customer after
taking into consideration indicators such as that the Group
is primarily responsible for fulfilling the promise to provide
the goods. The Group has inventory risk and discretion in
establishing selling prices of the goods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of resulting in
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated allowance for inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price for
inventories, less all the estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sales. The management reviews
the inventory ageing listing on a periodic basis for those aged
inventories. This involves comparison of carrying value of the
aged inventory items with the respective net realisable value.
The purpose is to ascertain whether allowance is required
to be made in the consolidated financial statements for any
obsolete and slow moving items. Although the Group carried
periodic review on the net realisable value of inventory, the
actual realisable value of inventory is not known until the
sale was concluded. As at 31 December 2020, the carrying
amount of inventories of the Group was HK$220,710,000
(2019: HK$211,584,000) (net of impairment provision of
HK$74,737,000 (2019: HK$80,341,000)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £ Z20205F12 A31H IFFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

The impairment of trade receivables are based on assumptions
about ECL. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, bases on the number of days that an individual
receivable is outstanding as well as the Group’s historical
experience and forward-looking information at the end of the
reporting period. Changes in these assumptions and estimates
could materially affect the result of the assessment and it may
be necessary to make additional impairment charge to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. As at 31 December
2020, the carrying amount of trade receivables of the Group
was HK$566,740,000 (2019: HK$454,279,000) (net of
impairment loss of trade receivables of HK$25,442,000 (2019:
HK$30,260,000)).

Estimated useful life of property, plant and
equipment

At the end of each reporting period, the directors of the
Company review the estimated useful life of property, plant
and equipment with finite useful life. The carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment with finite useful life as at 31
December 2020 is HK$248,072,000 (31 December 2019:
HK$245,520,000).

118

FASE S 5t I R A 5t T HEE E
ENEEZRIF (B)

BHTREEZRNEERE(B)

FE IR BR FR 1 &1 SR (B
FEWRERREDREEHEBHEE
ﬁé‘ﬁaaﬂﬁmvﬁﬁ AEBAEELHZER

BERBFENEAZER - DR
WI%UFEHAZEE KA BENRKE R A
EERBERRNEL SR RATE S
BRHEL HE - ZEBRRMGEINE
REHTEERELETATE LAk
ERGEBERPIELBEINRERE -
M2020F 12 A31H - KREBREYK
85 7 BR M & /4 566,740,000 78 7T (2019
F 454,279,000 70) B E U ER
R B 518 25,442,000 7T (2019 4F
30,260,00078 7T) °

ME - BERRENGEHER T

REREPRR  ARAEETEHERF
HERNWE BEREENGETER
FH o A2020F 12 A31H - EFAFEH
ERMVE BELARBHEREAESB
248,072,000/ 7T (2019412 A31 8 :
245,520,000 7C) °

Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited | {E&ZERER AT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020%12 531 H IFF[E

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at costs less
accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. In determining
whether an asset is impaired, the Group has to exercise
judgement and make estimation, particularly in assessing: (1)
whether an event has occurred or any indicators that may affect
the asset value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can
be supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of value
in use, the net present value of future cash flows which are
estimated based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3)
the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating the
recoverable amounts including cash flow projections and an
appropriate discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
assets belongs.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment were HK$248,072,000 (2019:
HK$245,520,000). Details of the impairment of property, plant
and equipment are disclosed in Note 16.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for certain deductible
temporary differences. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits. As at 31 December 2020, the carrying values
of deferred tax assets of the Group were HK$8,312,000 (2019:
HK$8,455,000), further details of which are disclosed in Note
27.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020%F12 A31H It F/E

5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. EXEBERE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consist of net debt (which
includes bank and other borrowings, corporate bond, net of
pledged bank deposits, deposits with bank and bank balances
and cash) and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. The Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, issuance of new
shares as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of
borrowings.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

AREBEMEREE S HEERASE R

ERHARELE RSB ELE
BRERES  BORKRREREAD
oo NERE R KR B EF AL RS

AEBNEARBERERFR (BRER
TTREMER  RAMES D EMRT
TFHORRE  RITERARBITEB LR
BIARARBERARIERE R (BFED
BITIRA R ) AR -

ARAREEEMRIEREE  BEPY
REBEARARESFEEREENE
& o REBKERIRMNRE - BITHE
PAR BT (B S IE 8 AP B L 2 B8
BARKERE -

£rTH
B i§ TR B EE R

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FHET
Financial assets THMEE
Amortised cost (including bank balances and ~ ##5 5k A&k
cash) (BRERITERETR ) 1,354,552 866,570
Financial assets at FVTOCI BRANBEFAEMEERE 2
SRVEE 3,683 -
Financial assets at FVTPL BRARBEFABRZEREE 3,510 -
1,361,745 866,570
Financial liabilities THMaE
Amortised cost B BH AR 1,217,075 877,927
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include financial assets
at FVTPL and FVTOCI, trade receivables, bills receivables,
deposits and other receivables, pledged bank deposits,
deposits with bank, bank balances and cash, trade payables,
bills payables, other payables and accruals, bank and other
borrowings and corporate bond. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented in a timely and
effective manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

The Group has foreign currency sales and purchases, which
exposes the Group to foreign currency risk. During the
year ended 31 December 2020, approximately 29% (2019:
approximately 7%) of the Group’s sales are denominated in
United States dollars (“US$”) and approximately 37% (2019:
approximately 14%) of purchases are denominated in US$
which are different from the functional currencies of the entities
carrying out the transactions.
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% B

B b

REBEINIEHE RIRBEEE 248K
] T & H1NEE [ B o B 2= 2020412 A 31
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Also, certain trade, bills and other receivables, cash and bank
balances, trade, bills and other payables and bank borrowings
are denominated in RMB, US$, HK$, Japanese Yen (“JPY”) and
other currencies which are currencies other than the functional
currency of the relevant group entities. The carrying amounts
of the transactions currency denominated monetary assets
and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:
RMB AR
uss$ ETT
HK$ BT
JPY A[E

6. €M TH (%)
Bt 35 L B 3 B R R BUR (4R)

% E kg (%)
B (&)
BESN - E T REUER R - AR IR R HoAl

FEWRIR ~ & RIRTTAER - RTRRSK
J& A SRR S B Al B A SRR IA S RTT (8 3K
NAR® - -#&7x - AE(HE]D
REEEEEREEENINEME
BIME AKRERBSHRURZEE
AHEMEREEREBAGENEREEN

T
Assets Liabilities
BE afE

2020 2019 2020 2019
20205 20194 2020 £F 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Fi#x FHET T#x FHETT
633 167 - -
151,793 73,124 188,011 110,251
141 184 768 744

1 2 - 1,290

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the directors of the Company continuously
monitor the related foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

Sensitivity analysis
The Group is mainly exposed to RMB, HK$ and JPY.

No sensitivity analysis was prepared for US$ as the financial
assets and liabilities denominated in US$ are mainly held by
the subsidiaries with HK$ as the function currency and HK$ is
pegged to USS.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
increase or decrease in the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities against the relevant foreign currencies other than
US$. 5% (2019: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represents the management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the end of each
reporting period for a 5% (2019: 5%) change in foreign currency
rates. A positive (negative) number below indicates an increase
(a decrease) in post-tax profit where the respective functional
currencies strengthen by 5% (2019: 5%) against the relevant
currency. For a 5% (2019: 5%) weakening of the respective
functional currencies against the relevant foreign currency, there
would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit.

£MIA (&)
Bt 35 L B 3 B R R BUR (4R)

%R (&)

E¥E s (&)

BRRE DT ()
TRFAVNAEBBEBEBRETREETTUIN
RINEEE B H BB AN EF s T 5%
R RRE © 5% (20194F : 5%) AR EB[A
FTEEEABHREINER B FTE AR
Bb R  REREEEBYINEIERSIER]
REEBMTG WERESNERES R
BEEWAINEDEMNERIEE - WHtME
REFBH5% (20194 : 5% ) MR & HRE
HRMBREERAZE - TXAIMIE(8)
HAERME B SE X EEINEHE
5% (2019 4F : 5% ) R BrFd 18 FIEE b0 Ol
D) o AR E S IERINEBE 5%
(2019%F :5%) ' BEHFABEAAES
MR E -

2020 2019
2020 20194F
HK$’000 HK$'000
Ti&xT FHEIT

Impact on profit for the year HWERNMNBEHN 2

RMB AR
HK$ BT
JPY S|

0] (25) @)
(i) 25 24
(il - 55

(i)  This is mainly attributable to the exposure to bank balances
and cash and trade receivables denominated in RMB at the
end of the reporting period.

(i)  This is mainly attributable to exposure to bank balances,
trade receivables and trade payables denominated in HK$
at the end of the reporting period.

(i) This is mainly attributable to exposure to trade payables
denominated in JPY at the end of the reporting period.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate pledged bank deposits and deposits with bank
(see Note 23) and fixed-rate bank and other borrowings (see
Note 26). The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider other necessary actions when
significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate pledged bank deposits and bank balances (see
Note 23) and variable-rate bank borrowings (see Note 26). It
is the Group’s policy to keep its borrowings at floating rate of
interest so as to minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on these financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management section
of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate (“HIBOR”)/London Interbank Borrowing Rate (“LIBOR”)
arising from the Group’s Hong Kong dollars denominated
borrowings and the fluctuation of Loan Prime Rate (“LPR”)
arising from the Group’s RMB denominated borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments at the
end of the reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming
the amount of assets and liabilities outstanding at the end of
the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A 50
basis point (2019: 50 basis point) increase or decrease is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents the management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2019: 50 basis points)
higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2020
would decrease/increase by HK$126,000 (2019: post-tax profit
decrease/increase by HK$126,000). This is mainly attributable
to the Group’s exposure to cash flow interest rate risk on its
variable-rate bank borrowings.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The credit risk of our Group mainly arises from bank balances,
pledged bank deposits, deposits with bank, trade receivables,
bills receivables and deposits and other receivables. The carrying
amounts of these balances represent our Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.

In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group monitors
closely the economic environment and where appropriate,
takes actions to limit its exposure to customers that are severely
impacted.

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified
approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime
ECL. The Group determines the ECL for customers with long
relationship and significant balances on an individual basis and
for the remaining balances, collectively by using a provision
matrix, estimated based on historical credit loss experience, as
well as the general economic conditions of the industry in which
the debtors operate. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

For bills receivables and deposits and other receivables, the
Group has assessed whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If there has been a
significant increase in credit risk, the Group will measure the loss
allowance based on lifetime rather than 12-month ECL.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout the
reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of
default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information. In
particular, the following indicators are incorporated:

° internal credit rating

e actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant change to the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligations

e significant changes in the expected performance and
behavior of the debtor, including changes in the payment
status of debtors in the Group and changes in the
operating results of the debtor

The Group's exposure to credit risk

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has tasked a team
to develop and maintain the Group’s credit risk gradings to
categorise exposures according to their degree of risk of
default. The management uses other publicly available financial
information and the Group’s own trading records to rate its major
customers and other debtors. The Group’s exposure and the
credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored
and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread
amongst approved counterparties.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6.

Financial risk management objectives and
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policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group's exposure to credit risk (continued)

The Group’s current credit risk grading framework comprises the
following categories:

R

R THE (&)
Bt 35 L B 3 B R R BUR (4R)

EEREM (&)
A& [E E i < 1= B R ()
AEEBRIZEER

B R ARAEZR B A

Basis for recognising

Category Description ECL
ERENREESE
%5l ik HOE %
Performing For financial assets where there has been low risk of default or 12-month ECL
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition and that are not credit impaired (refer to as Stage 1)
B4 RENERBEINNEERAREERRT EREL ML 12E8BHEESE
TREREERENEREE BEEBR)
Doubtful For financial assets where there has been a significant increase Lifetime ECL - not credit
in credit risk since initial recognition but that are not credit impaired
impaired (refer to as Stage 2)
T &t SRR ERAREERRBEEMEYELREEREN FERRBEESS
TREE(EE_RR) — W EEREERE
Default Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired when one or Lifetime ECL — credit
more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated impaired
future cash flows of that asset have occurred (refer to as Stage
3)
EHX BERLSHZEAEMAARKRARRBEXN TN EN - HFENRBEEESR
ZHEN AleREESRTITR/LREERE (FBE=HK) —HREERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe financial Amount is written off
difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect of recovery
85 ERBETERABARENMBRELEASEINRRAER HMEEEERE
AT E A B RIR
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group's exposure to credit risk (continued)
The tables below detail the credit quality of the Group’s financial
assets, as well as the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
by credit risk rating grades.

Gross
Internal credit 12-month or carrying
Notes ~ rating lifetime ECL amount
128R g FEY
i ABEERR RBREER KEAE
HK$'000
Tign
Trade receivables 21 (Notg) Lifetime ECL (simplified
approach) 592,182
TS (Bizt) FEERAEEER
()
Bills receivables 21 Performing 12-month ECL 157,675
EUEE B 12ERESEERR
Deposits and other Performing 12-month ECL
receivables 22 15,179
e REMENTE B 12EARBEERR

6. €M TH (%)
Bt 35 L B 3 B R R BUR (4R)

FEER (48)

AEEE I EER (&)

TRAMREERRTEE D ZAEE

e
A=

CRMEEZEEERUNAEERERRZ
RREERR

31/12/2020 311212019
20206128 31R 2019124318
Net Gross Net
Loss carrying carrying Loss carrying
allowance amount amount allowance amount
LU R EEAE BEEE BETE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tign Ti#gn T TEL AL
(25,442) 566,740 484539 (30,260) 454,279
- 157,675 92,069 - 92,069
(2,652) 78,127 43,627 2,184) 41,443
(28,094) (32,444)

Note: For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach
in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group
determines the ECL on trade receivables individually and collectively
by using a provision matrix, estimated based on historical credit
loss experience and the past due status of the debtors, adjusted
as appropriate to reflect current conditions and estimates of future
economic conditions. Note 21 includes further details on the loss
allowance for these assets.

The credit risks on liquid funds and interest receivables are
limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 38% (2019: nil)
and 61% (2019: 58%) of the total trade receivables was due
from the Group’s largest customer and five largest customers as
at 31 December 2020.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The

management monitors the utilisation of bank and other
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank and other borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31 December 2020, the Group has
available unutilised trade financing and bank loan facilities of
HK$230,221,000 (2019: HK$285,980,000), details of which are
set out in Note 26.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. Specifically, bank and other borrowings
with a repayment on demand clause are included in the earliest
time band regardless of the probability of the banks or financial
institution choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity dates
for other non-derivatives financial liabilities are based on the
agreed repayment dates. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate
curve at the end of each reporting period.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. ERMTIA (&)
Financial risk management objectives and MEEMER B FERBER (8)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) mBE L E (1)

As at 31 December 2020
2020512831 H

More than More than
On demand 1 year but 2 years but Total
or within less than less than undiscounted Carrying
1 year 2 years 5years cash flows amount
EEX BB1F BB REH
H1FR BOR25F BLR5FE  RERHEE IREE
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tign Ti#gn Ti#x Ti#n
Trade payables JETBR 3R 295,154 - - 295,154 295,154
Bils payables ENER 545,268 - - 545,268 545,268
Other payables and accruals ~ Efb e {47008 [z
EREMR 28,188 - - 28,188 28,188
Bank and other borrowings BT REMER
(Note) (MF5E) 346,569 - - 346,569 346,569
Corporate bond NAEH 160 160 2,120 2,440 1,896
1,215,339 160 2,120 1,217,619 1,217,075
Lease liabilities HEAE 10,065 6,356 10,537 26,958 24,393

As at 31 December 2019

2019612 4318
More than More than
On demand 1 year but 2 years but Total
or within less than less than More than  undiscounted Carrying
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flows amount
JEEX BE1E BR2E KRR
F1ER BoRoE BAOREE SENE  RengE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T TER TR
Trade payables RN 241,923 - - - 241,923 241,923
Bllls payables FADES 296,147 - - - 296,147 296,147
Other payables and accruals R FE R
BIREBR 49,830 - - - 49,830 49,830
Bank and other borrowings ~ $#47 RE £
(Note) (M) 288,171 - - - 288,171 288,171
Corporate bond RAESH 160 160 2,280 - 2,600 1,856
876,231 160 2,280 - 878,671 877,927
Lease liabiliies HEAR 5,329 3,636 6,519 1,641 17,125 14,882
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M HRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020%F 12831 HILtFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Note: Bank and other borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or within 1 year” time band in the above
maturity analysis. At 31 December 2020, the aggregate amounts of
these bank and other borrowings amounted to HK$346,569,000 (2019:
HK$288,171,000). Taking into account the Group’s financial position,
the directors of the Company do not believe that it is probable that the
banks and financial institution will exercise their discretionary rights to
demand immediate repayment. The directors of the Company believe
that these bank and other borrowings will be repaid in accordance with
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. At that
time, the aggregate principal and interest cash outflows will amount to
HK$352,713,000 (2019: HK$293,874,000).

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to
change if changes in variable interest rates differ from those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of each
reporting period.

Fair value

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments
that are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, grouped into Level 1 to 3 based on the degree to
which the fair value is observable in accordance to the Group’s
accounting policy.

£MIA (&)
Bt 35 L B 3 B R R BUR (4R)

mENE £ EE (8)

Mk : RAEREREEERRNEBITREMER
REMBHE ST ATEERE1FR]
KRR R - 72020412 318 » %%
$R1T I E 18 51 8 48 58 /5 346,569,000 78
7T (2019 4F : 288,171,000/ 7T) ° &&=
@$$E’qﬁﬂ%ﬂﬁﬁ1§-$@aﬂ§$ﬂﬁ

“RAERITRESBHMEBAEBITEER
%EIEDH BR-ARAREFRBZ
%iﬁm&ﬁf@%ﬁkmﬁbﬁﬁzﬂ% K 19 7
MIETERBHHEE B A& &7
B3R i 4858 15 3% 5 352,713,000 % 7T
(20194 : 293,874,000787T) °

BN EEBHERHNZRESHREE
MEETAIER . LT ESRARED
METESERBEE -

DRE
TREHNEBREHRRAAETEN
MBETAESN  URBARESEEE

ERAREANBERZBEEDERE —
=&

31 December 2020
20204 12H 31H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—1 £ E=8 @t
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiET TiEL TiEL T
Financial assets at FVTPL BRAREHABRzEMEE
Investment in a life insurance policy ~ MASREZ1&E - 3,510 - 3,510
Financial asset at FVTOCI BRARERARM2ERSZ
SMEE
Unlisted equality securities I EMRAE S - - 3,683 3,683
Total @t - 3,510 3,683 7,193
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& M HRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020%F12 A31H It F/E

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Fair value (continued)

The valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements of each financial instruments on a recurring basis

are set out below:

Financial instruments

2RIA

&R T H (%)
Bt 35 L B 3 B R R BUR (4R)

DREGE)

EeMIAARBEAEMERNMGEET
ERBABIE GRGEEEE) BT

Investment in a life insurance

policy
RASREZRE

Unlisted equity securities

S EMBAES

Relationship
of key inputs
and significant
Valuation Significant unobservable
Fair value techniques and unobservable inputs to fair
hierarchy Fair value as at key inputs inputs values
HERER BXTH BRBABBREATTER
DAERESR & TEHARE BROABE BABEELAENEE
<QIAPIPIPIN  31/12/2019
2020 2019F
128318 127311
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#L T
Level 2 3,510 - Quoted price by N/A N/A
F-H theinsurance  TiEA TEA
company
RBRARRE
Level 3 3,683 - Market approach Mean P/S The mean of P/S is positively
=0 i) multiples of 0.54 correlated to the fair value
MHEEY measurement of the unlisted
0545 equity securities
mEREGPAHEE L mRAE
FNAAEGEZIEEE
Mean P/B The mean of P/B is positively
multiples of 0.90 correlated to the fair value
mkEE measurement of the unlisted
0.90f% equity securities
MREFHP N HEE L TRAE
FHORAEHEZERE

Marketability
discount rate of
20%

5
HEE2%

The discount rate is negatively
correlated to the fair value
measurement of the unlisted
equity securities

RREEF LARAZSNDAE
STE2EIAE
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& M HRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020%F 12831 HILtFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Fair value (continued)

During the reporting periods, there were no transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy.

For recurring fair value measurements categorised within Level
3 of the fair value hierarchy, if the marketability discount rate to
the valuation model were 5% higher/lower while all the other
variables were held constant, the carrying amount of the unlisted
equity securities would decrease/increase by HK$230,000.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of financial
assets on recurring basis:

£MIA (&)
Bt 35 L B 3 B R R BUR (4R)
fufE ()

J
HEHEA AREERZERMAL
EEE -

n
i

TEERANEERE-HHEEER
REFEMS  MEEEXNOTSRE
WeER EAT5%  METEEMES
WEHETE AEETRAFESNE@TE
H53E 18 N #) 230,000 7 TT

ERMEEE=—RANEFENHE:

Unlisted equity

securities

I ERRAE S

HK$’000

TiET

Purchases BE 3,235
Total gains s 4ass 448
At 31 December 2020 R 202012 A31 H 3,683

For the year ended 31 December 2020, included in the above
total gains or losses is an amount of HK$448,000 (2019: nil) gain
relating to unlisted equity investment designated at FVTOCI held
at the end of the year.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of other financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.
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HE20200F12A31BIEFEE > itk
HYEELAERERF A ENIEEAR
BAREFAEMEZEREAIELTR
K& & A B # U2 448,000% T (2019
FomE) o

ARBEERR  RAEVBRKRASH

MAREBEMNEEARNEMEREE
ke@aEnEmEEE AnEEaEsE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7 & M358 RO

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020%F12 A31H It F/E

7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 7. WEREMBA

2020 2019
2020 £ 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET

Revenue from contracts with customers &HEERELDE 1595

within the scope of HKFRS 15 ARBEFAHRE
Disaggregated by major products BEEXEEMESHAH
Sales of goods HEEm
LED backlight LED % 3¢ 988,091 950,106
LED lighting LED F& A5 74,360 94,777
Sourcing business HEBER 333,437 1,170,091

1,395,888 2,214,974

2020 2019
2020 £ 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fx TAET

Disaggregation of revenue by timing of RIS E 291

recognition Y25 RA 4
Timing of revenue recognition WAt 225 e S B
At a point in time T SR 18 B P B 1,395,888 2,214,974
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020%F 12831 HILtFE

7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (continued) 7. WBEREMUWA ()

An analysis of the Group’s other income for the year is as AEBFANEMBPAITAT :
follows:
2020 2019
2020 £ 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x FAT
Other income Hiig A
Bank interest income RITHBUA 3,605 8,241
Government grants (Note) U i B (BT 1) 11,707 8,102
Sales of scrapped materials 5 55 BE 13 1,424
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BEXR
equipment Bl - 23
Sundry income MEMA 5,382 3,358
20,707 21,148
Note: Included in the amount, there are government grants immediately Mz : R BEEEEHE2020F812 A31 8 1F
recognised as other income during the year ended 31 December 2020 FERNE MR A EH b UL A B BT # B
of HK$10,436,000 (2019: HK$7,965,000) which were received from the 10,436,000 7T (20194 : 7,965,000 7
PRC government in respect of certain research projects and salaries ) U ARETHEEE R ITEME
subsidies. In addition, the Group recognised government grants of AP EEFREHRIE - N REF
HK$1,135,000 (2019: nil) in respect of COVID-19 related subsidies, T 52 B2 COVID-19 8 8 5 Bh /9 IR T % B
which is related to the Employment Support Scheme provided by the 1,135,000 71 (20194 : #&) - EAFBR
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region under ATHEBRFRERENEESREMED
the Anti-Epidemic Fund. There are no unfulfiled conditions and other R ENE B - ERMZSHEEER
contingencies attached to the receipts of those subsidies. ERAIEL R E M ARIBR
During the year ended 31 December 2020, an amount of HZE20200F12A31HILFE  BIFH#
HK$136,000 (2019: HK$137,000) being government grants was Bh 136,000/ 7T (20194 : 137,000 7T)
recognised as deferred income utilised during the year (see Note ERAETNHAELEWRA (BKzE29) -
29).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £ Z20205F12 A31H IFFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker (the
“CODM”) for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of goods
or services delivered or provided. In addition, for both LED
backlight and LED lighting operations and sourcing business of
high-tech electronic components and products, the information
reported to the CODM is further broken down into different types
of products and application of products. No operating segments
identified by the CODM have been aggregated in arriving at the
reportable segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments

under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

1. LED backlight — Manufacture and trading of LED
backlight products in different sizes
and applications

2. LED lighting — Manufacture and trading of LED
lighting products for public and
commercial use

3. Sourcing business — Provision of high-tech electronic
components and memory chips
related products sourcing business

136

S EBE
MAQXRITHRAR (BEBEEREA
([EEEBERKAD) 2FRHWER - &
BORMTEHSBREMS  ZEERR
MR EERRREOTESE - o - 5
LED%?&&LEDE”EH%f%JJX&%_ﬂH%
ERHRERNEBERATESE
,J&aﬁ/\zi&s’qéiﬂ E—FBERD A
TRER RERF - ‘*“*AKEIE@

BES ifi"*ﬁ% PR BEERK
AB BB EED B
msE  AKE *ETF%EE%Hﬂ%i&iEE

A
AE 8RB DA 2HREEN BT ¢

1. LED & ¢ - BERBBERRAKND
K FEFHLED & Yt &

DD

2. LED BB RA - BEREBEREAA
ME B B®ALEDR
B 2 f

3 RBE RESMEETF
R A7 &S A A8 %ﬁ%

an F BR B S 7%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& M H R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020%F 12831 HILtFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. FWMEH (&)
Segment revenues and results DEBUR RSN FE LR
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results AEEZRAZHREEDBEDHEE R
by reportable and operating segments. EESNWT -

For the year ended 31 December 2020

HZE20205 12831 HILFE

LED LED Sourcing
backlight lighting business Total
LED & 3t LED 88 Bf REBER #at
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FBxT FiBx FiBT Fi8T
REVENUE Y 2%

External sales SNERGH & 988,091 74,360 333,437 1,395,888
Segment profit pal= Yl 92,500 6,048 17,432 115,980
Unallocated income F N N 9,041
Unallocated expenses RO (67,467)
Unallocated finance costs RO IR (26,853)
Profit before tax B % AT F 30,701

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BZEZ2019F12A31BILFE
LED LED Sourcing
backlight lighting business Total
LED 3% LED &R RAE T HET
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’ 000 HK$’'000
FET FHET FAT FAT
REVENUE Y =5

External sales INERSEE 950,106 94,777 1,170,091 2,214,974
Segment profit 7 BB A 119,132 5,447 19,034 143,613
Unallocated income ROBLUA 11,599
Unallocated expenses a3 (85,785)
Unallocated finance costs RO IS (29,258)
Profit before tax W 56 AT A1) B 40,169
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020%F12 A31H It F/E

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenues and results (continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 3.
Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of central administration costs, directors’
emoluments, bank interest income, net foreign exchange losses,
sundry income and certain unallocated finance costs. This is the
measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities
by reportable and operating segments:

8. ZEER (4)

BB ERES (]

EED MBS FTH R AN FEITM A S
B BE W oA BEIE DR

BRFE TRERRITHER 5

B2~ SRITR BULA - [E X BIBF5E

HIEWARE T RO BR ARSI

&tﬁﬁf‘—c%’é"“%Ei?&“}\ﬁfrﬁ&i{’ﬁﬁ’éﬁ
AL R FRIAFHE B REE o

SMEERERE

AEBEZAZHREEDHMEADNEER
BEDFOT

Segment assets STHEE

2020 2019

2020 20194

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FETT

LED backlight LED & 3¢ 1,106,382 906,991

LED lighting LED f2H3 94,399 72,640

Sourcing business REEEK 178,317 291,642

Total segment assets DEEERE 1,379,098 1,271,273

Unallocated assets RAOWEE 652,917 338,439

Consolidated total assets IR EERE 2,032,015 1,609,712
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e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020%F 12831 HILtFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. FWMEH (&)
Segment assets and liabilities (continued) DEEEREE (E)
Segment liabilities SEEE

2020 2019
2020 £ 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
TExT T
LED backlight LED & 3¢ 806,715 560,983
LED lighting LED #8845 63,843 50,241
Sourcing business T 53,327 21,724
Total segment liabilities DEPEEBE 923,885 632,948
Unallocated liabilities KoL aE 356,263 301,075
Consolidated total liabilities reERERRE 1,280,148 934,023

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and MERDHERR RS BEERME :

allocating resources between segments:

- all assets are allocated to operating segments other than — FEBEENRZLEENE BT
deferred tax assets, financial assets at FVTPL and financial BEE - ?E”R/LTE‘Jr)\TEﬁﬁZﬁ Al
assets at FVTOCI, pledged bank deposits, deposits with BEREAABEFAZERE .S
bank, bank balances and cash and certain unallocated BEE BEMRITER RTF
head office assets. Assets used jointly by operating R RITHEBRLBEUARET RS
segments are allocated on the basis of the revenues B ER & EFR AN - B gLﬁa‘ #*[A
earned by individual reportable segments; and @Eﬁ% MEEZERI T 23R TS

Wanhd : &

- all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than - FBRESREZLESI BT
income tax payables, bank and other borrowings, corporate B RITRHE /rﬂﬂ ;o naElfES
bond, deferred tax liabilities and certain unallocated head FREBREBEEEMAETADERILE
office liabilities. Liabilities for which operating segments are ERRIN e HEE D BHEF 7¥Kf‘ﬁl’7 =
jointly liable are allocated in proportion to segment revenue. Bk 5D U A B DB
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7 & M358 RO

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F12 831 H I FfE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. FEEHR (18)
Segment assets and liabilities (continued) PEHBEEREE(8)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HBZE2020F12HA31HILFE

LED LED Sourcing
backlight lighting business Unallocated Total
LEDE# LEDRH REXE OB af

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn TR TiEn FiEn

Amounts included in the measure of HASBERGANEE

segment profit or loss or segment HENSE:
assets:
Additions to non-current assets* REFNBEE 53,376 1,294 43,368 - 98,038
Depreciation of property, plant and nE BERREEAE

equipment 43,129 2,125 I - 45,261
Depreciation of ight-of-use assets FREZENE 6,655 1,085 - - 7,70
Loss on write-off of property, plant and En% BERAEES

equipment 116 7 - - 123
(Reversal of impaiment loss recognised in -~ () SRR R

respect of trade and other recelvables EUFERANORERE (5,211) (779) 176 - (5,814
(Reversal of) provision of inventories (BE)GERE (461) 166 - - (299)

Amounts regularly provided to the CODM  EHmEEEE AR AR
but not included in the measure of FASDERT I BEEHE

segment profit or loss or segment EL R
assets:
Interest income FEMA - - - 3,605 3,605
Finance costs Eip 1,139 102 - 26,853 28,094
# Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets, deposits with bank # ERHEETEIRRELERBEE - R1TF
and financial assets at FVTOCI. REEBEAREFAZANGZ CREE -
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e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020%12 531 H IFF[E

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

8. DEPEH (&)
DEEEREE (E)
HZE2019512A31BLLEE

LED LED Sourcing
backlight lighting business  Unallocated Total
LED& % LEDFR REXEH Al CEil
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL TET THT TR THT
Amounts included in the measure st A 2 S E R H 2 HEE
of segment profit or loss or HENSE:
segment assets:
Additions to non-current assets* A EIFREEE" 71,146 5,151 - - 76,297
Amortisation of prepaid lease BNEERIREH
payments 42,031 1,176 - - 43,207
Depreciation of property, nE BERRERTE
plant and equipment 1,420 1,178 - - 2,593
Gain on disposal of property, HENE  BEX
plant and equipment, net REREFE - 23 - - 23
Loss on write-off of property, MENE BER
plant and equipment REEE 279 7 - - 286
Impairment loss recognised in 39 LB R At E M
respect of trade and other HIERRERERE
receivables 2,675 448 - - 3,123
(Reversal of) provision (BE)FERE
of inventories (825) 5 - - (820)
Amounts regularly providedto EHIREEZEREA
the CODM but notincluded in  1ZEFHA S &8
the measure of segment profit A MEEEN
or loss or segment assets: 8
Interest income MEHA - - - 8,241 8,241
Finance costs BB 241 182 - 29,258 29,681
# Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets. # ERHEEFNBIFEERIBEE -
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& M HRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020%F12 A31H It F/E

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

8. ZEER (4)

Revenue from major products KEEEEMBIWRES
Analysis by type of products EBEEGRERE 20D
2020 2019
2020 £ 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
Ti#&x FHET
LED backlight LED &%
— Small dimension —/NRST 307,942 324,281
— Medium dimension —H R~ 618,492 518,071
— Large dimension — KR~ 61,657 107,754
Sub-total NEE 988,091 950,106
LED lighting LED & A
— Indoor lighting — =R A 71,801 79,006
— Outdoor lighting — = HNR A 2,559 15,771
Sub-total N 74,360 94,777
Sourcing business R T
— High-tech electronic components and - SREETFERHR
products sourcing EmEE 88,987 1,150,867
— Memory chips related products sourcing — TR M E RS 244,450 19,224
Sub-total NEE 333,437 1,170,091
Total &5t 1,395,888 2,214,974
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020%F 12831 HILtFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. FWMEH (&)
Revenue from major products (continued) KEEXEEmBIURES (8)
Analysis by application of products EBEERERIIS NS
2020 2019
2020 £ 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
Ti#&x FHET
LED backlight LED &%
— Automobile displays —HE A~ 706,600 639,290
- Equipment displays — RN 220,580 204,038
— Televisions —ERHE 60,911 106,778
Sub-total NEE 988,091 950,106
LED lighting LED & A
— Public lighting — R HH 2,559 15,770
— Commercial lighting — R R 71,801 79,007
Sub-total N 74,360 94,777
Sourcing business R T
— High-tech electronic components and - SREETFERHR
products sourcing EmEE 88,987 1,150,867
— Memory chips related products sourcing — TR M E RS 244,450 19,224
Sub-total NEE 333,437 1,170,091
Total &5t 1,395,888 2,214,974
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7 & M358 RO

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020%F12 A31H It F/E

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and the PRC.
The Group’s customers are mainly located in Hong Kong and
the PRC.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue from external customers is
presented based on the location of customers as below:

8. ZEEH (%)
i E R

AREBENLEEXHBURBTBRTE K
SENEFPIEUNEBNPHE -

AEEREFPHEMES D KAINEE

The PRC =8
Hong Kong BB
Others HAtb

FPHRzEommT -
2020 2019
2020 £ 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAT
1,032,167 2,078,545
234,972 33,811
128,749 102,618
1,395,888 2,214,974

The Group’s information about its non-current assets is
presented based on location of the assets as below:

AEBREEMBEVUESDONERBE

The PRC =8
Hong Kong B

EEHMT :

2020 2019

2020 20194

HK$’000 HK$'000

Fi FET

361,802 295,671

1,472 6,207

363,274 301,878

Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets, deposits with
bank and financial assets at FVTOCI.

144
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Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited | &R ER Q7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020%F 12831 HILtFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. ZEPEMN (&)
Information about major customers FEEFEH
Details of the customers accounting for 10% or more of HAREERZBTE10% A EWNEFFH
aggregate revenue of the Group are as follows: BUF
2020 2019
2020 £fF 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Customer A’ BEPA 475,927 468,195
Customer B2 BPEB NA TEH 3 540,495
Customer C? ®EC? NA T iE e 440,293
1 Revenue from LED backlight. ! KRB LED & HH) W o
2 Revenue from sourcing business. 2 KB R W o
3 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total 8 FRREU s ARG RS B AR Z5 10% LA E

revenue of the Group

2020 Annual Report | £ 1 45



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7 & M358 RO

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020%F12 A31H It F/E

9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

9. Hitl=REE

2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
Ti&xT FHET
Provision of inventories (Note a) FEEE (MiEa) (1,625) (45)
Reversal of provision of inventories (Note b) BETFEEE (MEDb) 1,920 865
Reversal of (impairment loss) recognised in B USR5 % L Ath FE W R TE T
respect of trade and other receivables, net ReEE CREER) 58 5,814 (3,123)
Loss from changes in fair value of financial BARBEFAERZEREE
assets at FVTPL WARBEEEEE (1,170) -
4,939 (2,303)
Notes: BieE
(@)  During the year ended 31 December 2020, a provision of HK$1,625,000 (@ EZE2020F12A31HIEFE MO

(2019: HK$45,000) was made for write-down of obsolete inventories
that are no longer suitable for use in production or saleable in the
market.

(o)  During the year ended 31 December 2020, a reversal of provision of (b)

HK$1,920,000 (2019: HK$865,000) was made due to the sellout of
inventories written off in previous years

BEAREERAEMSBEENRETE
R ¥ 51,625,000 7T (20194F : 45,0004

JT) e

HZE2020F12A31BILFE  BREE
HBAFEMBEONGTE  WELBERR
1,920,000 7T (20194F : 865,000/ 7T) °

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BF FE AR AR

Interest expenses on: LATEEBEHMNERE
- Bank and other borrowings —RITREAMER

— Corporate bond —NREH

~ Lease liabilities —-HEaf

- Bills payables —-EANEE

2020 2019
2020 £fF 20194
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FET
15,473 17,162
200 200
1,241 423
11,180 11,896
28,094 29,681
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020%12 531 H IFF[E

11. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE

M. e (ER) X

2020 2019
2020 £ 20194
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FHT
Current income tax EHIFBH
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PRI EATSE
— Current year —RNEEF 259 7,246
— Qver-provision in prior years — BT FEBEEE (1,616) (3,694)
(1,357) 3,552
Deferred taxation (Note 27) EERIIE (FFsE27) 1,028 (531)
Total income tax (credit) expense for the year  FE SR (Fh) B 458 (329) 3,021

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and
the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”), the Group is not subject to
any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group did not have any assessable profits subject to Hong Kong
Profits Tax for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the
tax rate of the PRC companies is 25% for the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: 25%).

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the
Group’s subsidiaries, Wai Chi Opto Technology (Shenzhen)
Limited* and Huizhou Wai Chi Electronics Company Limited*,
were accredited as high-tech enterprises which will be expired in
2021 and 2023 respectively. They are entitled to the preferential
tax rate of 15% for both years.

Pursuant to circular issued by Ministry of Finance and National
Tax Bureau on 17 January 2019, the small-scaled minimal profit
enterprise with an annual taxable income below RMB1,000,000
(RMB1,000,000 included) is entitled to a preferential tax
treatment of 75% exemption of taxable income and application
of income tax rate as 20% from 1 January 2019 to 31 December
2021. Certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group were qualified
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

*

The English name is for identification purpose only
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020%F12 A31H It F/E

11. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE 1. FREH (%) Fx% (&)
(continued)
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the FEMGERAZREEBRRMTERE
profit before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss BIAEE RN T -
as follows:

2020 2019
2020 £ 20194

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FExT FET

Profit before tax f %4 A A1) E 30,701 40,169

Tax calculated at the domestic income tax rate 2B A PTG 11 K 25% T E 1)

of 25% (2019: 25%) FR18 (20194 : 25%) 7,675 10,042
Effect of preferential tax rate in the PRC FREERENTE (2,862) (5,224)
Effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries Hh A E R £ EH B AR

operating in other jurisdictions TRABMENFE (82) 851
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax A TG X M SR £

purposes 1,318 2,526
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BARTBRANB K2

purposes (863) (162)
Additional tax deduction for research and HEFAZMEINRIBER 2

development expenses (4,416) (3,113)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERTIBEEBEBENRETE 2,170 1,955
Tax effect of utilised of temporary difference B kR A IERN LR ER

previously not recognised M2 (1,631) -
Tax effect of temporary differences not RIERE R MEERMBE

recognised A 17 73
Utilisation of tax losses previously not B ARARERNIEERE

recognised - (233)
Over-provision in respect of prior years BT EHEERE (1,616) (3,694)
Income tax on concessionary rate BERENMER (39) -
Income tax (credit) expense for the year FEMSHUELE) BAX (329) 3,021

Details of the deferred taxation are set out in Note 27. EREERIENF BN E27
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M HRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020%F 12831 HILtFE

12. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 12. FEFH

2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
Ti&xT FHT

Profit for the year has been arrived at after FEFERNBRTIEIERE

charging: EEC
Directors’ emoluments (Note 13(a)) FEMNE (HFE13() 6,082 5,879
Salaries and allowances (excluding directors) & KRR (FBRIEESE) 183,402 192,629
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRAE BT B4 3K

(excluding directors) (TEREES) 11,625 16,982
Total staff costs BT A48 % 201,109 215,490
Auditor’s remuneration i3 GllE=a 1,045 1,045
Net foreign exchange losses b BRI 505 503
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses R &M X H1F & Ak A&

(included in cost of sales) (Note a) Gt ASHEXA) (Fizta) 1,197,471 1,986,007
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #1% - = LR HITE 45,261 43,207
Depreciation of right-of-use-assets CREEENE 7,710 2,593
Loss on write-off of property, Wi - BE R

plant and equipment BEEBE 123 286
Lease expenses for short-term leases EHHENTEERS 3,521 6,845

Note: s -

(@  Cost of inventories recognised as an expense included depreciation of
property, plant and equipment and staff costs of HK$41,515,000 (2019:
HK$37,130,000) and HK$127,037,000 (2019: HK$132,910,000)
respectively. The amounts were also included in the respective
amounts disclosed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7 & M358 RO

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F12 831 H I FfE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 13. EE - TETHAERESH
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS &
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s (@) EEREETBRAEMS
emoluments
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight (2019: FARRENSIENRIARSN\A
eight) directors and the CEO of the Company during the (20195 : NB) BEZRITHAHN
year were as follows: T
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE2020F12A31ALLEE
Retirement
Salaries benefit
Directors’ and other scheme
fees benefits  contributions Total
HeR RIKEF
ok HAy g5 AR @t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FTET FTET TiEx
Executive directors: BTES:
Mr. Yiu Chi To (Chairman) PhEE KA (XRE) - 2,940 18 2,958
Mr. Chen Chung Po (CEQ) BREERE LA (TTHER) - 1,275 18 1,293
Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu HhEBMZ L
(Sales and marketing manager) (HERTHHELE) - 765 18 783
Mr. Chen Wei Wu BREREE
(Financial controller) (EME) - 300 30 330
Ms. Yong Jian Hui ERELL
(Deputy general manager) (BlEEse) - 162 28 190
Independent non-executive BIFHTES:
directors:
Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah BfmRELE 240 - - 240
Mr. Chen Kwok Wang BREREE 144 - - 144
Mr. Ho Chi Wai AERLE 144 - - 144
Total Bt 528 5,442 112 6,082
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020%12 531 H IFF[E

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 13.E5 - T ETBRAESRESM
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 2 (&
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EBRIFEITBASHS (1)
(continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE2019F12A31BLLEE
Retirement
Salaries benefit
Directors’ and other scheme
fees benefits contributions Total
Hek RREF
ks Hin g STEIftR Har
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL FHL THL TEL
Executive directors: BiTEE:
Mr. Yiu Chi To (Chairman) HEELE(EE) - 2,702 18 2,720
Mr. Chen Chung Po (CEO) BrRigE s E (1T EH) - 1,300 18 1,318
Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu HfEBLL
(Sales and marketing manager) (HERTHHELE) - 780 18 798
Mr. Chen Wei Wu BERLE
(Financial controller) (5 aE) - 207 30 327
Ms. Yong Jian Hui EREZT
(Deputy general manager) (BlamE) - 161 27 188
Independent non-executive BIAFHTES:
directors:
Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah BfFRELE 240 - - 240
Mr. Chen Kwok Wang BRE R S A 144 - - 144
Mr. Ho Chi Wai MEREE 144 - - 144
Total Mt 528 5,240 111 5,879
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020%F12 A31H It F/E

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

152

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services to act as the directors
of the Company.

None of the directors waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments paid by the Group during both years.

Mr. Chen Chung Po is also the CEO of the Company and
the emoluments disclosed above include those for services
rendered by him as the CEO of the Company.

There were no performance related incentive payments to
the directors and CEO of the Company during both years.

Employees’ emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, three (2019: three) were directors or CEO of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020.
The emoluments of these directors are included in the
disclosures in Note 13(a) above. The emoluments of the
remaining two (2019: two) individuals for the year ended 31
December 2020 were as follows:

13. 25 - FETHAEBRESH

% (
(a)

(b)

4=
m

EERFETHRASME ()

ERRTEZ M IR REEE
AEBEBHOREME -

EABIIFATESTHE HIRE S
BEEARRESHRBME -

RREFE SMEEFTHERKAE
MEEAME

BREEFEEE T AR RBITHRAE -
EXHBEOMEBRABBREEIAN
RNENTHRAREIRHREOME -

RREFE YEAAABAEER
TTRAH T RRBHDES -

ESM <

NEZE2020F 12 A1 B IEEE -
rEEAERaHEALF =4
(2019%F : =&) BARREEZRTT
B@H - ZSEENWEERN LEX
MY 5E 13() # 58 ° AL £ 2020F 12
AB1HIEFE % TMHA (20194 ¢

Salaries and other allowances
Retirement benefit scheme contributions

Fro M HEAMRR
BB GBI

MEZ) ATHMEIT
2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FET
1,682 1,667
36 36
1,718 1,703
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M HRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020%F 12831 HILtFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments (continued)
Their emoluments were within the following bands:

13. 25 - FETHAEBRESH

4=
m

£(

(b) EEME (4)
REALTMHSN T THIHEE :

Not more than HK$1,000,000

% 741,000,000 % 7T

2020 2019

2020 £ 2019
No. of No. of
employees employees
ES2H EE#HE

2

There were no performance related incentive payments
during both years.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest
paid individuals and any of the directors and CEO of the
Company as an incentive payment to join or upon joining
the Group, or as compensation for loss of office during
both years.

14. DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31
December 2020, nor has any dividend been proposed since the
end of the reporting period (2019: Nil).

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE

AR B F 2+ 3 8 52 KR 3R 68
MWD -

RMEFE - NEEY &EA D AR
B AL ARARBERES KT

BAH ML ERIMAKREE
AN 55 [ 665 1) A2 D X B R 1

14. g 2
B RS s E IR B = 2020F 12 A
S1HIEFEMIE - BR&EERE N E
BRBIRMNEMAEE (20194 - #) -

15. BIREF

2020 2019
2020 £ 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FET

Earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted ~ {Est E &R ERN K #ERF
eamings per share REn & 30,958 37,148
2020 2019
2020 20194

Number of ordinary shares for the purpose of ~ {E&t & & I E A & #58 & 7
basic and diluted earnings per share e mikeEe 216,825,000 216,825,000

Basic and diluted earnings per share ERERREERF

(HK$ per share) (ZRHET) 0.14 0.17

The diluted earnings per share is equal to the basic earnings
per share as there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares
outstanding during both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7 & M358 RO

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F12 831 H I FfE

16. W% - MERR

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Plant and Motor Office  Leasehold Construction
machinery vehicles  equipment  improvements Buildings in progress Total
RERES RE BOZRG HENERE BF fRIR GE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000
T B AL AL TETL T
CosT AR
At 1 January 2019 Ro01951A18 345,023 6,742 21212 30,384 122,216 14,507 549,084
Addtions AE 47225 365 1,794 533 - 4,981 54,898
Disposals/wrte-off HE/His (5,708) - (890) - - - (6,399)
Exchange realignment ERAE (8,345) 90) (475) (855) (2,671) (402) (12838
At 31 December 2019 and 0195124318 R
At 1 January 2020 0051518 378,195 7017 21,84 39,062 119,545 19,086 584,746
Addtions hE 30453 - 39 1,085 - 5,782 37,7109
Transfer gz 5265 - - - - (5,265 -
Disposals/write-off & /Wi (6,237) (222) (164) - - - (6,623)
Exchange realignment ExA% 26,454 252 1,397 2528 7,690 1257 30578
At 31 December 2020 R2020%F128318 434,130 7,047 23,463 42,675 127,285 20,860 655,410
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION RitfrERHESE
AND IMPAIRMENT LOSS
At 1 January 2019 Ro019E1 A 1A 236,352 5,766 18,212 14,034 18,909 12,988 306,261
Provided for the year iR 36,278 47 1,105 2947 2,460 - 43207
Eiminated on disposals/wrte-off ~ HEE S5 /8 (2291) - (654) - - - (2,045)
Exchange realignment EXHE (5,744) ) [401) (341) (455) (284) (7,097)
At 31 December 2019 and Po019E12 A31BR
At1 January 2020 2020F1A1H 264,59 6,111 18,262 16,640 20914 12,704 339,226
Provided for the year EFAR 37,088 166 1164 4457 2436 - 45,261
Elminated on disposalsiwrte-off ~ HEE ¥ /H s 867) (11) (155) - - - (1,239
Exchange realignment R 19,087 205 1214 1278 1483 817 24,084
At 31 December 2020 R2020%F128318 319,853 6,271 20,485 22315 24,833 13,521 407,338
CARRYING VALUES KEE
At 31 December 2020 R2020%F128318 114217 776 2,978 20,300 102,402 7,339 248,072
At 31 December 2019 R2019F 128318 113,600 906 3579 2422 98,631 6,382 25,520
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020%12 531 H IFF[E

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per
annum:

Plant and machinery 10% - 25%

Motor vehicles 10% — 33%

Office equipment 10% - 20%

Leasehold improvements 5% - 50%

Buildings Over the shorter of term of the

lease or 2.5%

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying values of plant and
machinery of HK$114,277,000 (2019: HK$113,600,000)
includes an amount of HK$19,782,000 (2019: HK$24,935,000)
which have been pledged to secure banking facilities and other
borrowings granted to the Group.

As at 31 December 2020, buildings with carrying values of HK$
102,402,000 (2019: HK$98,631,000) have been pledged to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group.
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EHMME - BERREEE AERER
TR R RAFE -

5 K 2s 10% —25%

E 10% —33%

PRERME 10% —20%

THEWMEEE 5% —50%

1gF HHEF S 2.5%
(ABFEE A %)

MN2020F 12 A31H  MEL#EEXN
BRI 1E A 114,277,000 7T (20194 :
113,600,000/8 7C) * BIFEE F AR FEH
19,782,0007% 7T (2019 £F : 24,935,000 %
) EARTASERITHE REM
BRI o

M2020%F 12 A31 B BREEA
102,402,000 75 (2019 4F : 98,631,000
BIL)MEFE TUERR  EAR TS
BERITRAE AIETR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020%F12 A31H It F/E

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES

(i) Right-of-use assets

17. EHEEERBEEAR

Land T
Buildings BgF
Plant and machinery R 55 K B3

(i) EHESE

2020 2019

2020 £ 20194

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#x Fi

35,575 34,313

21,128 11,870

5,601 4,593

62,304 50,776

Right-of-use assets of HK$35,575,000 (2019:
HK$34,313,000) represents land use rights located in the
PRC.

The Group has lease arrangements for factory premises
and offices and plant and machinery. The lease terms are
generally ranged from 2 to 6 years (2019: 2 to 6 years).

Extension options are included in the lease of buildings.
Certain periods covered by extension options were
included in these lease terms as the Group was reasonably
certain to exercise the option.

Additions to the right-of-use assets for the year ended
31 December 2020 amounted to HK$15,889,000 (2019:
HK$15,722,000), due to new leases of buildings and plant
and machinery.

(ii) Lease liabilities

156

i A #EE & 35,575,0007% 7T (2019
F 1 34,313,000 70) $EALL A B Y
T b {E AR o

AEBREIBWERRAZTUR
WMENEENHELE - HEHR
—NF2xE64F (2019F : 256
F) o

BFHETREEREEZZ AR
AEBEREMETEZERE &
EREERRENE THREESAHA
ZEHEH -

HE2020F 12 A31 B IEFE -
{5 A & B 32 0015,889,0007% JT
(20194 : 15,722,000 7T) - Jh M
RETF - BE R SRR -

Non-current IERED
Current mE

(i) HEEE

2020 2019

2020 £ 20194

HK$’000 HK$'000

FBT FHTT

15,419 10,343

8,974 4,539

24,393 14,882
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020%F 12831 HILtFE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 17. FRAEEERBEEGE (B)
LIABILITIES (continued)
(i) Lease liabilities (i) HEAE
2020 2019
2020 £ 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
Amounts payable under lease liabilities RIZEHHE & FEMN KA FET FET
Within one year —FR 8,974 4,539
After one year but within two years —FREMRFA 5,668 3,096
After two years but within five years MERERFAN 9,751 5,648
After five years AFI% - 1,699
24,393 14,882
Less: Amount due for settlement within W 1218 A A R Ef
12 months (shown under current HEE R FIE (RRE
liabilities) BEETIIR) (8,974) (4,539)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months #1218 A & 2| M5 E 1 FE 15,419 10,343
As at 31 December 2020, the lease liabilities in respect R2020F 12 A31 H  RIEHEE W
of leased machineries under hire purchase agreements FHEKSEMNHEESE /2,702,000
amounted to HK$2,702,000 (2019: HK$3,146,000) 770 (20194 © 3,146,000 L) -
with purchase option at consideration of HK$1,000 was BEEREENRE,0008 T hE
secured by the title of the lessor, who is a related party of HABARRTHNBEEAL)WAEE
the Company, to the leased assets. During the year ended BEMAEKE - RNEE2020F 12
31 December 2020, the Group entered into a number of A31BLFE AEBEGEEEF
new lease agreements in respect of renting buildings and AR BE MR 2B HE 7%
plant and machinery and recognised lease liabilities of &I B R E & (515,889,000 %
HK$15,889,000 (2019: HK$15,722,000). 70 (20194F : 15,722,000/&70) °
(iii) Amounts recognised in profit or loss (iii) AIREERHRE
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TiExT FHET
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE
- Land — i 895 844
— Buildings —EF 6,083 1,193
— Plant and machinery — B M a3 732 556
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEABNERAX 1,241 423
Expense relating to short-term leases RHEERX 3,521 6,845
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020%F12 A31H It F/E

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 17. FHEEERHEESE ()

LIABILITIES (continued)

(iv) Others

As 31 December 2020, the Group is committed to
HK$124,000 (2019: HK$5,581,000) for lease agreements
not yet commenced.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the total cash
outflow for leases amount to HK$12,529,000 (2019:
HK$10,705,000).

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL

(iv) EHith
MN2020F12 A31 B » K& B 5t i
& F A B T & 5 52 & 5 124,000 8
7T (20194 : 5,581,000787T) ©

REZ2020F12 A31HIEEE -
FAE/MIE R L 42% 512,529,000
77T (20194F © 10,705,000 7T) ©

18. BAREFARSZ2EMEE

2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
Fx TET

Investment in a life insurance policy

ASRBERE

3,510 -

In February 2020, the Group’s subsidiary, Wai Chi Opto
Technology Limited (“Wai Chi Opto”), entered into a life
insurance policy with an insurance company to insure Ms. Yiu
Kwan Yu, a director of the Company. Under the policy, the
beneficiary and the policy holder is Wai Chi Opto and the total
insured sum is approximately US$3,492,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$27,238,000). The Group was required to pay
an one-off premium payment of approximately US$600,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$4,680,000). The Group can
terminate the policy at any time and receive cash back based
on the cash value of the policy at the date of withdrawal (“Cash
Value”), which is determined by the premium payment plus
accumulated interest earned minus the accumulated insurance
charges and a specified amount of surrender charge if the
withdrawal is made before the specified policy year.
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B2020F 28  AEERHWE QR E
EXREERAR(EERXRE]) 82—
R AR LASBRERE  LABKXAR
EEUEBMZITHRR - RIBERE  X=
ARREFBARBELENRE MER
REEE543,492,000F T (BBERD
27,238,000 L) - AEBAZ N — X
MR B 3 49600,0003 7T (ER 4
4,680,000 7T) ° 2N & B 7] 1 1A B 1R
WILRE TERERABRENES
EE(HRLEE) KDRe FHEES
BEDZEENAZM EABRRZRTHE
BREFREREAAETSBEMNERRTF
BB (WRETREFTERR) ET -
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19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTOCI

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020%F 12831 HILtFE

1&?@@%%AEM%EW§Z

2019

20194

HK$’000 HK$'000

TET T

Investment in an unlisted equity RIELTRAZIZE 3,683 -
The unlisted equity securities are issued by a private entity FELTRAFLERE R 09 VAP N

incorporated in Taiwan.

The investment was not held for trading. Instead, it was held
for medium to long-term strategic purposes. Accordingly, the
directors of the Company have elected to designate these
investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI as they believe
that recognising short-term fluctuations in these investments’ fair
value in profit or loss would not be consistent with the Group’s
strategy of holding these investments for long-term purposes

ANEREIT-

and realising their performance potential in the long run. B2 B o

20. INVENTORIES

Raw materials
Work-in-progress
Finished goods

ZREBVWFFHFEEERE AR HTY
HRPRABEENMETHRE -
bt ARARERRERZERERER
BRREARMEE RS 2 BT A
ARKRERS REDEAZERELZ
RABERPEBATTEARETHZ
EREFRVYAZRANKREFRERA

20. 78
2020 2019
2020 £ 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FET
B 20,621 18,065
EEM 84,148 90,719
2K M 115,941 102,800
220,710 211,584
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020%F12 A31H It F/E

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

21. BRI R RiR

2020 2019
2020 fF 20194
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET

Receivables at amortised cost comprise: LR AN ETE M EINEUR

BIE

Trade receivables JEUR BR 3k 592,182 484,539
Less: allowance for impairment W R E R (25,442) (30,260)
566,740 454,279
Bills receivables FEEIE 157,675 92,069
724,415 546,348

As at 31 December 2020, the gross amount of trade
receivables arising from contracts with customers amounted to
HK$592,182,000 (2019: HK$484,539,000).

The Group allows an average credit period of 15 to 180 days
(2019: 15 to 180 days) to its trade customers. The following
is an aged analysis of trade receivables (net of allowance for
impairment of trade receivables) presented based on the invoice
date, which approximates the respective revenue recognition
dates, at the end of the reporting period.

MR2020F 12 A31H KEABRFAHHN
JiE Uk BR 3 48 5B /5 592,182,00078 7T (2019
£F 1 484,539,000 7T) °

AEERMEESEPFPETI5E180K
(20194 : 1562 180K) W FHZEH -
AT ARRHREHRIZESE A (BEiEH
WESERBEESE) 258 EYERF (0
FR YR OB BB ) MERER D AT o

0 to 90 days 0ZE 90K

91 to 180 days 91E 180K
181 to 365 days 181 £ 365K
Over 365 days 365 KA £

2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
Ti&xT FHET
554,649 427,829
8,369 19,893
3,722 3,125

- 3,432
566,740 454,279

All the bills receivables are aged within 365 days.

160

B W RIEMIRER I B 365 KA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M5 RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020%F 12831 HILtFE

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(continued)

The Group measures the loss allowance for trade receivables at
an amount equal to lifetime ECL. The ECL on trade receivables
are estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past
default experience of the debtor and an analysis of the debtor’s
current financial position, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions of the industry
in which the debtors operate and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the
reporting date.

As the Group’s historical credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly difference loss patterns for different customers
segments, the allowance based on past due status is not further
distinguished between the Group’s different customer bases
during the year.

The following table provides information which are assessed
based on provision matrix.

21. BURERMR R R iR (4)

AEEREERNFEREREEEED
TR ERUR M E R AR o KR
ROEHMEEERERABBREMES
WE2EZBEBANBEEOLCHENEBA
BRI EAOR DA REBER IS B
BEHEARENRE - BEHALEMET
F o — RSB TIA K B 7 R IR R
T RARFHEFLFE -

el 30 AR A R L A 2 (2 BB A0 B
TRASEFRER ERRNER LA
BEER FAEEERERE0S
R R R R E—SE S TRNE
PR -

TRE®RBEBEEMRFEHER -

Weighted
average Gross
expected loss carrying
rate amount Allowance
hn#ET5
FEHAES IR IREAE BiE
% HK$’000 HK$°000
As at 31 December 2020 #20205F12A31H TiEx TEx
Collectively assessed SR
0 to 90 days 0Z2 90K 0.23% 555,912 1,263
91 to 180 days 91 E180K 0.66% 8,425 56
181 to 365 days 181 £365K 1.33% 3,772 50
Over 365 days 365 KA E 100% 24,073 24,073
592,182 25,442
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020%F12 A31H It F/E

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 21. BWERR KR EiR (8)
(continued)
Weighted
average Gross
expected loss carrying
rate amount Allowance
IntE
TEAAE R X RE2E B
% HK$'000 HK$’000
As at 31 December 2019 72019412 A31 H FHET FET
Individually assessed (EEIERE 0.99% 328,912 3,270
Collectively assessed ST
0 to 90 days VEC PN 0.52% 117,963 611
91 to 180 days 91 E180K 0.02% 10,548 2
181 to 365 days 181 £ 365K 5.63% 568 32
Over 365 days 365 KA £ 99.24% 26,548 26,345
155,627 26,990
484,539 30,260
Generally, trade receivables are written-off when there is —MME BEMBREBRARREE
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial BN R EERO AT AL - BEAE
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery and are 178 BN 1T S BB - RIHSH B AR SR -
not subject to enforcement activity. The Group does not hold REB W BB HEITRIELER o

collateral as security.

The movements of impairment of trade receivables are as FEMEBR R R EZE BT ¢
follows:

2020 2019
2020 £F 20194
HK$’000 HK$’'000
Ti&xT FHET
At 1 January M1HA1H 30,260 29,655
(Reversal of) impairment loss recognised (B0 ERERBIERIE (6,193) 2,450
Written off 1 85 - (1,193
Exchange realignment M H 1,375 (652)
At 31 December M®12 A31H 25,442 30,260
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020%F 12831 HILtFE

22, PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 22, FEATFIE - e R H AU
RECEIVABLES 15
2020 2019
2020 £ 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
Ti&xT FHET
Deposits and other receivables Re R H A FRIE 75,779 43,627
Less: allowance for impairment of R B RE MR IE R B B
other receivables (2,652) (2,184)
73,127 41,443
Value added tax receivables JE MR E 3,831 2,754
Prepayments TEfT5RIE 74,143 218,471
151,101 262,668
Details of impairment assessment of other receivables for the BRAHZE20200F 12431 B IEFEME
year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in Note 6. it & W R IBR B AT (i M) S B S A6 o
The movements of impairment of other receivables are as Ht B F AR EZS T ¢
follows:
2020 2019
2020 £ 20194
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TExT FHT
At 1 January ®1A1H 2,184 1,532
Impairment loss recognised EERBEBE 379 673
Exchange realignment b 5 A= 89 (1)
At 31 December M12A31H 2,652 2,184
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £ Z20205F12 A31H IFFE

23. DEPOSITS WITH BANK/PLEDGED BANK 23. RITER BIRFHRITER

DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND CASH
Deposits with bank

The deposits with banks carried interest rates at 3.3% per
annum at 31 December 2020, with an original maturity of 3
years.

Pledged bank deposits

Pledged bank deposits are pledged to banks to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group. Deposits amounting to
HK$277,267,000 (2019: HK$176,963,000) as at 31 December
2020 had been pledged to secure bank borrowings and bills
payables due within one year and are therefore classified as
current assets.

The pledged deposits carried interest rates ranging from 0.3%
10 0.38% (2019: 0.3% to 2%) per annum at 31 December 2020.

Bank balances and cash

The bank balances and cash comprised cash held by the Group
and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less. The bank balances at 31 December 2020
carried interest at the prevailing market rate ranging from 0.01%
t0 0.38% (2019: 0.01% to 0.35%) per annum.

The Group’s bank balances and cash denominated in RMB
amounted to HK$110,712,000 (2019: HK$88,959,000) at 31
December 2020. Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies
is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sales and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations.

164

RITEBRRRE
RITER

M2020F 12 A31 B » $R1T1F % #%3.3%
ZERMERE - RBEAAESEF -

EEPRITEM

EERMBTEREER FRITEART
REBEFRITRENER - R2020F 12
A31H - B & #1F5X277,267,000/%& 7T
(20194 : 176,963,000 7T) @ fEA—
FREIERRITE R REMNZHRIEE
Ei DB AR EE -

M2020F12 A31H » 2B EZZN
F0.3% £0.38% (20194 : 0.3% & 2% )
R F R KT8 o

RITEBRERE

BITEHREBESREAEEFENRS
NEBEA A =8 A sk AR E R T
T o R2020F 12 A1 HRR1T4 %
BEROIMBFMNEFTE M F001%=E
0.38% (20194 : 0.01% £0.35%) °

R2020F 12 A31H  KEBUARE
FHEMRITESR MRS A110,712,000 7
JC (2019 4F : 88,959,000/8 L) - A R ¥
H A HNEE 7B 38 <7 A B S E B IR K1 %
e - SEERNETERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020%F 12831 HILtFE

24. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES 24. BAIRM - EREBREME
AND ACCRUALS FTRIEUARFEREH
2020 2019
2020 £ 20194
HK$°000 HK$'000
T FHET
Trade payables (Note a) JE T BR 3k (i 3k @) 295,154 241,923
Bills payables (Note a) FE =45 (FisEa) 545,268 296,147
840,422 538,070
Other payables H M ET IR 6,848 29,122
Accrued expenses TEIRRISZ 21,906 21,159
Value added tax payables JFE TS E R 7,213 5,531
35,967 55,812
876,389 593,882
Note: 5T
(@) The aging analysis of trade payables presented based on the invoice @ HIREHR EBEZAHZIIMEMNER
date at the end of the reporting period is as follows: RECHTIAT -
2020 2019
2020 £F 20194F
HK$°000 HK$'000
T FiET
0 to 90 days 0ZE90 K 264,392 190,615
91 to 180 days 91 £180K 22,850 44,689
181 to 365 days 181 2365k 1,500 1,074
Over 365 days 365 K LA 6,412 5,545
295,154 241,923
The average credit period on purchase of goods is from 30 days to 90 HEE T EEA30KENK © 48
days. The Group has financial risk management policies or plans for its EEMEMZENZEHRE RS REAR
payables with respect to the credit timeframe. BB -
The bills payables are aged within 365 days. FERE R RN A 365 KN ©
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e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020%F12 A31H It F/E

25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 25. AR E
2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
Ti&xT FHT
Advances received to deliver goods BRANE mBER R 6,210 8,518
In general, the Group receives certain percentage of the contract —MRME  AEBEREZBHEHESAOKM
sum as advance payment from the customers upon signing of EERB—TEALENEHCEIERTE
the sales contracts. RFRIE -
The changes in contract liabilities in 2020 was mainly due to the 2020 F A B EMNES JiE ZHK 2020
decrease in purchases order from customers in late 2020. FREPHKBATE R -
Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December 2020 MR2019F 12 ABTHNE N B ERIES
that was included in the contract liabilities as at 31 December Z2020F 12 AT HIEFE®RH K=
2019 was HK$8,518,000 (2019: HK$78,089,000). There 8,518,000 7T (20194 : 78,089,000 %
was no revenue recognised in the current year that related to )  MERAFERERBEEFER
performance obligations that were satisfied in a prior year. MEHEEMUE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020%F 12831 HILtFE

26. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 26. SRIT R EMEK
2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
Ti&xT FHT
Secured: BHEM
Trust receipts loans (Note a) ERBEER (FiEa) 80,052 47,508
Other bank loans (Note b) HEaiRITER (MizEb) 182,924 126,655
Other loan (Note c) HEMER (M) 12,304 23,584
275,280 197,747
Unsecured: EEA
Other bank loans (Note b) HEMRTER (HiEb) 71,289 90,424
346,569 288,171
Bank and other borrowings repayable (based — FE{E & R1T K E b &3k (IR &
on scheduled repayment dates set out in loan BN E R HHNTEEER
agreements): HEHR) :
Within one year R—FK 335,707 272,611
More than one year but not exceeding two MR —FET BB
years 5,634 13,560
More than two years but not exceeding five HBEMFETBERF
years 5,228 2,000
346,569 288,171
Less: Carrying amount of bank and other W EREBREERE—FA
borrowings that are not repayable within EEERSKRERESR
one year from the end of the reporting IERRIERTT R E Ab X
period but contain a repayment on FEENRSAaE
demand clause (shown under HRHR)
current liabilities) (10,862) (15,560)
Less: Carrying amount of bank and other B RAREBERRE—FNRN
borrowings that are repayable within EERBEREKXESR
one year from the end of the reporting IR R IRTT R E A fE X
period and contain a repayment on AREE
demand clause (335,707) (272,611)
Amount shown under current liabilities RIREBEIE NI RHFIE (346,569) (288,171)
Amount shown under non-current liabilities RIEMB B EIB T REIRIE - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020%F12 A31H It F/E

26. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(continued)

Notes:

(@

168

As at 31 December 2020, trust receipts loan with carrying amounts of
HK$80,052,000 (2019: HK$47,508,000) carried floating rate of interest
of 1-month HIBOR/LIBOR plus 2.5% (2019: 1-month HIBOR/LIBOR
plus 2.5%) per annum and was due within 3 months (2019: within 3
months).

As at 31 December 2020, the other bank loans of HK$47,526,000
and HK$206,687,000 carried interest at fixed rates and floating rates
respectively (2019: HK$11,163,000 and HK$205,916,000 respectively).
The range of effective interest rates per annum on the Group’s other
bank loans are as follows:

26. RITREMER (&

FAE

72020412 A 318 - §E 580,052,000
7 7T (2019 4F : 47,508,000 7T) #I 15 7L Uk
BEFE-—MAABERTRERENE
WBERITRZER EFE NN 2.5% (20194 -
—EABBRITREREFE MaRIRTT
EIZEHFEFEMN2.5%)KIZEVFH K58 -
WA =EAREIE (20196 : Z@AR) °

R2020F12A31 8 HMETER
47,526,000 7T I 206,687,000 7% 7T 2 Bl A
EEFERFEF RS (2019F - 5 5l
711,163,000 7T & 205,916,000 7T) °
REBEMBITEROEREFN KRG E
T

Fixed rates bank loans

Floating rates bank loans

B A R RITE R

TFENFRBITER

2020 2019

2020 £F 20194
5.66-7.60% 7.60%
HIBOR/LIBOR HIBOR/LIBOR
plus plus
2.50%-3.00% 2.50%-3.00%
FRMBITEARFE FBRITAERS
F=E RBRT FZ MR IRTT
EESHSEIES EESN-RES
M2.50% £3.00% H12.50% % 3.00%
LPR plus LPR plus

0.64% to 1.90% 0.64% to 1.89%
RERERVEN SEFERFIERM

0.64% £1.90% 0.64% % 1.89%

As at 31 December 2020, the other loan of HK$12,304,000 (2019:
HK$23,584,000) carried interest at 4.98% (2019: 4.98%). In 2019,
Huizhou Wai Chi Electronics Company Limited* (‘Huizhou Wai Chi”), a
subsidiary of the Group, entered into a sales and leaseback agreement
for financing with an amount of HK$24,560,000. Pursuant to which,
Huizhou Wai Chi sold certain plant and machineries to a financial
institution (the “lessor”), which shall then be leased back for use by
Huizhou Wai Chi, with the lease period of 2 years from the date of
inception. Upon expiry of the lease term, Huizhou Wai Chi has the right
to repurchase the leased assets in accordance with the agreed terms
and with a consideration of a nominal amount of RMB1,000.

20205 12 A31 H » 12,304,000 7T
(20194 : 23,584,000/ 7T) My H fth & %
4.98% =18 (20194F : 4.98%) < A 20194 -
REBEWBAREMNEEETERAR (B
MEBEHED I IHEERLAGE LS
/524,560,000 7T  HE It - BMNEEFE
FHERESETE T —Momis ((HE
A HepgHEBERERMNESER M
HEMBBER2F - RABHERE =
MNEEEERHEBRTANBERBARE
1,000 CHERI A EE E -

Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited | &R ER Q7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M HRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020%F 12831 HILtFE

26. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(continued)

Notes: (continued)
(d) As at 31 December 2020, secured bank loans of HK$182,924,000
(2019: HK$126,655,000) were secured by:

i The pledge of certain property, plant and equipment of the Group
with carrying value of HK$110,077,000 (2019: HK$108,916,000)
as at 31 December 2020 as set out in Note 16;

ii. The pledge of certain right of use assets with carrying value of
HK$35,575,000 (2019: HK$34,313,000) as set out in Note 17;
iii. The pledge of bank deposits as set out in Note 23;

iv.  The pledge of a property held by a related company of the
Group, in which Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu is the common director; and

() As at 31 December 2020, the Group has undrawn available trade

financing and bank loan facilities of HK$230,221,000 (2019:
HK$285,980,000).

27. DEFERRED TAXATION

26. SR1TR HMERR ()

MisE - (88)

(d 7 2020%F 12 A31H + 189,924,000/% 7T
(20194 : 126,655,000 JT) ) E K 17 4§
TERTIA TS A EE R

MM 16T E - R2020%F
12A31A  AEERKRERE
A110,077,000 7 T (20194 :
108,916,000/&7T) K& T¥ % - BW&E
Mkt

i, WOME1THE EFEREDE
% 35,575,000 7T (2019 &F :
34,313,000 70) METERAEEE:

i. PN FE23 T - EAERITE A

v. ERBAKE-HEEAR (MER
LERAEARER)RENNE K

() TH2020F12A31H  AEEEKIEWME
588 K R1T B 5K Eh & 230,221,000 7T
(20194 : 285,980,000/8 7T) °

Deferred tax assets EERIAE B
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIBEAE

27. IRIEFRIE

2020 2019

2020 £ 20194

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FExT FET

8,312 8,455

(381) -

7,931 8,455
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7 & M358 RO

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F12 831 H I FfE

27. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities)
recognised and movements thereof during the current and prior

27. EIEFIA (4R)
7R [ 3B 1 4 [ BT R R A E RSB
BAE (BE) REEHMT

years:

Difference
between
depreciation
allowance
and related

depreciation
TERER
HEATE
=8
HK$’000
T

Impairment
and
allowances

mERBRE
HK$’000
TAT

A
[=N-]

HK$’'000

T T

At 1 January 2019 201941 818 (32) 8,142 8,110
Credited to profit or loss (Note 11) 5+ ABz% (FizE11) 88 443 531
Exchange realignment [ 5 P - (186) (186)
At 31 December 2019 and R2019F 12 A31 B &

1 January 2020 2020461 A1 8 56 8,399 8,455
Charged to profit or loss (Note 11) 5+ A 845 (FizE11) (437) (591) (1,028)
Exchange realignment PE 3 B - 504 504
At 31 December 2020 7202012 31 H (381) 8,312 7,931

As at 31 December 2020, certain subsidiaries of the Group
had aggregate unused tax losses of HK$60,665,000 (2019:
HK$70,283,000) available for offset against future profits. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of these
unused tax losses due to the unpredictability of future income
stream of these subsidiaries. As at 31 December 2020, tax
losses of HK$3,839,000 (2019: HK$17,808,000) will be expired
within 5 years. With effective from 1 January 2018, the tax losses
incurred by “High and New Technology Enterprise” (‘HNTE”) of
HK$22,912,000 (2019: HK$11,521,000) will expire in ten years
from the year in which the loss originated. Other losses may be
carried forward indefinitely.

170

202012 A31H AEEE THE
A AR R AR R E A IR
&5 18 4% %8 /5 60,665,000 7T (2019 4F :
70,283,000/ 7L) - MR B UTE R ZF
M AR M ARRM AR MW BEHRZS
APAREBEERECREEE - ¥
20204 12 A 31 H + # 18 /& 18 3,839,000
# 7T (20194F : 17,808,000 TT) #5554
NEH - B2018FE1A1BE  [2FH K
M ((EMEMEE]) E4x 2 HIARS
822,912,000 7T (2019 4F : 11,521,000
B SaBEEEZBRTERER -
H i EE ] ER BT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020%12 531 H IFF[E

DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has deductible temporary
differences of HK$107,204,000 (2019: HK$114,682,000).
A deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to
HK$53,218,000 (2019: HK$49,936,000) of such temporary
differences. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
relation to the remaining HK$53,986,000 (2019: HK$64,746,000)
as it is not probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends in respect of profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries
from 1 January 2008 onwards (the “Post-2008 Earnings”).
As at 31 December 2020, deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect
of temporary difference attributable to the “Post-2008 Earnings”
amounting to HK$535,621,000 (2019: HK$501,465,000) as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

CORPORATE BOND

In 2017, the Group issued a 7.5 year corporate bond with
principal amount of HK$2,000,000 to an independent third
party, net of direct expenses of HK$300,000, which will be due
in September 2023. The corporate bond carried interest at a
fixed rate of 8% per annum with interest payable annually in
arrears. The corporate bond is unsecured. The effective interest
rate of the corporate bond is approximately 11.05% per annum.

27.

28.

IRAEFRIE (48)

MN2020F 12 A31 8 - K& Ea] 115
RS M 2 %8 5 107,204,0005% 7T (2019
% 114,682,000/ 70) cEMZEE
B M 2= %8 7 53,218,000 7T (2019 4F
49,936,000 7T) ERIELEFR A& E °
AR FESR AL R A5 A] B MBI S8 AT F0R
BTN R I ERL BT
53,986,000 % 7T (2019 4F : 64,746,000
T0) RIEETRIEEE -

BIEF B TS HE - 82008 4F 1
A1R - R BB R 5 H AT A
H ([2008FE EMBFI]) A B AR
TEFFL o F P 7N 5 B A) 45 ) 8¢ [ T B 14
EEMEE MEBEREEZEAET
ERATTER B REE - %2020
F12A8318  WERGAEFBHRENR
L2008 F AT | E(INERMEE
535,621,000 7T (20194 : 501,465,000
PETT) RRERITEE L B -

DEEH

R2017F » AEBEABULE= FETAR
% 82,000,000 LK 7.5F R EIES -
0B & # B9 5 300,000 7T+ #§ 72023
FOAEH - REEHIEETEFEEE%
AR (BFHAIZIMNFE) - RREH
WHEKE - REEFNERTFMNENA
11.05% °

HK$’000

T

At 1 January 2019 R2019F1 A1 H 1,816
Effective interest expenses (Note 10) ERFERZ (M 10) 200
Interest paid during the year FREFNFIE (160)

At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 R2019F 12 A31 B X% 202041 A1 H 1,856
Effective interest expenses (Note 10) ERFMEMAZ (HFE10) 200
Interest paid during the year FARABEMAFE (160)

At 31 December 2020 202012 A31 H 1,896
2020 Annual Report | £ 1 71



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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29. GOVERNMENT GRANTS 29. BT # Bh

HK$’000
FET
At 1 January 2019 R2019F1 A1 H 17,947
Government grants utilised during the year (Note 7) FRNE BB (FE7) (137)
Exchange realignment bE 5 S (390)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 2019912 A31 B X 202041 A1H 17,420
Government grants utilised during the year (Note 7) FANE BB B (FIFE7) (136)
Exchange realignment ME W S 1,114
At 31 December 2020 ©2020F 12 A31H 18,398
2020 2019
2020 £ 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
T8 T T

Analysis for reporting purposes as: MBEREINMA
Non-current liabilities EmEAE 18,398 17,420

As at 31 December 2020, the government grants of
HK$18,398,000 (2019: HK$17,420,000) which were designated
for certain research projects, export incentives, technical
innovation, localisation incentives and fiscal refund were granted
by the PRC municipal government. The government grants are
stated as non-current liabilities in the consolidated statement
of financial position as the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that certain conditions in respect of these grants will not

be fulfilled within the next twelve months from the end of the

reporting period.

172

R2020%F 12 A31H - EEEARARE TH
FRIER - HORE - FITAIF - 5
B K B BUR 3R BT 43 Bh 18,398,000 74
7C (20194 : 17,420,000 JT) J5 AR [
TERARET BARAAREERABT
SR EZHME AR ARRI2ME A NIEAZ
EWBNETIEG  MBUTEBRES
FHBRARYRABIERBIAE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M HRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020%F 12831 HILtFE

30. SHARE CAPITAL

The share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2020 and
2019 is as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each Fix0.01ETHEBE
Authorised ETE

30. lg &

RABIR2020F & 2019F 12 A31 B A
fEAIN TR

Number of shares Share capital
IRIB#E RA
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000

TEx TAT

At 1 January and 31 December R1A1ER12A31H 1,000,000,000  1,000,000,000 10,000 10,000

Issued and fully paid BEIRER

At 1 January and 31 December M1A1BK12A31H 216,825,000 216,825,000 2,168 2,168
31. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION N.EEHBHEXRS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group entered
into a lease arrangement in respect of acquisition of right-of-use
assets with total capital values at the inception of the lease of
HK$15,889,000 (2019: HK$15,722,000).

32. CAPITAL COMMITMENT

REE2020F12 A31BIEFEE K
EERREERMKEBEERELE
15,889,000 7T (2019 4F : 15,722,000 %
TL)MEREEER L —ERERTH -

32. EAXEIE
2020 2019
2020 £ 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tl Tt

Capital expenditure in respect of the acquisition 2 5] 4718 4 K R 4R & B #3RK

of property, plant and equipment contracted
for but not provided in the consolidated
financial statements

Wt e BRANED X -
BB EEEZERNFAX

32,108 -

Subsequent to 31 December 2020, the Group acquired the
equipments for own use for an aggregate consideration of
HK$45,869,000. Details refer to the announcement dated 18
December 2020.
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R2020F 12 A31H%E - KEBE ALK
845,869,000/ LIEA B AR E - 718
BE2MHEHEA2020F 12 B18HZ A& -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020%F12 A31H It F/E

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES

In addition to the transactions and balances detailed elsewhere
in the consolidated financial statements, the Group has entered
into the following significant transactions with related parties
during the year.

(a)

(b)

174

Compensation of key management
personnel

Other than the remuneration paid to the directors and
employees of the Group as set out in Note 13, who are
considered as the key management personnel of the
Group, the Group did not have any other significant
compensations to key management personnel.

The remuneration of the directors of the Company and key
management personnel of the Group is determined by the
board of directors of the Company having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

Banking facilities and bank and other
borrowings

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, certain banking
facilities and other borrowings of the Group were
guaranteed by Mr. Yiu Chi To, the ultimate controlling
party and the director of the Company, and Ms. Luk Fong,
spouse of Mr. Yiu Chi To, to the following extent:

3. FAEALRZREH
BINRA B SRR IS TN S

Ko 4

o AEBECDRFRNEBEAL

RIMIATERRS -

(a)

(b)

FEEEBASHNHE

BRME1SMEX N T AREES
LkEE (RERESAEEETEE
BAB)OMFMIN  AEEILERA
TREEABXNEMEMEAR

fg e

ARREFRAKEETEZEEAE
MFMBEARFREZTSLEEREA
REALTEBHBET -

RITMEBEURRITREAM
BE

R 20204 2019412 A31H » i
BIRER T RARREEKEE %
& Rk B T A 2 BB by i
REOAEBE S TRITRE R EAE
A

Rt
hEE KL

Ms. Luk Fong
Mr. Yiu Chi To

2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FHEIT
285,158 267,923
439,618 492,449
724,776 760,372

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, certain banking
facilities of the Group were secured by a charge over
a property owned by a related company. Details of the
guarantees are set out in Note 26.

MR 20204F K 201912 A31H » &
SEETRTMERBELRES
BV EREEER - BREFBHEN
BT 26 ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020%12 531 H IFF[E

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

BALANCES (continued)

(c) Other related parties transactions

Name of company
RNEEE REMHE

Nature of transaction

33.BEAEANTR S KR (E)

(c) EBAZEALR S

2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
THExT FHT

Maxtone Electronics Limited (‘Maxtone”)  Lease and interest payment

EFARETERAR(BEERE)D

MRE R F B

1,182 1,157

A director of the Company has beneficial interest in
Maxtone. The above transaction was at terms determined
and agreed by the Group and the relevant party.

In 2019, the Group entered into a two-year lease in
respect of office premises from Maxtone. The amount of
rent payable by the Group under the lease is HK$98,500
per month. Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
HK$2,256,000 were recognised at the commencement of
the lease. As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of
such lease liabilities is HK$293,000 (2019: HK$1,430,000).
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has
made lease payment of HK$1,182,000 to Maxtone (2019:
HK$1,157,000).

34. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group participates in the MPF Scheme for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control
of trustees. The Group contributes 5% of relevant costs to the
scheme, which contribution is matched by employees. The
contributions from each of the employer and employees are
subject to a cap of HK$1,500 per month.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiary established in
the PRC are members of state-managed retirement benefit
schemes operated by the PRC government. The PRC
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentage of its
payroll to the retirement benefits schemes to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit schemes is to make the required contributions under the
scheme.

The Group made contributions to the retirement benefits
schemes of HK$11,737,000 (2019: HK$17,093,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2020.
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AR —REZHAEFANER
o PR ZEAKERERBEA
TEETE MW E M IRFETT

R20194F - AEEREFT BRI A
METLABPMENEAE - AEE
BEREEMNNES AT A 98,500
BT c MTHE AR O HERE A
EENMHEEEE2,256,00087C ° B
202012 A31H ZEHEAE
B BR T {8 4 293,00078 7 (2019 4F -
1,430,000/ 70) ° REIE 20204 12
AB1HIEFE AEEEMEETHE
SR & FIE 1,182,000 7T (2019
4 11,157,000/ 70) °

34. RIRBEHIGTE

AEBAMEBEEEAEREES MM
S A HEMEERTEAZHNE
e HBAEEMNEESHEER AL
B AR 5% Mt EIERER I
HEEBELREER BREREESHE
MR R AE A 1,500/8 7T °

ARBHEPERINMBRARNEERS
P AR B BT 2 0 O B R B R AR R AR AT
KB -HPEMERARARFENSE
T B RR KGR SR ASE
MIREES - AEBEERKEN GBI
MfE— B ERRIEAT B L AR EAHER

NEE2020F12A31HIEFE K
EEMERBEIFTEELNEHRA
11,737,000% 7T (2019 4F : 17,093,000
JT) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7 & M358 RO

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F12 831 H I FfE

35. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING BG.AMETHELEZ2EGZHIR
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising TR AEEREZTHEE L AEE
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash B aEReRIFReEH HRBE2
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for REREMELTY METDHELECZA
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified BEHACLABTEDERAGZARER
in the consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from ERNREMEIARKBESRE o

financing activities.

Non-cash changes

FREEY

Financing Finance Government Foreign
cash cost  New lease grants  exchange

1/1/2020 flows incurred  recognised  recognised movements  31/12/2020
00F  HMERE BEE =+ B 2020%
1B1A hE  HERE WHE  BEWB  SEZEH  12A%A

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx Titn Ti#xn TiEx TEx TEx TEx

Bank and other borrowings BIREME

(Note 26) (13t 26) 288,171 28,440 15,473 - - 14,485 346,569
Corporate bond (Note 28) NEEH (M28) 1,856 (160) 200 - - - 1,896
Government grants (Note 29) B F#i8) (Fi £ 29) 17,420 - - - (136) 1,114 18,398
Lease liabiltes (Note 17) BEaGE (W17 14,882 (7,070 1,241 15,889 - (549) 24,393

322,329 21,210 16,914 15,889 (136) 15,050 391,256
Non-cash changes
FREEY
Financing Finance Government Foreign
cash cost  New leases grants exchange
1172019 flows incured  recognised  recognised  movements  31/12/2019
0195 BARS BEE E#R EED 19%

1A18 mE BHRA FHE  BED JNEZEH 125318
HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL ThL Thx TEL THEL THEL TAL

Bank and other borrowings 47 REM{ER

(Note 26) (B 26) 313714 (37,786) 17,162 - - 4919) 288,171
Corporate bond (Note 28) NAlES (i35 28) 1816 (160) 200 - - - 1,856
Government grants (Note 29) BT 80 (5% 29) 17,947 - - - (137) (390) 17,420
Lease liabilties (Note 17) HEBGE(MH17) 2,584 (3,860) 43 15,722 - 13 14,882

336,061 (41,806) 17,785 15,722 (137) (5,296) 322,329
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020%F 12831 HILtFE

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY

36. A QA M IFARR R

2020 2019
2020 20194
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
ffy5E FHBxT FHETT
Non-current asset ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—REHERARZK’E 135,000 135,000
Current assets MENEE
Prepayments, deposits and other ENRIE - Ze &
receivables E fth pE Y 5h08 1,590 1,590
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFE U B BB 2 R 3R IE (@) 193,783 195,033
Bank balances and cash IRITEBR LIRS 1,352 1,352
196,725 197,975
Current liability nEAE
Other payables and accruals HiENRIENRTEREA 576 852
Net current assets RENBEFE 196,149 197,123
Total assets less current liabilities & ER A& E 331,149 332,123
Non-current liability EREIEE
Corporate bond NAEFH 1,896 1,856
Net assets BEEZRE 329,253 330,267
Capital and reserves BARR#E
Share capital % A< 2,168 2,168
Reserves s (b) 327,085 328,099
Total equity ERES 329,253 330,267
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7 & M358 RO

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F12 831 H I FfE

— N ﬁ
36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 36. A B B Ak R (48)
THE COMPANY (continued)
Notes: 5 -
(@) The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, carry prevailing (a) MEWRKIBARREAELEEKE - ERITMS
market interest rate and are repayable on demand. FMEFEURBRERER -
(b)  Movements in reserves b)) EEEEZH
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
B EE - 2] &%
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHIT T
As at 1 January 2019 MH2019%F1 A1H 331,977 (2,886) 329,091
Loss and total comprehensive expense  FEEE N 2 X 458
for the year - (992) (992)
As at 31 December 2019 and MR2019F 12 A31 B &
1 January 2020 202041 A1H 331,977 (8,878) 328,099
Loss and total comprehensive expense & EE1E N 2 M Y A5
for the year - (1,014) (1,014)
As at 31 December 2020 R2020% 12 A31H 331,977 (4,892) 327,085
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020%F 12831 HILtFE

37. SUBSIDIARIES 37. B AT
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows: KATRIMBARIMEFEAT :
Place of Issued and fully Percentage of equity
incorporation/  Place of paid share capital/  Kind of interest/voting power
Name of subsidiaries establishment  operation registered capital  legal entity attributable to the Company Principal activities
AL/ BETRUR
WEARARE RUME EEMA RAx/RMER  EARRER ARIEERE RREAL IEER
Direct Indirect
E% 3
2020 2019 2020 2019
PVIES 0019 RIAES 20194
Windrider Technology Company ~ The BVI Hong Kong Ordinary shares ~ Company with imited ~ 100% ~ 100% - - Investment holding
Limited AERAES BE US$100 bty REZK
LER10ET  BRAA
Techwide Management Company  The BV Hong Kong Ordlnary shares ~ Gompany with imited - - 100%  100%  Investmentholding
Limited iBREE AR US$100 bty REZK
EBRI0ZT  ARAA
Wai Chi Electronic Technology ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary shares  Company with limited - - 100%  100%  Investmentholding
Management Company Limted ~ &% 3 HK$100000  liabilty RERHR
EFETHRERARAT k1000008 ARRA
Ecosquare Energy Company The BVI Hong Kong Ordinary shares ~ Gompany with imited - - 100%  100%  Investmentholding
Limited iBRAEE AR US$100 bty REER
LER100£T  ARLA
Wai Chi Energy Senices Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary shares ~ Gompany with imited - - 100%  100%  Investmentholding
Company Limited & (3 HK$100000  liabiity REZR
EHEEREARAR Ldk1000008T  BRAT
Alled Solution Gompany Limited ~ The BVI Hong Kong Ordinary shares ~ Gompany with imited - - 100%  100%  Investment holding
ABRAHE  BR US$100  liabilty REBR
takioxr  ARRE
Wai Chi Group (HK) Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary shares ~ Gompany with imited - - 100%  100%  Investment holding
EHEEEERAT (5 B HK$135,100,000  fiabilty REBR
tEk  ARLA
135,100,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M HRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020%F12 A31H It F/E

37. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 37. B A 8] (4&)
Place of Issued and fully Percentage of equity
incorporation/  Place of paid share capital/  Kind of interest/voting power
Name of subsidiaries establishment  operation registered capital  legal entity attributable to the Company Principal activities
iRL/ EETRMR
KEATEH RUMH gEhY ka/ihEs  EARRER AREEERE/ RREAA IBRE
Wai Chi Opto Technology Limited ~ The PRC The PRC Ordinary shares  Company with limited Trading of LED
EEtEERAA HE hE HK$62,380,000  liabilty backight and
tak  AR2A lighting products
62,380,000 T and semiconductor
memory chips
BELEDEL
RAERRTE
RRECH
Wai Chi Opto Technology The PRC The PRC Registered capital ~ Company with imited Manufacture and sale
(Shenzhen) Limited” (Note g}~ i RMB97,128,000 liabilty of LED backiight
EFEE(RI)BRAT iMEx  ARRA and lighting
(Kiita) AR#97,128,0007T products and
sourcing business
HERHELEDEY
REBBER kT
BX%
Sanxia Wai Chi Opto Technology ~ The PRC The PRC Registered capital ~ Company with imited Manufacture and sale
(Yichang) Limited" (Note b hE i RMB30,000,000 liabilty of LED lighting
CESE(ER)BRAT #ER  BRAA products and
(Kzb) AR%30,000,0007T provision of LED

180

light installation
service
RERHELEDEN
EmRRELEDR
BRERH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020%F 12831 HILtFE

37. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 37. B A 8] (4&)
Place of Issued and fully Percentage of equity
incorporation/  Place of paid share capital/  Kind of interest/voting power
Name of subsidiaries establishment  operation registered capital  legal entity attributable to the Company Principal activities
HRRL/ EETRMR
KEATEH RUME gEhY ka/ihEs  EARRER ARIEERE RREAL IBER
Direct Indirect
E# [}
2020 mEvol 2020 [P
PVIEN 0019% RUAES 20194
Shenzhen Wai Chi Lighting The PRC The PRC Registered capital -~ Company with fimited - - 100%  100%  Manufacture and sale
Company Limited" (No eh)  F # R\B5,000,000 liability of LED lighting
AT EERAER AT AMEr  BRAA products
(Fizto) ARH5,0000007 SERHEELED
RAER
Beiing Senhuan Energy The PRC The PRC Registered capital -~ Company with fimited - - 100%  100%  Inactive
Management Company HE mE RMB5,800,000  liabilty Bt
Limited" (Note b) ifiEx  BRAF
FRREBEHRARLA AR 5,800,000
(Riztp)
Huizhou Wai Chi Electronics The PRC The PRC Registered capital ~ Company with fimited - - 100%  100%  Manufacture and sale
Company Limited® (Noteb) % RMB144,113,349  liabilty of LED backlight
ENEEETERAR (Mitb) HEx  BRLF and lighting
ARE144113,349 7 products
HEREELEDE Y
RERER
Wai Chi Jingmi Hardware The PRC The PRC Registered capital ~ Company with fimited - - 100%  100% Inactive
(Huizhou) Company Limited* R hE US$3,720000  labiity Bt
(Note b) AR BRAA
EERZRL 2R (ZM) 372000057
BRAR (M)
ENEEXEREARAT  ThePRC The PRC Registered capital ~ Company with Imited - - 100%  100%  Manufacture and sale
(Note b) (R 5£b) HE hE RMB4,838200  liabilty of LED backlight
ifiEx  BRAF products
AR 4838007 RERHELED
BhER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M HRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, Z2020% 12 A31HILF

3

37. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 37. B A 8] (4&)
Place of Issued and fully Percentage of equity
incorporation/  Place of paid share capital/  Kind of interest/voting power
Name of subsidiaries establishment  operation registered capital  legal entity attributable to the Company Principal activities
iRL/ EETRMR
KEATEH RUMH gEhY ka/ihEs  EARRER ARIEERE RREAL IBER
Direct Indirect
E# [}
2020 mEvol 2020 [P
20205 OLE 20205 QAR
EMESYEEERAT The PRC The PRC Registered capital ~ Company with Imited - - % - Manufacturing
(Note b) (R 3£b) il mE RMB5,000000  liabilty and trading of
ifiEx  BRAF semiconductor
AR%5,000,0007 memory chips
BEREEYEER
)

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

BEK B AR R MEFERETERNE

end of both years. HEH o

Notes: k=3

(8)  The entity is wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC. @@ HERAENPBEKXINIIEBEDE-
(b)  These entities are limited liability companies established in the PRC. b) ZEEEANTBEKZNBRAR -

* The English name is for identification purpose only * BN ZTEERER
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES

MR E

Percentage
interest of
Property the Group Floor Area Usage as at 31 December 2020
AEBEIEFHERS
L/ES 2B & R2020F12A31BZAR
(sa.ft)
(FHR)
An Industrial complex located in Sanxu 100% 1,807,709  Occupied by the Group for industrial
Village and Meihua Village, Luoyang use
Town, Boluo County, Huizhou,
Guangdong Province, the PRC
— (BRI BER S B MNTIEEFRERS R REBEREIERR
RN RAGEN 2 TEE
A Land Parcel located in Yanjiahe Village, 100% 595,595  Planning for construction of office

Xiaoita, Yiling District, Yichang, Hubei
Province, the PRC

— MR AP BMAItE EEMREE/NEE
BRSO 2 3R

and warehouse for leasing purpose

AEEERAERREFLERE
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

M=

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
2020 20194 20184 20174 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiE&x FEx FET AT TEL
Revenue HED 1,395,888 2,214,974 2,249,786 1,677,966 1,321,601
Cost of sales HERR (1,197,471) (1,986,007) (2,002,523) (1,459,129) (1,160,336)
Gross profit EX ] 198,417 228,967 247,263 218,837 161,265
Operating expenses BERR (167,716) (188,798) (197,738) (190,505) (154,483)
Profit before tax ER TR 30,701 40,169 49,525 28,332 6,782
Income tax credit/(expenses) FEHEL/(BX) 329 (3,021) (4.418) (6,002) (383)
Profit for the year FEFE 31,030 37,148 45107 22,330 6,399
Earnings per share SREF
Basic and diluted (HK$) HEAREE(BT) 0.14 0.17 0.21 0.10 0.03
Assets and liabilities BERERE
Non-current assets FRBEE 557,002 310,333 368,103 289,489 273,125
Current assets MENVEE 1,475,013 1,299,379 1,199,444 1,494,996 1,176,360
Current liabilities MEEE (1,244,054) (904,404) (887,048) (1,116,804) (832,010)
Total assets less current HEERTBAE
liabilities 787,961 705,308 680,499 667,681 617,475
Non-current liabilities FEnBEE (36,004) (29,619) (20,978) (21,673) (35,499)
Net assets BERE 751,867 675,689 659,521 646,008 581,976
Capital and reserves BARfGE
Share capital A 2,168 2,168 2,168 2,168 2,168
Reserves il 747,687 673,521 657,353 643,840 579,808
Equity attributable to owners of A T)HH AEIEER
the Company 749,855 675,689 659,521 646,008 581,976
Non-controlling interests RS 2,012 - - - -
Total equity s 751,867 675,689 659,521 646,008 581,976
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